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(WHEREUPON, the following proceedings were held

via WebEx.)

COURT gEPORTER'S NCTE: Due to remote platform
interruption and videc/audio interference throughout the
hearing, those instances are denoted with [audio

distortion] in the transcript.
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THE CQURT: Jeffrey Griffin. All right.

MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court?

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, this is Mr., Griffin’s
motion, I would turn it over to Mr. Griffin.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Griffin, I understand
you're in guarantine. Let's me unmute you there.

All right, are you Jeffrey Griffin?

MR. GRIFFIN: Yes, I understand we're under
quarantine.

THE COURT: You wish to have your hearing here
done by way of video conference?

MR. GRIFFIN: I wasn't —- yeah, I'm okay with
that.

THE COURT: I want to hear from you. It's my
understanding -- we had a status conference the other
day and you indicated you wish to have Ms. Johnson
relieved as your attorney. So I'll be glad to hear

from you, it's your motion.
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MR. GRIFFIN: Yes, sir. My attorney, Teal
Johnson, had failed to take a probable cause, which
is a violation of my Constitutional rights. And also
a violation of my due process by law. She has too
many clients, which is a conflict of interest, being
housed with cellmates that has the same attorney as
Teal Johnson is also a conflict of interest. My case
being passed along -- motion —— for attorneys —-

THE COURT REPORTER: Judge.

MR. GRIFFIN: -- at the same defendants
office —-

THE COURT REPORTER: Judge, I'm having a hard
time understanding him,

THE COURT: Can you move your mask down, we're
having trouble hearing you with your mask on.

THE COURT REPORTER: Judge, I'm sorry, just a
second.

(WHEREUPON, the court reporter had an

off-the-record conversation with the law clerk.)

THE COURT: All right, can you hear court
reporter?

THE COURT REPORTER: I'm asking for the volume
to be turned down a little, please.

THE COURT: Oh, okay. All right;

THE COURT REPORTER: Thank you.
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THE COURT: Sorry, Mr. Griffin. Start over,
make sure we can hear you.

MR. GRIFFIN: Okay, my attorney, Teal Johnson,
has failed to take probable cause, which is a
violation of my Constitutional rights and also a
violation of due process by law. She has toc many
clients, which is a conflict of interest being housed
with other cellmates that has the same attorney, Teal
Johnson, is also a conflict of interest. My case has
been passed along to different attorneys at the same
defenders office, that's also a conflict of interest.
She has yet to file the proper motions to give me a
bond is also a conflict of interest. Me being
incarcerated, losing loved ones [audic distortion]
she causing a complete state of stress for a little
over 10 months, leaving me to the choice -- to this
choice to take using my time wisely to fight for my
own freedom by filing this motion asking that you
release her from my case. And that I have some type
of equity relief to get a even handed deal with
fairness to get probation or take this case to trial.

THE COURT: All right.

Ms. Johnson, two questions for you. One, what
is the status of his bond and has that been addressed

at any point?
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MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor. Originally, he
was ordered house arrest as a condition of his bond.
And it's my understanding he had a house arrest
hearing, I want to say in November. At which time,
the Judge revoked him for six months. Aand. said we
could refile. The problem with Mr. Griffin's case is
that he is also in on a bench warrant for failure to
appear for court last spring. T don't have the dates
that he missed court. So I got two issues. I got a
house arrest issue and then I got a bench warrant
slash failure to appear issue. 2and all of that
coincided about the time Mr. Richardson said he was
going to place this case on the trial docket this
summer. And I felt like once this case was on a
docket, our chances of bond were slim to begin with,
Your Honor. But after Mr. Richardson notified me of
his desire to place this case on the trial docket, T
felt like we needed to put all efforts or energy in
trial prep and not a bond prep, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

And Mr. Griffin, I'll hear back from you but let
me ask her one more question, then I'11 hear from
you. [audio distortion] conflict of interest.

Ms. Johnson, are you aware of any conflict of

interest with any cellmates or, I mean, as far as
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this relates to this case and for this conflict of
interest?

M8, JOHNSON: ©No, Your Henor, 1 am not.
Mr. Griffin has voiced his displeasure at being in &
room. with one of his cellmates early on. I was not
aware of that. T aiﬁ not represent him at that
point. This casé has been passed around from
different public defenders in our cffice. I believe
Ms. Manigault had it, initially. Then it was
assigned to Chad Propst and I assumed representation
of Mr. Griffin in March of 2021, Your Homor. But to
answer your question, Judge, no.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Griffin, you wanted
to say something?

MR. GRIFFIN: Yeah, it was a few cellmates that
I was housed with and they would speak on their case
around the dorm. &And, you know, they was letting me
know that as you -- I'm not sure if you're aware of
someohe by the name of Carlos Knoxx being one of her
alleged -- one of her clients. And, you Know, it
just was a lot of -- you know, I was being housed
with a lot of people that had her as my -~ had her as
their attorney. And me as well as. So it kind of,
you know, didn't -- I didn't guite sit right with iT.

And also, whenever I did get a chance to get




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

relieved on bond, that, you know, I allegedly went to
Bull Street down in Columbia for a mental health
evaluation for drug uses. And to get help. I was
being housed in four alpha. And I was on psych meds.
And when I did get released, instead of me getting
the proper help, you know, ﬁeing --= I mentioned to
Teal Johnson if she could get me the help because I
was homeless, at the time, I didn’t have anywhere to
stay. And when I did give the jail the address that
somebody contact me whenever I got put on house
arrest that, you know, the address was in the system
and my attorney, Teal Johnson, she somehow -- she -~
she didn't have the correct address to sent me
paperwork stating that I was needing to go court for
a hearing that this date. And it left me -- like, at
the time, I didn't know if she was my attorney. So
whenever I did show up to general sessions, because I
did have -- they did give me a status to show up
whenever I did leave the jall and they gave me a date
that I showed up to a hearing or court. And I
appeared there and I didn't know who was my attorney,
at the time. They said Chad Propst or Chad Proost or
whatever his name is. But I didn't ~- when I showed
up in court at general sessions, I was unaware of

where he was. Some people were saying that my
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attorney was this person. And I was tellingmthem;
the people at the desk, that this wasn’t my attorney.
And I was just like waiting around. And then they
kind of give me the run around whenever I did go to
uh —~~ whenever I did go to um, that rele call.

And also, she had =- she just recently told me
that she had paperwork that she was sending out fo a
address that T was unaware of of Piedmont address, if
I'm not mistaken. 8She said that this was the last
address that they had on file for me. Which I was —-
I did net stay in Piedmont since -- I want to say I
didn't live in Piedmont since 2000 and -- 2011. 2&nd
it was addreéess that she was sending -- she said she
sent the paperwork to, which was a incorrect address.
And I felt like if I had the proper help to get in
some: kind of proegram to get help, for me: being back

and forth to work and stuff like that, it would have

helped my situation a lot. Being that, you know, I

didn't that kind of help. It left confusion
somewhere around waiting. Like I say, she went to
send the paperwork. at that address that T didn't stay
at since 2011.

THE COURT: All right. Let me hear what The
State has to say and then I'l1l get back to you, all

right.
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MR. GRIFFIN: Yes, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor, may it
please the Court. Your Honor, we're opposed to any
type of removal of Ms, Johnson. I don't believe the
Defendant has alleged anything that would warrant her
removal. B8She's been very active with the case with
me. She's met with me on, at least, one if not two
occasions. And we've had many communications about
the case offers and discovery. The reason why this
case 1s the age it is is because The Defendant
absconded. He absconded off of HIP and I had to get
a bench warrant. Your Honor, it was on the trial
docket for July, it did not get reached. It's on the
trial docket now for August the 8th. We're prepared
to go forward and would ask that you deny the motion.

THE COURT: Is there any offers outstanding, at
this peint?

MR. RICHARDSON: Well, the last oifer we made
was rejected.

THE COURT: What was it?

MR. RICHARDSCN: If memory serves me -- tell nme,
what was it 157 I made an initial offer of 20 years.
And we had discussions of possibly 15 years: is that
right?

THE CQURT: I've got my notes -- and that was a
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global settlement? ThHat took care of everything he
had pending against him?

MR. RICHARDSON: Yes, sir. He has & total of
four armed robberies among miscellaneous charges
along with those. Yes, it would. It would take care
all four armed robberies. But it was my
understanding that he wanted a trial and we're
prepared to go to trial.

THE COURT: ARll right.

Mr. Griffin, I'm going to hear from Ms. Johnson,
then I'll hear from you. You get the finagl word.

Ms. Johnson.

MS, JOHNSON: May it please the Court. Your

Honer, I have tried to get my client to focus on the

matter at hand, the more important issues here, which

are the serious charges. You know, I was doing
everything I could to fry to locate my client. And
going back to every address we ever had on file. And

I don't know why that is used against me. But for

what it's worth, Your Honor, we are not —— I'm not

able to get him to focus on what is in front of us.

What is coming down the track wvery fast. Aand it's —-

we're on the trial docket for August 8th, Your Horor,

And that is the -- what I'm trying to get Mr. Griffin

to see, not these other little issues about address
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and not getting in touch with him. I did everything
I could to try to find him so that he would not get a
bench warrant.

Your Honor, I do believe that our relationship
is broken down. We can't focus on the trial and his
other charges. Instead, we're focused on this
address and why I sent an address -- or why I mailed
a letter to this address last year. It was to try to
get in touch with him. 8o that he wouldn't get a
bench warrant. But he did get a bench warrant. But
regardless, Your Honor, I normally wouldn't do this
but tﬁis is now the second motion of Mr. Griffin's.
He is not happy with me. BAnd I would join in his
motion to be relieved, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

Anything else, final word, Mr. Griffin?

MR. GRIFFIN: Okay. A&s you can see, Your Honor,
looking at my record, I'm [audio distortion] menace
to society--

THE COURT: I do not have your record. All I
have is what y'all teld me.

MR. GRIFFIN: Okay. I kept a job since I was
eight years old. I had a tough living growing up.
I've been 1in traumatizing situations that cause PTSD

from injuries at work that has been overlooked
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without proper care or assistance te a better turning
point, turn into drug use while trying to make the
best choice. Meanwhile, keeping some type of sanity
while facing the obstacles that life throw at me.
Knowing the blessings made weak but my [audio
distortion] to be greater than what some people think
I would amount to has my spirit charred, which is why
I'm still standing befeore you. This conspiracy
that's made [audio distortion] and the flesh is made
weak. So I'm here, vou know, to -- to let you know
that I would like to take the next step and as a
self-representative because I wasn't assisted as I
felt like I should haven been to get the help that I
needed to really have a fighting chance with my case.
And it caused & lot of turmeil in my life, you know.
Me —-- me walking back and forth to work, you know,
off a eight hour shift. And I didn't -- like I said,
I didn't get the assistance like I felt like she
should have filed for me as being her client. Ard to
really just help teo me get in a better situation to
really fight my case.

THE COURT: All right. I mean, it sounds like a
lot of your issues that you are presenting to the
court, deal with almost like sentencing mitigation

issues. And those types of things. I don't see any
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basis that you have really presented that makes The
Court think that I should grant your motion.
Further, you got an excellent attorney and somebody
that can use the issues you just raised to help you
work something out or if you don't then you're going
to have to go to trial. So I'm going to deny your
motion. And you may have to get some serious
discussions with Ms. Johnson about, like she said,
some of the issues that are being present with you.
Because this case is on the trial roster for a couple
weeks down the road. So I'm going to deny your
motion.

MS. JOHNSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. GRIFFIN: Okay. When will she be back to
speak to me? Because, I mean--

THE COURT: She'll contact you, that's up to
her. 8She'll contact you.

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, may I ask one question?

THE CQURT: Yes.

MS. JOHNSON: Mr. Griffin, are you in quarantine
or do you have COVID?

MR. GRIFFIN: I don't have neither. I mean,
they say we're in quarantine but they still moving
people around like nothing -- nothing's going on so.

MS. JOHNSON: But you have not tested positive
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for COVID?

MR. GRIFFIN: Huh-uh.

MS. JOHNSON: QOkay. I will come down to see you
as spon as I can.

MR. GRIFFIN: All right.

THE COURT: Good luck to you, Mr. Griffin.

MR. GRIFFIN: All right.

MS. JOHNSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR, RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

(WHEREUFON, the proceedings were concluded.)




16

COURT OF GENERAL SESSICNS
2019-GS8-23-00604
2019-GS-23-00605
2019-GS-23-00606

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY CF GREENVILLE

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,
PLAINTIFF,

vs. TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

JEFFERY KEYON TIMOTHY

GRIFFIN,
DEFENDANT .

et et et et i i e i e e M et Nt et N St

September 6, 7 and 8, 2022
Greenville, South Carolina

BEPFORE:

THE HONORABLE G.D. MORGAN, JR., JUDGE, and a jury.

APPEARANCE S:

WILLIAM DOUGLAS RICHARDSON, JR., ESQ.
Attorney for the Plaintiff

TEAL JOHNSON, ESQ.
Attorney for the Defendant

CHERYL A. SMITH
Circuit Court Reporter




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

17

INDEX
{SW) - Denotes State's Witness
{DW) - Denotes Defense Witness
(IC) - Denotes In Camera
Tuesd tember 2022

Competency Hearing:

(IC) DONNA MADDOX:
Examination by the Court
Direct Examination by Ms. Johnson

Wedn 3TN 2

Pretrial Matters
Jury Veoir Dire
Jury Selection

Jury Instructions
Opening Statement by Mr. Richardson
Opening Statement by Ms. Jchnson

W) JAVIE OA:
Direct Examination by Mr. Richardson
Cross—Examination by Ms. Johnson

CHA HENDER ot KE:
Direct Examination by Mr. Richardson
Cross—Examination by Ms. Johnson

SW S LEA :

Direct Examination by Mr. Richardson
Cross-Examination by Ms. Johnson

(SW) JARRED GREER:

Direct Examination by Mr. Richardson
Motion - Mistrial

SW D GREEN:
Cross-Examination by Ms. Johnson

77
86

88

97

102




18

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

INDEX (Continued)
(8W) - Denotes State's Witness
(DW) - Denotes Defense Witness

(IC) - Denotes In Camera

Jackson v. Denno Hearing:

IC)._.C Y C WICK:
Direct Examination by Mr. Richardson
Cross-Examination by Ms. Johnson

W) CO H K:
Direct Examination by Mr. Richardson
Cross-Examination by Ms. Johnson

State Rests
Motion
Defendant's Advisement of Rights

W) JEF Y EKE TIM RIF :
Direct Examination by Ms. Johnson
Cross-Examination by Mr. Richardson

Defense Rests
Motion
Jury Charge Conference

Thurs Se er 2022

Closing Argument by Mr. Richardson
Cleosing Argument by Ms. Johnson
Rebuttal Closing Argument by Mr. Richardson

Charge on the Law
Jury Questions
Verdict

Sentence
Certificate of Reporter

203,

105
109

118
145

150
150
153

158
le4

169
170
170

172
181
184

186
207
208

216
218




10
11l
1z
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

19

4
EXHIBITS
NO DESCRIPTION ID EVD
{State's Exhibits)
1 Aerial Map 12 g2
2 Berial Map 12 48
3 Surveillance Video (DVD) 12 51
4 Photo iz 56
5 Photo 12 &5
6 Photo 12 65
7 Photo 12 65
8 Photo 12 84
9 Photo 12 84
10 Photo 12 84
11 Chadwick Videos (DVD) 12 124
12 Moss 923 Revolver 12 138
13 Gloves 12 85
14 Shirt 12 141
15 Hat 12 140
18 Jacket 12 142
17 Pillowcase 12 139
(Court's Exhibits)

1 DMH Evaluation 5/2/19 14

2 Jury Question 206

3 Jury Question 217

4 Resisting Arrest Jury Charge 217




20

10
11
12
13
14
15
le
17
18
19
20
2%
22
23
24

25

PROCEEDINGS

Sept 2
{(WHEREUPON, proceedings commenced at 2:32 p.m.)

THEZ COURT: Ms. Johnson?

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor. I've got Dr. Maddox
here.

THE COURT: And for the record, this is the matter of
Timothy Griffin; is that correct?

MR. RICEARDSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: All right. Yes, ma'am.

Is he coming out?

Bll right. Now I'll hear from you.

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, with the Court's permission, I
can just turn it over to Dr. Maddox. She did opine that
he is competent after talking with him today, Your anor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. JOHNSON: Dr. Maddox, please state your name for
the record.

THE COURT: Let's just swear --— I'm going to go ahead
and swear you in just for the record, if you would,
please.

THE CLERK: Ms. Maddox, please place your left hand
on the Bible and raise your right hand.

/77
/17
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WHEREUPON,
DONNA MADDOX
After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. And
please state your full name for the record,
THE CCOURT: All right, Ms. Johnson.
MS. JOHNSON: Judge, with the Court's permission, I
woutld just turn it over to Dr. Maddox.
EXAMTNATION,
BY THE CQURT:
Q All right. Dr. Maddox, I understand you have

re—~evaluated Mr, Griffin; is that correct?

A Yes.
Q . And what is your finding?
A Your Honor, I spent about an hour and a half with

him. Ms. Johnson, since this morning, our telephone
conversation, she was able to get the medication
administration records from the detention center. He's
actually, for the last five days, he has been taking his
medication. In my opinion, today he was much calmer than
he was the last time I saw him in July.

He's got Symptoms of psychosis. He was able to tell
me that he believes he's being monitored. He's felt like
there's been cameras in the jail and those sorts of

things, and he gave examples. At times he's alone, the
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Donna Maddox In Camera Examination by The Court 7

light may f£licker which leads him to believe that perhaps
there's some kind of system monitoring him. He doesn't
have a delusion necessarily to explain why that is
happening. He doesn't have a reason that would impact his
ability to assist in his defense or his ability to
understand the roles of the Court officials or the
adversarial nature of the court proceedings.

Your Honor, in looking at his records, he's been
guite psychotic during the course of the last two years
while he's been detained. He had an episode where he
mutilated his neck. Back when I saw him in June, he told
me he was depressed and was writing something in bloocd,
but it wasn't until I got his psychilatric records that he
believed there was a microchip in him at some point and
had mutilated his neck to remove the chip.

Spo unlike mental health, it's my opinion that he dces
have psychesis. Dr. Martin, who's been treating him in
the jail, also agreed, which is why he's been on these
antipsychotic medications since over the last two years.

He was very depressed in the community. He, Your
Honor, was very high functioning. He was working with the
sanitation‘company. He was injured. There was a
temporary person on. He got hit in the head with a PVC
pipe and fell off the truck and had a closed-head injury,

and he's had a steady deterioration since that time. So
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his psychosis could come from a closed-head injury. I'm
not really sure of the exact etiology, whether it was just
a genetic component like schizophrenia or schizoaffective
disorder, or whether it came from the head injury.

But what we did today, he's aware that -- he knows
what the deal, that he's been offered a plea bargain, and
he's aware of that. BAnd he considered it, Your Honor.
He's been -- he’s had a hard time dealing with whether to
accept a negotiated plea or not. And what happens is
right when he'’s about to agree, he stops and says that
he's got to follow God's will. And he said that he would
rather answer to God's law than man's law. And we kind of
explain, we went through different scenarios.

And it's not a delusion. I feel like he has a
general mistrust of society, of authority just because of
some of the recent things that happened to him, you know.
He was injured at a job, he didn't get worker's comp., he
had nc compensation, his wife left him, and then he ended
up homeless over the last few years. He's had a very
awful turn of luck in his life when he's generally been a
good person and has worked really hard. And so he stops,
and each time he says he has to answer to God, not to man.
And that's kind of the reasoning for him to proceed.

Now, last time I had spoken with him, he did not want

Ms. Johnson representing him, but today he said he would.
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Donna Maddox Direct Examination by Ms. Johnson 9

He said at this point that he would.

And though I have great concerns, I Just was not able
to tease out that he's got a delusion about the legal
system and that he —-- he does have some capacity to assist
in his defense. His lawyer and he don't agree on his
defense, but he offered her some potential defenses and
things that he could use.
Q All right. Sc he understands the charges against
him, he understands the potential penalties against him,
he's able to assist with the defense of his case with his
counsel?
A In my opinion, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Yes, ma'am.

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, briefly.

DIRECT BXAMINATION

BY MS5. JOHNSON:
0 Do you have any recommendations for the trial?
A I certainly do.

S50, Your Honor, he's on two -- he takes an
antipsychotic medication in the morning and then a very
big dese at night. He's on a large dose. He's on the
highest dose of Zyprexa that you can be on. He takes
5 milligrams in the morning and 15 milligrams at night.
Sometimes he has missed the morning dose because he's just

so sleepy. They -- that medicine knocks you out. If he
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were to miss some of the morning doses in the trial, I
don't think it would affect his competency, but we need to
ensure with the Court that he has his medications. What I
recommended to Ms. Johnson is that, say, if one of the
mornings of the trial if he has not received his
medication, I would ask that the jail bring it over to him

and have it on standby were he to need it.

And then secondly, Your Honor, I would ask that if he'

were -- if he is found guilty at some point, that you
court order that he must receive psychiatric treatment,
and he must receive his psychiatric medications while
confined at the Department of Corrections.

He gave me permission. I'm geing to -- if he were to
be found guilty, I'm going to forward over his detention
center records, the evaluations he's had by Dr. Martin,
and alsé his medication sheet so that they know what
medicines he's receiving.

THE COURT: All right. Anything else from defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: No questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. You may step
dowrn.

TEE WITNESS: You're welcome. May I be excused?

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. You may be excused. Thank
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you, Dr. Maddox.

All right. Based on the testimony on the report from
Dr. Maddox, I find that the defendant is competent to
stand trial.

Is therelanything else from either the State or the
defense at this time? We're in the process or in the
middle of another trial right now. I'm not sure when we
would finish up. But we will be ready to go unless I hear
otherwise from any one of y'all.

MS. JOHNSON: Nothing further from the defense, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Anything from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. We adjourn on that case. And
as soon as we get through this one, we will let you know.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

(WHEREUPON, proceedings concluded at 2:39 p.m.)
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Wednesday, September 7, 2022

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Numbers 1 through 17 were
marked for identification; proceedings commenced at
9:44 a.m.)

TEE COURT: Any motions we need to deal with before
we bring the jury out?

MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, I don't think there's
anything necessarily before the jury. I will say that we
have a Jackson wv. Denno that we're going to have to do.
That's going to be my last witness. So we can do that, I
assume, at the Court's pleasure, any particular time
during the day.

THE COURT: Yeah. I mean, we —---

MR. RICHARDSON: We can do it right after -- right
before we go to lunch after we've released the jury, if
you would like.

THE COURT: Yeah. We can do that.

Heow long? I mean, is it going to be one of those
lengthy ones? I'm just trying from a time aspect.

MR. RICHARDSCN: I'd say from my standpeoint, no, it
will be a very quick hearing.

THE COQURT: Okay. All right. We'll just make it to
lunch break then, do that.

Anything -- other than that, anything?

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, my client is also charged with
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three other armed robberies, and I'm just making a motion
to exclude any reference or testimony about the other
pending charges.

THE COURT: Those are just pending charges?

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ckay. Anything from the State on that?

MR, RICHARDSCN: No. &nd I've addressed that with my
officers not to bring that up.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. RICHARDSON: There were portions in the videoc of
the defendant where that —- some reference was made to
that. I hawve cut that out, and 1've provided that video
to the defense.

THE COURT: Okay. Just make sure that you let them
know do not make any reference to any of that.

MR. RICHARDSCN: Yes, sir, I did. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Anything before we bring the
jury out -- jury panel? I've got a voir dire. I've got a
witness list and no additional voir dire from either
parties, right? Is that éorrect?

MR. RICHARDSON: That's correct.

One last thing, Judge. If I could, I would like to
mark as a court's exhibit the evaluation of the defendant.
This is the DMH evaluation that was done initially. He's

also been evaluated three separate times by the defense's
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expert and found competent. So I wanted that in the
record and also this to be marked as a court's exhibit for
having it in the record for future reference.

THE COURT: Only as a court's exhibit. And I think
—- as I understand, what I recall is Dr. Maddox had seen

him in June, July and then vesterday: is that correct,

. Ms. Jochnson?

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. We'll mark that as Court's Exhibit

Number 1.

(WHEREUPON, Court's Exhibit Number 1 was marked for
identification.)

MR. RICHARDSON: And that's all from the State at
this time, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: All right. Anything else before we bring
them up?

MS. JOHNSON: No, ¥Your Honor,

THE COURT: BAll right. Jan, if you would, call them
on up.

And the strikes are ten and five, correct?

MR. RICHARDSON: Yes, Your Hcecnor.

THE COURT: Due to the number of jurors we've got,
are y'all okay with one alternate?

MR. RICHARDSON: State's okay.

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: ©Qkay. I meari, we'll kind of see what
we've got, and if there is enough to go with one more
alternate, but I think one -- y'all are telling me you
don't think it's going to ke & lohg trial anyway, so let's
go with one alternate unless y'all have @ request for
another one. Is that all right? T mean, is that okay?
Does: that work?

M3. JOHNSON: No objectionr from the deéefense, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

(WEEREUPON, the jury pariel entered the courtroom at
8:52 a.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Good morning, ladies and
gentlemen. Good to see most all of you again here this
morning, and someg that were on my jury for the trial we
had yesterday.

We are about to start another trial, the State of
South Carolina vs. Jeffery Griffin. I just want to start
out and just identify the indictments Mr. Griffin is
charged with. And I do remind you, these are only
indictments. This is not evidence.

Mr. Griffin has been charged with armed robbery,
Count 1 of an indictment. But it alleges that, on
November 24, 2018, while armed with a deadly weapon or

while alleging either by action or words he was armed
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while using a representation of a deadly weapon or any
object which a person present during the commission of the
robbery would reasonably believe to be a deadly weapon,
take, by means of force or intimidation, goods or monies
described as US currency from the person or presence of
Charles Adam Henderson-Blake, an employee of 7~Eleven, in
violation of Section 16-11-30.

Count 2 of that indictment is possession of a weapon
during the commission of a violent crime. It alleges
that, on or about the 24th day of November 2018, that the
defendant possessed or visibly displayed a handgun during
the commission or attempted commission of a violent crime,
to wit, armed robbery in viclation of 16-23-490.

Another indictment for pointing and presenting a
firearm which occurred on November 24, 2018, when the
defendant is alleged to have pointed or presented a
firearm, to wit, a handgun, at or in the presence of
Charles Adam Henderson-Blake, an employee at 7-Eleven, in
violation of Section 16-23-410.

And an indictment for resisting arrest that alleges
on November 24, 2018, the defendant knowingly, willfully
and unlawfully opposed or resisted an arrest made by Corey
J. Chadwick with the Greenville County Sheriff's Office
whem he knew or reasonably should have known was a law

enforcement officer in violation of Section 16-9-320(A).
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JURY VOIR DIRE

THE COURT: 8o first of all, ladies and gentlemen,
has anyone been related by blocd or marriage to Jeffery
Keyon Timothy Griffin? If so, please stand.

(No response.)

THE COURT: Has any member of the jury panel ever
been related by blood or marriage to Charles Adam
Henderson-Blake? If so, please stand.

(No response.)

THE COURT: Has anyone ever had a personal, close --
a close, personal or social relationship with either
Jeffery Keyon Timothy Griffin or Charles Adam
Henderson-Blake? If so, please stand.

(No response.)

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, the
following is a list of potential witnesses: Charles
Henderson-Blake, Corey Chadwick with the Greenville County
Sheriff's Department; Jarred Greer with the Greenville
County Sheriff's Department; Javier Ochca with the
Greenville County Sheriff's Department; James Leathers
with the Greenville County Sheriff's Department; Jonathan
Rey with the Greenville County Sheriff's Department,

C. Minwegan with forensics; and Linda Howes. Has anyone
ever been related by blood or marriage to any of these

potential witnesses or has anyone ever had a close,
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personal or social relationship with any of these
potential witnesses?
{No response.)

THE COURT: BAll right. Counsel, if you would,
introduce yourselves and your client. Start with the
State.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank Your, Your Honeor. Please the
Court.

Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. My name 1s Doug
Richardson. I work for the 13th Circuit Solicitor's
Office.

MS. JOHNSOM: Good morning. Ladies and gentlemen ---

DEFENDANT GRIFFIN: T am that I am. I am —— I am not
who they say I am, and I am just standing here today to
let you know that I am a good person at heart and I've
been ---

THE COURT: Mr., Griffin, not at this time.

MS. JOHNSCON: This is Jeffery Griffin, and I'm proud
to represent him, Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Has any member of the jury
panel ever been represented by any of the attorneys
involved in this case or their potential law firms?

‘ (No response.)
THE CQURT: All right. Has anyone ever been related

by blood or marriage or had a close, perscnal or social
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relationship with any of the attorneys involved in this
case? If so, please stand.
(No response.)

THE COURT: ZIs there any member of the jury panel
that was a member of the grand jury which issued the
indictment in this -- or indictments in this case? If so,
please stand.

(Nc response.)

THE COURT: Is there any member of the jury panel who
is a member of or a contributor to any group which has as
its primary concern the promotion of law enforcement oxr
victims' rights? And these would include but they're not
limited to MADD, SADD, which is formerly Students Against
Drunk Drivers, CAV, which is Citizens Against Vieclent
Crime.

Yes, ma'am. Your number please.

JUROR NUMBER 123: 123.

THE COURT: All right. And how do you fit into that
question?

JUROR NUMBER 123: well, I'm on the board of
directors for Safe Harbor.

THE COURT: A1l right. Okay. Thank you, ma'am.

All right. Has any member of the jury panel formed
or expressed an opinion about any issue or matter involved

in this case?
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(No response.)

THE COURT: Is any member of the jury panel aware of
any bias or prejudice towards either the State or the
defendant in this case?

(No response.)

THE COURT: Does any member of the jury panel know of
any reason whatsocever why he or she should not serve as a
Jjuror in this case with particular emphasis being placed
on your ability to be fair and impartial to both the State
and the defendant?

(No response.)

THE COURT: Any additional questions from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing further from the State.

THE COURT: Any from the defense?

MS. JOHNSCON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. We will select a jury. Ten
and five, and we'll go with one alternate.

JURY SELERCTION

THE CLERK: Ladies and gentlemen, when I call your
number and your name, please stand.

Juror Number 188, Christopher Savio.

(WHEREUPON, Christopher Savio, an Asian Male, stood.)

THE CLERK: What says the State?

MR. RICHARDSCN: Please present Mr. Savio.

THE CLERK: What says the defendant?
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THE CLERK: For our second alternate, Juror 197,
Tommy Simpson.

(WHEREUPON, Tommy Simpson, a white male, stood.)

THE CLERK: What says the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: Please present Mr. Simpson.

THE CLERK: What says the defendant?

MS. JOHNSON: Please seat the juror.

THE CLERK: Please bring your things and have a seat
in the jury box.

THE COURT: All right. Any motions on the selection
from the jury -- of the jury from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: ©None from the State.

THE COURT: Any from the defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Yéur Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, those
of you who are not selected, I'm going to ask that you
return back downstairs for further instruction. Thank
you.

(WHEREUPON, the remaining jury panel exits the courtroom
at 10:12 a.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Madam Clerk, if you would,
please swear the jury.

THE CLERK: Ladies and gentlemen, please stand and
raise your right hand. The correct response to this oath

is "I will."
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(WHEREUPON, the jury is duly sworn,)
THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated.
JURY TNSTRUCTIONS

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, I'm
going to give you some opening instructions for this
particular case. BAnd when we take our first break, I'm
going to ask that you select a foreperson for the jury.
And that person is simply a spokesperson for the jury and
to communicate through the bailiffs to me. And so if
there are any questions or issues that may arise, that
foreperson will bring it to the attention of the balliffs
and they will then let me know. That person does not have
any greater weight or pull or say-so in deliberations once
you get there, but it is simply a person that will be the
spokesperson for you in this case.

All right. We are about to start the case the State

Carolj VS, £ n Timoth iffin. As

some of you know from the trial this week in my court
previously, this is different from TV. Trials in real
life are different from TV. It is not what you see where
something happens, scmeone's arrested and there is a
verdict all within an hour. So that is not how it works
in real life. And so oftentimes it can be slow and
deliberate, but this is a real life worid of trial work.

These remarks that I'm about to give you are not a
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charge on the law in this case. I'll instruct you on the
law applicable to this case at the end of this trial
before you begin your deliberations and retire to consider
your verdict. This is merely an explanation of the
procedure that we will follow in this case so that you may
better understand what we are going to be doing.

I do not allow note-taking. The reason I don't is
that I feel that if you are concerned about taking your
notes and writing down and there's a witness on the stand,
sometimes you miss what that person says. You're
concerned with writing things down. And so I think jurors
perceive and hear things better if they're paying
attention to the witnesses as opposed to writing down
notes.

As I told you just a little while ago, the defendant
has been indicted under several indictments for armed
robbery, possession of a weapon during the commission of a
viclent crime, pointing and presenting a firearm and
resisting arrest. I will explain the elements of each cf
these charges at the end of the case when I instruct you
on the law. But I want to remind you from the beginning
that the indictments are simply charges by which the case
is brought into court. It is not in any sense evidence of
any of the allegations they contain.

The defendant has pled not guilty to these
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indictments. The State, therefore, has the burden of
proving each of the elements of the indictments bevond a
reasonable doubt, and it will be your duty, ladies and
gentlemen, to decide whether the State has met that
burden,

Your purpose as jurors is to find and determine the
facts. You are the sole judges of the facts. If at any
time that I may make any comment at all during this trial
regarding the facts, you are to disregard that. I will
net, but if for some reason it is perceived that I have
made some comment about the facts, you are to disregard
it. You are to determine the facts from the testimony
that you hear from this witness stand and any other
evidence that may be admitted and introduced during the
trial. It is up to you to determine the inferences which
you feel may properly be drawn from the evidence. It is
especlally important that you perform your duty of
determining the facts diligently and conscientiously,
because ordinarily there is no way to correct an erroneous
determination of the facts by a jury.

Cn the other hand and with equal emphasis, the sanme
law that makes you the judges of the facts makes me the
judge of the law. The law as given by the Court is the
only law you may consider. You must accept and follow it

even though you may disagree with it. I cannot tell you
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what the facts are and you cannot disagree with me about
what the law is or what the law should be. Your job is to
take the law as I give it to you and apply it to the facts
as you find them from the testimony of the witnesses and
any other evidence that may be introduced in the trial.
After doing that, you will render your verdict, a true and
just verdict under your solemn ocath that you just took.

Now, until I advise you to start deliberating on the
case, please do not discuss this case with anyone, and
that includes among your fellow jurors. On breaks, if we
go to lunch, if it goes into tomerrow and you go home
tonight with family members, I know there's a temptation,
yvour family, your friends, if you do go home or if you
talk to somebody on the phone during lunch here today,
they'll ask you about it. What's going on? Tell me about
the case. I am imploring you not to do that and
instructing you not to do that. That is a violation of
the Court's rules and order that you are not to discuss
the case with anyone. Don't comment on any witness, don't
look up anything about the case, don't investigate it.

And I know we all have cell phones and the first
thing we do when something pops up, we want to google it
and find out about it. But please do not do that. Once
the case is over, you can Google all you want, and you can

find out anything you want about the parties or the
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lawyers or anybody concerned. But until you do reach that
verdict, I ask that you please not discuss it with anyone
whatsoever. It's just a very important thing. The
evidence that is to be considered is only from the witness
stand and any exhibits that may be admitted, and only
after I tell you what the law i1s. So please do not
discuss it among yourselves or with anybody else.

It is very important, ladies and gentlemen, to keep
an open mind and not decide any of the case as I just said
until the evidence is presented -~ been presented, the
parties have made their closing arguments to you and then
the law has been given to you by me. It is your solemn
responsibility to determine the guilt or innocence of the
defendant in this case, and your verdict must be based
solely on the evidence as it is presented to you in this
trial and on the law as I instruct you at the end of this
trial.

In just a moment the solicitor will make what's
called an opening statement in which the solicitor will
explain to you the issues in the case or at least what the
solicitor thinks the issues are in this case. The
attorney for the defendant may also make an opening
statement, although she's not required to do so.

What the attorneys tell you in these opening

statements is not evidence in the case. It's only their
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contention as to what the issues are going to be in the
trial of this case. The evidence in the case is going to
be presented to you by the testimony of sworn witnesses
here on the witness stand and any exhibits that may be
introduced into evidence.

Every now and then you may hear objections from the
lawyers. There may be times where I will need to excuse
you for a little bit to take up some of the matters with
the lawyers. There may be times where I can just handle
it and bring them up here to the bench and we can discuss
it and leave you here in the jury room. Do not think that
we are hiding anything from you. But there are issues
that come up in a trial that may invelve the facts and I
may need to discuss that with the lawyers out of your
presence. So you can only determine this case based on
the facts as you hear from the witness stand and the
exhibits.

Now, those facts that you will be determining, in
determining what the true facts are in this case, you must
decide whether or not the testimony of the witnesses is
believable. It will be my responsibility as the trial
judge to rule as a matter of law as to whether certain
testimony is admissible at all or not. Once testimony is
admitted, whether you believe it is your sole

responsibility, and it's only for you to determine whether
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you believe it.

In deciding whether to believe a witness, you have
the right to consider the interest of any witness, the
bias of any witness, the prejudice of any witneés, the
opportunity for the witness to have seen the matters and
things about which that witness may testify and the way
the witness acts on the witness stand. You have a right
to consider anything in the record that will help you
evaluate the testimony of these witnesses. That means
that it is your duty to pay close attention and observe,
pay close attention to all the witnesses, listen to the
witnesses, and listen to the attorneys and the Court as
well,

Please don't let your thoughts wander., I know we all
have a tendency sometimes to let our thoughts wander, but
please don't do that. Please give your strict attention
so at the end of this case and, after all the testimony
has been entered into evidence, the lawyers have given you
their closing arguments and I have told you what the law
is, that you will then be in a position to determine the
true facts and apply those facts to the law and render a
verdict that is true and just.

As I told you, whoever you select at our next break
as the foreperson, that person will be simply the

spokesperson for you. If there are any issues that come
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up during Ehe trial, then I will have that person to let
the bailiffs know and then they will let me know and I
will handle everything immediately.

Now, there may be times, ladies and gentlemen, where
I have to excuse you because there are issues that I may
have to deal with in the case and there may be some times
you are back there a little bit longer than I may have
told you, but that's just what we have in a trial
sometimes. Things do take a little bit of time. So I
will be as efficient as I can. I will make sure that you
are as comfortable as can be. But I just wanted to give
you a heads-up that there may be times where you may have
to be back there in the jury room.

Again, this is -- it is not like it is on TV and in
the movies, and so I appreciate ahead of time your
attention to this case because this is the only day in
court for these parties. It is important for the State,
and it is important for the defendant in this case. And
your verdict at the end of this case, and I will instruct
you at that time, must be unanimous.

All right. Anything from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: ©Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Anything from the defense?

MS., JOHNSON: No, Your Honor,

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, thank
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you and thank you for your attention already. And I'1l
call on the State for opening statement.
NIN EME

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the
Court, Ms. Johnson.

Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. To reintroduce
myself, I am Doug Richardson. I'm a senior assistant
solicitor here in the 13th circuit. The 13th circuit is
made up of two counties: Pickens County and Greenville
County. I'm charged with the duty to represent the people
of the State of South Carclina on the various cases that
come up from the various law enforcement agencies in the
County of Greenville. This particular case comes out of
Greenville Sheriff's Office, as you will see through the
witnesses that I present in this case.

Now, why are you here? You're here because the grand
jury has indicted the defendant on four separate charges.
The judge has told you that's not evidence. That's simply
the charging elements that gets me into this courtroom and
before a jury.

The judge is going to tell you what the law is at the
end of this case. He's referenced that. I will go over a
few things in reference to that to show you what I'm
presenting when I present the evidence in this case.

He is charged, number one, the most serious charge of
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armed robbery. Armed robbery is, in the State of South
Carolina, it's unlawful for a person to go in to and rob
another persen or an entity or a store with a dangerous
weaporni. And, in fact, under our law, you only have to
have a weapon presented. TIf you act like you have a
weapon or you present & weapon —- present like you have a
weapon, that also would dgualify. Now, that's not the case
here. He had a weapon in his hand, and the evidence will
show you that he had & weapon in his hand when he
presented it at the 7-Eleven on Buncombe Road.

Also, he's charged with resisting arrest. Simply, if
you're being placed under arrest and you resist in any
form or fashion -- in this particular cagé, we'll submit
te you that he ran from the police -- then that is
resisting arrest.

He's charged with peinting and presenting a firearm.
Tt's just what it says. If you pull a firearm out and you
point it at a person or if you present it; if you just
bring it out like this, that is also urlawful in the State
of South Carolina.

And lastly, he's charged with possession of a weapon
during a violent offense. I will tell you that armed
robbery is a violent offense under our law in the State of
South Carolina and that a weapon was presented in this

case.
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Now, ladies and gentlemen, the evidence is going to
show you, I'm geing to present to you several witnesses,
I'm going to present to you some video, and I'm also going
to present to you some physical evidence. And what this
evidence is going to show you is that back in November of
2018, this defendant went to the 7-Eleven on 0ld Buncombe
Road. TIt's in Northern Greenville County. He went into
that store in the early morning hours. He presented a
weapon, a gun. You'll see that gun. He also had a pillow
case with him. 2and he demanded money. During that time
he did, in fact, get money, and he left the 7-Eleven. And
also during that time, he presented and, in fact, pointed
a firearm. You'll see 1t on videc. He pointed a firearm
at the viectim, Charles. That's Charles back there. He
will testify.

He then left on foot from that store. The quick
actions of the 7-Eleven employees and the Greenville
County Sheriff's O0ffice, they called immediately. The
evidence will show that the sheriff's office came to the
scene and found the defendant a short distance away. The
evidence will show you that the defendant ran from the
police. The evidence will show you that the peolice caught
him a short distance from the 7-Eleven. The evidence will
show you that he had in his possession the gun that you'll

see on videotape. He had in his possession the money that
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he took from the store, which is the exact amount of money
that was returned to the store after he was caught. The
evidence will show that he had the exact same clothing on
that is in the video. These will all be presented by the
State, and at the end of this case, I'm going to ask you
to find a verdict of guilty on all counts based upon that
evidence that 1 present to you.

The judge's reference that there are actually two
judges in this courtroom, he is the judge of the law and
he's going to tell you what the law is, and that's
certainly the law that you take. You folks are the judges
of the facts. You're going to decide the facts in this
case from the evidence that I present to you. And it's
your duty as jurors to present those facts, take those
facts and apply them to the law as His Honor is going to
give it to you. And when you do so, then decide if he's
guilty.

It's an honor to be before y'all. I've been doing
this 30 years. I love every minute of coming in and
talking to juries. It's a great system we have. It's a
fair system that we have. 2And I want to tell you I do
appreciate your time and attention. If it wasn't for you
folks, my job would be nonexistent. We néed Jjurors to
come in from everyday life and use their common sense from

every walk of life to come and do this duty that you have.
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And I just want to say it's an honor to be before you.
Also, T thank you for your time and attention.

I'll be back up to talk to you in closihg arguments.
Until then -- I don't anticipate this case going real
long, but until then I ask that you simply just listen to
my witnesses, look at the evidence I present and then
render a decision from there.

Thank you.

THE COURT: All xight. The defense is recognized.

M3. JOHNSON: May it please the Court,

Mr. Richardson.

Ladies and gentlemen, I'm Teal Johnson. As I told
you ea;lier, I'm proud and pleased to represent Jeffery
Griffin.

Jeffrey is 29 years old. He is from Greenville or
he's lived here most of his life. He attended Southside
High School here in Greenville, Scuth Caroclina. He also
lived in Florida.

This is his day in court. This incident took place
in 2018, so almost four years have passed gince he got to
be in front of you all today.

The judge is going to instruct you on a lot of legal
terms, but one of the most important terms is "presumption
of innocence.™ My client comes‘in here presumed innocent.

That's not some legal mumbo-jumbo term that, you know,
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gets thrown around. That is one of our most important
rights as citizens in this country.

And with that right is the burden of proof. The
burden of proof is entirely on this table. We have
nothing to prove to you all. My client comes in here with
nothing to prove. 1In that vein I don't know if he's going
to testify or not. He dces not have to testify. The
burden of proof is on the State of South Carolina.

And ycu're golng to hear about another important
term, reasonable doubt. They have the burden of proof and
they have to prove my client guilty beyond a reasonable
doubt. That is the highest level of procof we have in this
country.

I'm not going to talk about too much of the evidence
right now, but I want to let you know that the quickest
and the easiest answer i1s not always the right answer, and
I ask you to keep that in mind.

Also, as we go through this case, I ask you to
question everything: what was done, what was not done,
what should have been done by the police, by the State of
South Carolina, by our government. Ask that you do not
jump to any conclusions until the close of the evidence.
Don't make up your mind until you'wve heard everything. Do
not rush to judgment .in this case.

Again, I thank you for your service. My client
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thanks you. And at the end of this trial or case, I will
come back tc you and discuss all of the evidence, and I
will ask that you find Mr. Griffin not guilty.

Thank vyou.

THE COURT: All right. State call the first witness.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the
Court. The State will call Javier Ochoa.

THE CLERK: Mr. Ochoa, please step up here, place
your left hand on the Bible and raise your right hand.
WHEREUPON,

JAVIER OCHOCA
After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. Please
state your full name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Master Deputy Javier Ochoa.

J)IRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Sir, where are you employed?
Fi Greenville County Sheriff's Office.
Q And how long have you been with the Greenville County
Sheriff's Office?
A Approximately seven and a half years.
Q and is that your total law enforcement experience or

do you have any other?

A No, sir. I've been with Charleston Police Department
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for seven years as well, so 14 1/2 years.

Q Okay. Now, presently, what's your duties with the
Greenville County Sheriff's Office?

A I'm assigned to uniform patrol.

Q Okay, sir. And is that general -- just general
patrol throughout the ceounty?

A Yeas, sir.

Q Okay. And were you on duty on November the 28th of
20187

iy I believe it says November 24th.

I'm sorry.

Yes.

November 24th. Sorry.

Yes, sir.

© L ¢ - @)

Okay. And on that day were you patrolling -- what

of Greenville County were you patrolling?

T
ot}
H
o

West Greenville.

Okay. And did you get dispatched to a 7-Eleven?
Yes, sir, I did.

Okay. And where was that located?

5055 0l1ld Buncombe Road.

And is that in Greenville County?

Yes, sir, it is.

And what were you dispatched for?

= OB T R o B © B

Armed robbery in progress.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
139
20
21
22
23
24

25

Javier Ocheoa Direct by Mr. Richardson 46

Q And when you have & dispatch for armed robbery in
progress, what do you do?

a Our response —- the way we respond, if it's to a —-
it just occurred, we respond with lights and sirens.

Q And did you do that?

A Yes, sir, I did.

Q Okay. And did you arrive at the 7-Eleven at some
point?
A Yes, sir, I did.

Q Okay. And what did you do once you got to the
7-Eleven?
A I made contact with the employees immediately named
Linda Howes and Charles Henderson. They had -- the first
thing I do is ask them if they're injured, which they were
not. They had told me that a suspect just left on foot.
MS, JOHNSON: Objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: What's the basis?
MS. JOHNSON: Calls for hearsay, "they told me.™
MR. RICHARDSON: It's part of his investigation.
It's a res gestae.
THE COQURT: Yeah. Overruled.
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Go ahead, sir.
A Mr. Charles had given me a description of the suspect

which just left the area. I know that right before I got
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there, dispatch had said that they just been robbed at

gunpoint and the subject had fled on foot towards a

Publix.

Q Did he reference the direction that the suspect had
fled?

A He pointed, from what I remember, towards the Publix.

I was basically getting his description as accurately as. I
could, which was described as a black male, 6'3" to 6'5",
medium build wearing blue track pants, blue track shirt,
yellow gloves, dark mask and a skull cap.

Q Okay. And did he reference whether he left on foot
or by vehicle?

A He left on foot, sir.

Q Okay. Let me show you what has been marked as
State's Exhibit Number 2. Do you recognize this, sir?

A Yes, sir, I do.

Q Okay. And does that accurately depict the location?

A Yes, sir, it does.

Q And has it been changed or altered in any form or
fashion?

A No, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, at this time the State
would offer State's Exhibit 2 into evidence.
THE COURT: All right. Any objection from defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.
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THE CQURT: All right. State's Bxhibit Number 2 is

admitted into evidence without objection.

(WHEREUPQON, State's Exhibit Number 2 was admitted into

evidence.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q 8ir, if you could just step down real quick.
Now, you see a reference of 5055 0ld Buncombe Road on

there?
A Yes, sir.
Q Okay. What is this? Is this the 7-Eleven?
E:\ This (indicating) is the 7-Eleven, yes, sir.
Q Okay. And can you show the jury the direction the
victim told you that the suspect had run on foot?
A When I first -- right before I arrived on scene, I
was traveling in this (indicating) direction. I was
advised by dispatch first he ran across the parking lot
towards the Publix. And then when I got there, I can't
remember exactly because I don't have it in my report, but
I think that the complainant pointed towards that
(indicating) direction, is what I remember as clear as I
can. But ---
Q Okay. WNow, is Poinsett Highway located anywhere in
this vicinity?
A Yes, sir.

Q Can you show the jury approximately where that is?
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. It's in that direction almost parallel to 0ld

Buncombe Road. Poinsett Highway is that way (indicating).

Q So Poinsett Highway is in this {(indicating)
direction?
A Yes, sir.

Q And that's the highway that runs back from Travelers
Rest to Greenville?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. You can-have a seat, sir.

Now, once you obtained that description of the
suspect, what did you do with it? Did you radio it out?
A Yes, I did. But before I did that, other deputies
had made contact and engaged in a foot pursuit with the
suspect described by dispatch before I was able to relay
the information out.

After the suspect that -- was caught by the other
deputies, then I quickly relayed that information. I also
added that the suspect from the victim/complainant, which
is the employee, the suspect had also a silver colored
handgun that he used to demand money with;

Q Okay. And you reference a description already being
radiced out. That was by dispatch?

A Yes.

Q Okay. From the 9-1-1 call?

A Yes, sir.
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Q Okay. Now, were you, at some point in time, I
believe you referenced this, you were informed that a
suspect was in custody; is that correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q Okay. At that point in time, did you obtain a photo
c¢f the suspect?
A Yes,
0 And how did you get that?
A I sent it to the deputy who was on scene via text.
Q Okay. &and where did you get that?
A From the store surveillance.
Q Okay. And so referenced in the store surveillance,
did you actually view the surveillance video at the store?
Yes, I did, sir.
And who provided that to you?
The store employee.

And that would be Charles?

A

Q

A

¢

A Yes.
Q And did you watch it at that time?

A Yes,'I did.

Q OCkay. And that's where you got the photo from?

A Yes, sir.

Q And prior to this case, let me show you what's been

marked State's Exhibit 3, do you recognize that as prior

to this case the video that you watched?
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A Yes, I do.
Q Okay. And does it accurately depict what you saw on
that day back in November?
A Yes, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: Okay. At this time, Your Honor, we
would offer State's Exhibit 3 into evidence.

THE COURT: 2All right. Any objection from the
defense?

MS. JOHNSON: Just clarification. This is the
surveillance video?

MR. RICHARDSON: Yes.

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, I would just object as to
foundation.

THE COURT: All right. 1I'll overrule. State's
Exhibit Number 3 is admitted into evidence over objection.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 3 was admitted into

evidence.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Is this the surveillance of the incident as it
happened?
A Yes.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 3, a video, is played
in open court.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q Okay. 8Sir, can you describe what is happening here?
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A May I stand up?
C Yes,
A Yes, sir. At this point the suspect has walked into
the 7-Eleven through these doors and had brandished a
weapon demanding money from the clerk.
Q Okay. Can you just show that to the jury one more
time? I believe that was blocking them. Where's the
suspect?
A Right here. The doors are fight here. The suspect
walked in demanding money from the clerk. He had —- well,
before this little -- I think a few seconds before this,
he had brandished a silver in color handgun. And this
white piece right here is a pillowcase where he put the
money (indicating throughout).
Q And what is on his hands?
A Yellow gloves.
0. And let me just ask you right now, did you ever
attempt to obtain any fingerprints in this case?
A No, sir.
Q Why not?
A Because he was wearing gloves.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 3, a video, continued

to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q We're having a hard time stopping it.
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Do you see his gun right here?
A Yes, sir. It was right here (indicating) in his
right hand. This is Mr. Henderson right here

{indicating), the clerk. And that's where he's demanding

money.
Q And what is Mr. Henderson doing at this time?
a Giving him money. And I believe in his statement he

said he was taking his time so he can get an accurate
description of the‘suspect as best he could. The suspect
at that time became irate and said "hurry." |

0 Okay. And his clothing, you've menticned the gloves.

Do you recognize anything else as far as his sleeves and

Jjacket?
A He's wearing a -- he's wearing —— well, he's
wearing the blue —- the dark color tracksuit described to

me as a blue tracksuit or blue track shirt, blue track
pants. If I remember correctly, it was a skullcap and a

dark mask. 2nd then I don't think I put anything about

the sleeve on there, but that's -- everything else was in
my report.

Q Okay. And you reccgnize the sleeve as being a white
colox?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. I'm going to play the whole video for the

Jjury.
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(WEEREUPON, State's ﬁxhibit Number 3, a video, continued
to play in open court.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q And there he leaves on foot?
A Yes, sir. Correct.
MR. RICHARDSON: Okay. 8ir, you can have a seat.
And, Your Honer, I'm noticing that this TV is not
working.
THE COURT: It's not working?
MR. RICHARDSON: No, siyx. The jurors have a hard
time seeing that from here.
THE COURT: We checked it this morning and it was on.
We'll see what we can do. We'll keep working on it.
MR. RICHARDSCN: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Okay. 8Sir, now, once the suspect had been
apprehended, did anything further happen as far as your
duties were concerned?
A Yes, sir. Once I learned that the suspect was
apprehended, I guickly asked Mr. Henderson what the
suspect had taken. And I found out that it was just cash.
Cnce ---
0 And did you get —-- I'm sorry. Go ahead.
A I'm sorry.

Q Did you get the amount?
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A Yeah. And so once they caught him, they placed him
under arrest. I advised one of the deputies on the radio
that the suspect had taken cash and that he had a silver
handgun in his possession. After patting him down,
searching, they located the cash and a silver revolver on
him is what I was told. That's when I reviewed the video.
And then --—-

Q At some point -- let me ask you, at some point in
time, was the cash returned to the 7-Eleven?

A Yes, sir, it was. Deputy Greer, who was one of the
deputies who had apprehended the suspect, returned the
money. It was counted, and it was totalled to $§156.06.

Q And how much was reported to you to be taken from the
7-Eleven?

A That exact amount.

0 Let me hand you what's been marked State's Exhibit 4.
Sir, do you reccgnize this photograph?

A Yes, sir, I do.

0 And does that accurately depict what is being shown
there?

A Yes, sir.

Q Has it been changed or altered in any form or
fashion?

A No, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: At this time, Your Honor, the State
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would offer State's Exhibit Number 4 into evidence.
THE COURT: All right. Any objection from the
defendant?
MS. JOHNSON: Neo, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. State's Exhibit Number 4 is
admitted into evidence without objection.
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 4 was admitted into
evidence,)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Okay. Sir, can you tell the jury what this is
depicting?
A This is the money that was -- that was retrieved from
the suspect and was brought back to the 7-Eleven after he
was apprehended.
Q And is it y'all's policy to return money once it's

been retrieved in a crime?

A Yes, sir.
Q Did you take that photo or did you have somebody else
take 1t?

a\ I believe somebody else took it. I think ---
Q But you were there? You were there at the time?
A Yes, sir. I was there.
MR. RICHARDSON: Beg the Court's indulgence.
Thank you, sir. That's all the questions I have.

Please answer any questions defense counsel may have.
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THE COURT: All right. Cross.
MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court.
CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. JOHNSON:

Q Good morning, Deputy.
A Good morning, ma'am.
Q I see that you're wearing your body cam today.

A Uh-~huh.

Q And you also were wearing your body cam during this

incident, correct?

A Correct.

Q The entire time while ycu were in the store.

A Yes. Yes, ma'am.

Q And it's important to wear your body cam so that you

have an accurate, I guess, recording of what happened in
case you need to go back and watch it again like four

years later, correct?

A Yes.

0 Okay. And you also had yeour in-car video -- or,
excuse me -- your dash cam running the whole time.

A I believe so.

Q Just in case, you know, something -- that machine

captures video that may be important to you, correct?
A Yes.

0 Or important to the case.
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Have you had a chance to review your body-cam footage

today?

A Today?

Q Or from November 24th for today's hearing.

A Yes.

Q Okay. And you talked to both store clerks, correct?
a I believe I talked ~—- yes. But more to

Mr. Henderson.

Q The female Clark?

A No. Mr. Henderson, the male.
Q You also talked to Linda Haynes [sic].
A I believe I spoke to her briefly, though, because she

didn't remember much of the description.

Q But you did talk to her.

A I can't remember how much I talked to her. If I did,
it must have been brief.

Q Okay. When did you review your body-cam footage for

today's hearing?

A Probably a few weeks ago.
Q Qkay. Do you need to review it again?
A No, ma'am.

Q Okay. Because you talked to the female clerk, and
she gives you a description, and you also talked to the
male clerk, Mr. Henderson, correct?

A I believe so.
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Q Ckay. And both clerks deny the suspect is wearing
white -- a white sleeve. They tell you that, correct?

A I don't remember that.

Q Do you need to watch your body cam again?

A No, ma'am.

Q Okay. But they both tell you at one point that
there's no white sleeve, just a dark track suit.

A Right.

Q And at one point, the male clerk says the suspect is
wearing a white mask,

A I don't remember that at all.

Q You don't remember that?

A No.

Q That it matched the pillowcase, the white pillowcase
and the white mask?

A I'm sorry. What's your question?

Q That he gave a description of the suspect wearing a
white mask.

A I do remember wvaguely him saying that in the body-cam
footage, but that could have been, you know, in the heat
of the moment, people give sometimes inaccurate
descriptions.

Q But he said that.

A I believe he said that, vyes.

Q And you got the store video which we saw, and that
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was the inside video from inside of the store, correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q You didn't ¢get any outside footage -~-

A No, ma'am.

Q —-—- from -~ for either side?

A No, ma'am.

Q You didn't get any DNA or have anybody come in and
dust for, I guess -- not dusting for DNA, but take any DNA

or possible DNA around the register area?
No. No, ma'am.

You didn't have any fingerprints taken.
No, ma'am.

And shoe imprints.

No.

Lo I o I o I

And the clexrk gave you a description of the suspect
being in his 40s; do you remember that?

A I do not.

Q African-American male in his 40s?

A I don't have an approximate age. I just have the
description, his race, height, weight and what he was
wearing. I don't have the age. In my report at least I
don’'t have that.

Q And what does your report give the age of

Mr. Griffin?

A I don't have one because I never made contact with
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Mr., Griffin.

Q Ckay. But you have that the suspect was 6’3" to

g'5"7?

A Correct.

Q Wearing dark clothes?

: Blue track pants and a blue track shirt.

Q Do you remember saying on your bedy cam this is going

to be a slam-dunk caseé
A I don't remember saying that. No, ma'am.
Q And you didn't do any follow-up like the next day orx
any time thereafter this incident?
A I don't remember when it was, but I put I obtained a
thumb drive copy of the video and the manager signed the
evidence form over. I don't remember when I did that. I
can't remember if it was the same day or the next day, but
I did obtain it.
Q But that was essentially all you did?
A Correct,
MS, JOHNSON: Beg the Court's indulgence.
Thank you, Deputy. That's all the questions I have.
THE COURT: All right. Redirect?
MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Deputy, you may step down.
MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, this officer, I believe,

is on third shift. May he be excused?
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THE COURT: Any objection from defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. You are excused then,

All right. Next witness.

MR. RICHARDSON: The State calls Charles
Henderson-Blake to the stand.

THE CLERK: Mr. Henderson-Blake, please place your
left hand on the Bible and raise your right hand.
WHEREUPON,

CHARLES HENDERSON-BLAKE
After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. Please
state your full name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Charles Henderson-Blake.

DIRECT EXAMINATTION
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Good morning, Charles.
How old are you?

A That's a good qguestion. I forgot. Like 46,

Q Okay. Sometimes I wish I could forget mine.
Are you presently employed?
A Yes.
Q Where at?
A At 7-Eleven, 5055 0ld Buncombe Road.
Q Okay. 1Is it the same 7-Eleven that was the incident
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-— that this incident happened at?

Yes,

A
Q Okay. How long have you been employed at 7-Eleven?
A Ten years.

Q All right, sir. Now, let me take your memory back to
November 24, 2018. That day, were you working?

Yes.

What shift?

I was working third.

And what time does third generally ---

T:00.

You get off at 7 a.m.?

Yes.

S R ¢ -

Okay. And on that date do you recall the incident
we're here about happening?

A Oh, ves.
Q Okay. And that day, were you a clerk in the store?

Or what were your duties on that particular day?

2 I was receiving freight delivery.

Q You refer to freight delivery.

A I had a semitruck with two drivers from McLean that
had just delivered and was currently -- well, at that time

were sitting in my parking lot getting ready to pull off
and leave after they had just dropped all of our goods and

services for the store.
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Q Okay. Now, what happened?
A Well, Linda showed up, she came in. I gave her an
assessment of where we were at. And the drivers were
outside. It was raining heavily. And then the door dung,
and there was a figure.

The door did what?

The doorbell rang.

Okay.

Q
A
Q
:\ That's when you walk in it. It goes "bing-bong."
Q It always -——
piy Yeah.
Q Okay.
A And out of habit I look up and I say "hello" or “good
rmorning," some variation of. And there is a figure there
that is dressed very similarly to what we had on the video
with their mask on. And the first thing that they say to
me in response is, "Do you know who I am?"

And I being me said, "Not with that mask on your
face.™

And then he came over and sald that he wanted all of
the money, give me all of the money.
Q Did he have anything in his hand?
A Yes. There was a shiny reveolver, and then there was

a pillowcase that had a lavender scent to it. BAnd he

pushed it across the counter at us and wanted us to fill
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it up with the money from the drawers.

Q Okay. Let me just hand you real quick what's been
marked State's Exhibit 5, 6 and 7. Have you reviewed
these photos?

A I have seen them before.

Q Okay. Can you just loock at each one real gquick to
make sure it's the same ones?

A {Reviews exhibits) Yes.

Q Okay. Sir, and do those photos accurately depict

what happened to you on that day?

A Yes.

Q And where did those photos come from?

A They came from our surveillance system at 7-Eleven.

Q Okay. And do they appear to be changed or altered in

any form or fashion?
A No.

MR, RICHARDSON: Your Honor, at this time the State
would offer State's Exhibit 5, 6 and 7 into evidence.

THE COURT:' Any objection from defense?

MS, JOHNSON: No, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: All right. Exhibits -- State's
Exhibits 5, 6 and 7 are admitted into evidence without
objection.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Numbers 5, 6 and 7 were

admitted into evidence.)
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BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Okay. And sir, can you £flip the -- okay. Sir, I am

referring to State's Exhibit Number 5. Who is that?

A That is me.

Q Okay. And is this the individual that was robbing
you?

a That i1s the individual that was robbing.

Q Ckay. And what's in his right hand?

A Well, that is the silver revolver.

Q Did you recognize it as being a gun?

A Yes.

Q Okay. ©No question in your mind?

A No.

Q Ckay. Also, what do you recognize on his hands?
A I recognize yellow gloves that are like what we carry

within the store.

Q Okay. Let me show you State's Exhibit 6. What is he
doing with the weapon at that point?

A It is being pointed at me.

Q And State's Exhibit 7, what is this a picture of? Is
that the front door?

A That is the front door.

0 And what does he have in his hand there?

a That should be the pillowcase.
Q

Okay. ©Now, I think you referenced to the jury he
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demanded money at that time?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And did you, in fact, give him money?

A Yes. And I opened up the drawer, and I started with
unrolled pennies ---

Q Okay.

A --- and then I went to unrolled nickels.

Q All right. And did you eventually give him some

Q All right. Do you recall the amount of money today
that you gave him?

A The amount that was taken from the store I remember
being scmething along the lines of $152 and some change.
Q Okay. And was that money eventually returned to you?
A Yes., I remember having to count it.

Q Okay. &nd did you do, for lack of a better term, an
accounting?

A Well, we had to fill out our paperwork for it, yeah.
Q Okay. And the amount of money that you received
back, what was it? Was it the amount that was actually
taken; do you recall?

A Yes. Because when we had the robbery, while we were
waiting on the police to do whatever they needed to do to

find the person or not find the person, we had to close
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out the store, lock the door, count the drawers and audit

the computer to get an exact amount for our records.

Q And so I'm referring to State's Exhibit 4 on the
screen.

a Uh-huh.

Q That's the money that was returned to you?

A Yes, it was.

o] Was this (indicating) included? I'm pointing here.
2\ Yes.

Q What is that?

A Those are rolled dimes.

Q Is that the rolled dimes that you referred to just a

little bit to the jury?

A Yes. Well, no. I referred to unrolled nickels. I
didn't get to the dimes yet.

Q Okay. My apologies. I may have cut you off.

A But he left without getting the gold dollars or the
quarters that had been in the drawer.

Q Now, were you able to see the suspect's face at this
point in time?

A I could only glance at him, because the thing of it
is, is you don't want to make direct eye contact with your
robber because you don't want to freak them out or
encourage them to feel like they're being stared at. So

you'll make infrequent glances. BAnd mainly, I was trying
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to look at the wrists because I was trying to see if there
were any tattoos that might be underneath in the wrist
area under the gloves in the space right there.
Q Okay. And were you focusing on the gun also?
A I was focusing on the gun. I wanted to make sure
that the gun stayed more or less focused on me and that
the robber's attention was on me, because Linda, Linda
Howes, because her name keeps getting mispronounced, I
wanted to keep her safe and calm.
Okay. And was it you that dealt with the robber?
I was the primary point of contact.

And the gun that you saw, can you describe the color?

Q

A

Q

A Silver.
0] Do you know if it was an automatic or revolver?

A I am not a gun expert, but I would say revolver.
Q And ultimately, you're the one that pulled up the
surveillance video to give to police?

A I initially pulled up the surveillance video. My
manager's the one that would have downloaded it to

everything for them.

Q Okay. But you viewed it?

A I viewed 1it?

Q Yeah. You saw the surveillance video?

Y\ Well, I pulled it up. I didn't need to like look at

it because ===
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But you saw it today.
I saw it today.
And does that accurately depict what happened?

That very much accurately depicts what happened.

LON o I I o)

Okay. And when the suspect left, did he leave on
foot or get in a car or what?
A He left on foot.

And I remember he was like walking strange, like
slightly limping on one side. It was raining. It was
cold. And he was like moving -—- I was like shocked at how
slowly he was moving for someone who had just robbed
7-Eleven. And I'm on the phone calling our asset
protection with one phone and using the other phone to
call the police, and I'm watching him go right alongside
the McLean's truck, past them as they're getting ready to
go and golng across the streét and going down the road to
where the bus stop is by the Publix.

Q 2nd the bus stop by the Publix, is that actually on
Poingsett Highway?

A No. The bus stop itself was on the little side road
that. is directly in front of the Publix. So that was
about the vanishing point where I lost visual of him.

Q Okay.

A But I was telling them he's headed towards the

Publix. So ——-
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Q And Poinsett Highway, where does it runm in relation
to Publix?
A It is like triangular. So you've got Poinsett
Highway that runs there and the little road that is Publix
kind of like goes.diagonal to it.

MR. RICHARDSON: Okay. Sir, that's all the questions
I have. Please answer any questions defense counsel may
have.

THE COURT: All right. Cross-examination.

MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court.

EXA

BY MS. JOHNSON:
Q Mr. Henderson, do you remember when you first met
with Deputy Ochoa telling him the gun may have been fake?
A No. I told him that I didn't know if it was real or
it was fake or what.
Q And you also said to him you thought is this a Jjoke
because of the gun being fake or possibly fake?
A Yeah. That -- that was my internal thought when he
first walked through the door is you've got to be kidding
me. This -- right. So ---
Q But you said to the officer you didn't know whether
or not the gun was real.
A Well, I didn't get to touch it or examine it, so I

just went on my best guess.
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Q I understand.

And do you remember telling the officer that the
suspect had a white mask on?
A It could have been. It could have not have been. I
really did not look at his face.
QR Do you remember saying that you were mentally taking
notes and you saw a white mask and a white pillowcase?
A I did say I saw a white pillowcase. I may have said
that I saw a white mask. But to be honest, I really
wasn't focused on his face or his head simply because we
have video cameras. I didn't need to focus on what color
the mask was.
Q But that's not the gquestion I asked. Do you remember
making that statement that, yes ---
A After four years, no.
Q And you also described the suspect as an older,
middle—-aged man in his 40s°?
A That was a guesstimation on my point based on the
voice. Because I will be honest, this was one robber that
sounded really tired.
Q But that is what you told the police, an older,
middle-aged black man in his 40s.
A That was my guess.
Q And you deny or you tell the officer there was no

white sleeve. They ask you specifically about a white
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sleeve, and you say, "No. He was not wearing a white

sleeve."

yiy I did not detect a white sleeve, so therefore, I did

not say there was a white sleeve.

Q You called 9-1-1 or is it Ms. Haynes [sic]?

A I called 9-1-1, She was trying to call our store

manager, and on the other phone I had asset protection

which I was on heold for.

Q So do you remember who you called first, 9-1-1 or the

asset protection?

A I called them simultaneocusly.

Q With your cell phone and the store phone?

A Yes. As I locked the door according to policy.

That's how I could stand at the door and see where the

suspect in question was going is because I was locking the

door according to policy and watching the figure walk off.
MS. JOHNSON: Beg the Court's indulgence,

BY MS. JOHNSON:

The suspect had ne tattoos?

None that I could detect,

No glasses?

None that I could detect.

L O A o 2 -

You never used the term lavender pillow scent —-

pillowcase until today.

A Well, if it was not written down, not said at the
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time, it is a small detail, really. I could smell the
fabric softener. I identify it as lavender.

Q Well, you gave a statement to law enforcement shortly
thereafter that event, correct?

A Yes.

Q Have you had a chance to review that statement?

A Not really.

Q And you also said that the suspect said "I am here"

as soon as he walked in the door?

A Okay.

Q Is that what you said earlier?

A I remember him coming in and saying, "Do you know who
I am?"

Q Excuse me. "Do you know who I am?"

A Right.

Q I'm going to hand you your previous statement, your

written statement, give you a chance to read that,
A Ckay. (Reviews document.)
Q The statement about "do you know who I am," is that

in your statement today?

A Yes.
Q Yes or no?
L Yes., However, I would point out that this statement

was handwritten by the officer, and when you give

statements to officers, they sometimes leave out details
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because they're going so fast.

Q So he left that detail out?

A Yes.

Q And he also left out the part about the lavender
scent?

A I don't know if I said anything about the lavender

scent to him. I just remember telling him I could smell

the fabric softener.

Q Four years later you're talking about the lavender
scent.
A (Non-verbal answer.)

MS. JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Henderson.

THE COURT: All right. Any redirect?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. You may step down.

Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to take our morning
break, so if you would, step out teo the jury room. And
please don't discuss the case, and I'll call you back out
here in a little bit.

(WHEREUPON, the jury exits the courtroom at 11:17 a.m.)

THE COURT: All right. We'll be in recess.

(WHEREUPON, a recess 1s taken at 11:17 a.m.)

THE COURT: Anything from the State before we bring

the jury back in?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State.
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TAE COURT: Anything from defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Let's bring them in.

(WHEREUPON, the jury entered the courtroom at 11:41 a.m.)

THE CCURT: All right. I understand you selected a
forelady. And, Madam Forelady, you are it. You are to
cccupy that seat every day, and the two alternates will
stay in those two seats as well.

I didn't introduce you all to the gentleman who is
sitting with me up here, and I actually forgot to do it
yesterday, a few jurors on there. This is Robert Barrow.
He is my law clerk.

He has just finished law school. He has taken the
bar exam and waiting on those results, and he will get
those soon. And I know that he will become a lawyer here
in a few weeks. So he will work with me for a year, and
theﬁ he'll go out into the real world of practice. I
apologize for not introducing him to you.

All right. Ready to proceed. State call the next
witness,

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the
Court.

The State calls James Leathers to the stand.

THE CLERK: Mr. Leathers, please place your left hand

on the Bible and raise your right hand.
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WHEREUPON,
JAMES 'LEATHERS

After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

TEE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. Please
state your full name for the record.

THE WITNESS; James B. Leathers.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. RICHARDSON:
e} Sir, where are you employed?
). At the Greenville County Sheriff's Office.
Q And how long have you been employed with Greenville,

County?

A 23 years, I think.

0 Okay, sir. And in what capacity are you employed
with them today?

B Today I am a sergeant in K-9 services, but at the
time of the incident, I was a doyg handler in Kfé serviges.
Q Okay. Can you just explain to the jury those duties
being a K-9 handler?

A So at the time, I was working two dogs, but the dog
that I used in this incident was what we call a patrol
narcotics dog meaning that he's trained to find suspects,
and he's also trained to find evidence, and he's also
trained to use his nose to find. the odor of illegal drugs.

8o that's what I did at that time.
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Q Ckay. &And is there any type of certification that
comes with this?

A Yes, sir. We certify yearly through the North
American Police Work Dog Association, and that's in the
disciplines of article search, obedience, aggression
control, area research, tracking and drug detention.

Q Okay, sir. And have you had training in that
regards?

A Yes, sir. With this particular dog, I had gone
through a 600-hour training class when I was first
assigned the dog in 2012. But I had also worked another
dog that was of the same type previously., So I'wve had
several thousand hours of dog-related training.

O And what's the name cof this dog?

A The dog in this incident, his name is Hondo.

Q Okay. And with Hondo, have you had particular
searches that you've done with that particular dog in the
fieldz

A Yesg, sir. Both in training and in deployments for
actual cases, yes, sir.

Q Okay. Well, how many in training?

A In training, several hundred.

Q How many in the field?

A Probabkly less than a hundred at the time of this

incident.
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Q Okay. And in particular, article searches were a
part of that?

A Yes, sir. This was the 630 -- I don't have the exact
number. I've got it written down. I've used the dog 639
times, but not all of those were for article searches
specifically.

Q And as far as article searches are concerned, was 1t
~- do you know the number that it was?

A I do not have the exact number, no, sir.

Q Let me ask you this. Have you been qualified as an
expert in the state courts?

: I have, yes, sir. In tracking incident.

Q Okay. And have you been qualified in article
searches or is it just tracking?

A Just in tracking, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: OQOkay. Your Eonor, at this time we
would move to qualify him in K-9 article searches as an
expert.

THE COURT: All right. Any objection or voir dire
from the defendant?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: K-9 article searches; is that right?

MR. RICHARDSCN: That's correct, Your Honor,

THE CCOURT: All right. The witness is gqualified as

an expert in K-9 article -- article searches.
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Ladies and gentlemen, normally, witnesses can only
testify as to personal knowledge, observation and cannot
give opinions in cases. However, under our rules, it
allows a witness who has been qualified via education,
experience or knowledge can testify as to opinions.

Now, expert witness’'s testimony, their testimony is
to be considered and evaluated just as any other witness.
They're not to be given any greater weight -- greater
weight than any other witnesses. You are to determine
their weight when you deliberate in the case. But they
are, as expert witnesses, allowed to give an opinion in
the case.

All right. Yes, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the
Court.

BY MR, RICHARDSON:

Q 8ir, how -- can you just briefly explain to the jury
how you go about an article search with a dog?

A Yes, sir. BSo we're asking the dog to use his nose to
hunt for items that have fresh human scent on them be it a
discarded set of keys or it could be practically anything.
And the way we do that is we reward the dog when he finds
items that have been strategically discarded during
training for him to find. When he locates those, then he

gets to play tug-of-war with me, the handler, because
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that's something that he enjoys doing.

And so anytime we do an article search with a dog
like this, and in this case this particular dog, I
determine, based on the circumstances, whether I'm going
to let the dog work on a long leash or whether it's safe
enough to let him work off leash,

But he actively hunts with his nose, but rather than
hunting for birds, he's hunting for items that have fresh
human scent on them.

Q Okay, sir. And in this particular case, did you have

him harnessed?

a T had him on a 15-foot leash on his collar, yes, sir.
Q And were you told where to search and what to search
for? |

A I was told that the suspect had been arrested and

about where. And I was also told that we were looking for
gloves. And I used that area to -- is where I started.

Q So the area —- you were informed of the area by
another officer?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. BAnd was that area on Poinsett Highway?

A Yes, sir.

Q I'm going to ask for you to identify what's been
marked as State's Exhibit 1. Do you recognize that, sir?

A Yes, sir, I do.
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Q Ckay. BAnd does that accurately depict the area that
vou searched?
iy Yes, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: Okay. At this time, Your Honor, I'm
sorry, we would move State's Exhibit Number 1 into
evidence.

THE COURT: All right. B&Any objection from defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. State's Exhibit Number 1 is
admitted into evidence without objection.

(WHEREUPCN, State's Exhibit Number 1 was admitted into

evidence.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Okay. 8Sir, if you could, come down and point out to
the jury the areas that you were told to search and, in
fact, the areas that you did search.
A So this general area down here is where I stopped my
vehicle because this is the area where I was told that the
arrest was made. And then I had the dog search on this
side of the road, up past this lake area, all the way
until the gloves were found in this general vicinity here.
The dog -- so the dog searched on that 15-foot leash
throughout this area here until -- until the dog found and
laid down at, that's what he's trained to do when he finds

the item that he's searching for, and he laid down there
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as it was, in fact (indicating throucghocut}.
Q So the lay down is the indication to you that
something has been found?
A That's the final ~-- what we call the training final
indication or the training‘final response that he has —-
he has found the source of where he's getting that smell.
Q Ckay, sir. You can have a seat.

And I believe you testified, in fact, your dog did,
in fact, find some gloves.
A Yes, sir.
Q Let me hand you what's been marked as State's
Exhibit 8 and 9 and 10, sir. Can vou identify those? Can
you identify them?
A I can.

Go through each photo. Can you identify those?

Q
A Well, this is ---
Q I just want you to say "yes" or "no."
A Yes, sir. (Reviews exhibits) I can identify this
one, and I can identify this one.
Is it three photos?
Q Yes.
A And I can identify this photo, yes, sir.
Q Okay. Do they accurately depict what you were

viewing on the day that you were called to that scene?

A Yes, sir.
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Q And do they appear to be altered or changed in any
form or fashion?
A They do not appear to be altered.

MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, at this time the State
would offer State's 8, 9 and 10 into evidence.

THE COURT: All right. Any objection from the
defendant?

MS. JOHNSON: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. State's Exhibits 8, 9 and 10
are admitted into evidence without objection.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Numbers 8, ¢ and 10 were
admitted into evidence.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Okay, .sir. I will show you and referring to state's
exhibit now into evidence Number 9. Do you recognize that
photo?
A Yes, sir.
Q And what is that?
A That is the -- that is the gloves that my dog alerted
to on the side of Poinsett Highway.
Q And then on State's Exhibit 107
A And that's a cleose-up of the same gloves in the same
location.
Q Okay. And State’'s BExhibit 8°?

a That's a picture of Poinsett Highway as one goes from
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Furman toward Greeriville, .and that's me with the dog
walking away.
Q Do you khow how far this arez is from the 7-Eleven on

01ld Buncombe Road?

A I don't khow the exact distance, but it's not very

far. It's basically ofn the other side ¢f the large
shopping center.

Q Ckay. Walking distance?

A Yes, sir.

Q Let me hand you what's been marked Stdte's
Exhibit 13. Do you recognize these?
A Yes, sir.
Q What are those?
A Those are the gloves that my dog found on that day.
MR. RICHARDSON: At this time, Your Honor, the State
would offer State's Exhibit 13 inte evidence.
THE COURT: All right. Any objection from the
defendant?
MS. JOHNSON: ©No, Your Honor.
THE CQURT: All right. ©State's Exhibit 13 is
admitted into evidence without objection.
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 13 was admitted into
evidence.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q Those are the same gloves that are in that photo that
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you viewed?
A Yes, sir.
Q Now, you mentioned, sir -- let me ask you this. Is
there a lot of articles along Poinsett Highway?
A Oh, yes, sir.
0 Okay. Well, why -- why is your dog not hitting on
those articles and he hit on these?
2 Because the dogs are trained to find fresh human
scent. Items that they discarded that have been on the
side of the road for a period of time, at a certain point,
they're no longer interesting to the dog, and so he
ignores them as just debris that would just happen to be
along a highway where somebody may have carelessly
discarded it.
0 Okay, sir. And so, based upon your expert opinion,
were these gloves recently worn by a human being?
A Yes, siz. Or handled by a human being.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you. That's all the guestions
I have. Please answer any questions defense counsel may
have,

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Cross?

R ON

BY MS. JOHNSON:

Q Deputy, you didn't submit those gloves for any DNA
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testing.
A No, sir -- no, ma'am, I did not.

Q And you didn't perform any DNA testing on those
gloves.

A No, ma'am. I'm not a -— I'm not a DNA expert.

Q And to your knowledge, DNA testing was not conducted
on those gloves?

A I have no knowledge about what‘testing was done on
those gloves or not, ma'an.

Q And you came out to the scene -- you have in your

report 1100 hours, 11:00 in the morning?

A That's when I started my search, yes, ma'am.

Q And this took place allegedly at 6:53 in the morning?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q So roughly feour hours later?

A Yes, ma'am.

MS. JOHNSQON: Thank you, Deputy. That's all the
questions I have.

THE COURT: All right. Any redirect?

MR. RICHARDSON: ©Ncothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. You may step down. Thank
you, sir.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, the State calls Jarred

Greer to the stand.
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THE CLERK: Mr. Greer, please place your left hand on
the Bible and raise your right hand.
WHEREUPON,

JARRED GREER

After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. Please
state your full name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Jarred Paul Greer.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Sir, where are you employed?
A I work for the Greenville County Sheriff's Office.
Q And in what capacity?
A As of right now, I work for the Directed Patrol Unit.
We do low-level street narcotics, prostitution and
gambling. At the time of the incident, I was working
Uniform Patrol answering calls for service.
Q Okay. And how long have you been in law enforcement?
A A little over seven years now.
Q Okay. So let me take you back to that date,
November 24, 2018, when this happened. Were you on patrol

that night?

A 1 was actually just coming on shift that morning.
Q Okay. It was actually early morning; is that
correct?
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A Yes, sir.
0 Okay. And when you were Jjust coming on shift, were

you dispatched anywhere?

A Yeah. So I had just gotten in my patrol vehicle and
left our Law Enforcement Center. 2And I was on Poinsett
Highway already and was heading out into the area of which
T work, kind of the Cherrydale area. I believe I was
assigned to that area that day. I usually work West
Greenville, which is from -- anywhere from like Grove Road
up to TR.

Q Okay. And -- go ahead.

A T'm sorry. While I was on Poinsett Highway, dispatch
put out a BOLO saying that thefe had been an armed robbery
that had occurred on Buncombe Road at the 7-Eleven, and
basically stated that a —-- there was a black male had
robbed the store at gunpoint and had left on foot towards
Poinsett Highway.

Q I'm sorry to interrupt, but just so we can explain
for the jury, when you say "BOLO," you mean be on the
lockout?

A Yes, sir. Basically, they —-- when something -- a
violent, egregious crime occurs such as like an armed
robbery, they will put it over all of our channels, have a
loud sound will come on the radio and they'll say, hey,

you know, this incident has just occurred in this area, be
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on the lookout for a description of the suspect. Aand then
units that are close will usually go to it.
Q Okay, sir. Let me just -- 1f you can step down,
please, sir. I'm going to refer to State's Exhibit
Number 1. Can you just show the jury where you were
traveling when you were dispatched to the 7-Eleven? Do
you recognize this is Poinsett Highway?
A Yeah. 50 I was actually -~ this is closer towards
the 7-Eleven where the incident occurred (indicating).
I'm coming from the city.
0 Step to the side. I'm sorry.
a I'm coming from this (indicating) direction and going
northbound .towards the incident location. At the time
when it was BOLO'd, I was probably, I would say, maybe
five miles away.
o Okay. Now, at some point in time, did you see the
defendant on Poinsett Highway?
A Yes, I did. Me and another deputy, who was traveling
in another vehicle behind me, we were traveling northbound
coming down Poinsett Highway. And about I would say right
here (indicating) is where we saw the suspect walking on
the side of the rocad back towards the city.

The description that dispatch BOLO'd on our channel
said it was a black male that was in a blue -- some kind

of blue outfit, blue jumpsuit. BAnd in my experience in
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this area, this is not a wvery highly, you know, walked
area. Most people don't walk along this main'highway like
that. So while we were traveling in this direction, we
saw him walking back towards the city.

By that time I decided to do a U-turn to go get out
with the suspect, and I had to take my eyes off the
suspect, obviously, to safely control -- you know, safely
do a U-turn in the road. And when I got back going back
towards the city, I could see that Deputy Chadwick, who
was in the vehicle behind me, had already gotten out on
foot and was chasing the suspect. He was in a full-on

sprint behind the suspect. We were already at this

point ---

Q And when you say that, was the suspect -- was he
running?

piy Yes, sir.

Q Did you see him running?

A Oh, yeah. He was in a full-on sprint, and soc was

Deputy Chadwick, I would say, maybe 50 yards behind him.

Q Okay. And at that point what did you deo?

A At that point I was still further away, so I actually
continued on to Poinsett Highway. Bécause by this time
the suspect and Deputy Chadwick had already gotten onto
North Parker Road and were still running back towards the

city. North Parker Road actually runs into Poinsett
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Highway. BAnd so with my vehicle still being there, I felt
it was an advantage to get in front of the suspect and
kind of head him off.

And so while we were ——-

Q So just real quick, when you say that, just explain
for the jury, you're trying to get in front of him where?
Where exactly are you?

A It's not pictured here on the road anymore, but he's
running on North Parker back towards Poinsett, and I'm in
-- in my vehicle still on Poinsett basically parallel with
the suspect and with Deputy Chadwick chasing him in
pursuit.

Q Okay.

A It was also kind of dark, so I had my -~ I had a
spotlight on my vehicle, and I was spotlighting the
suspect to get -- just kind of get a better view on him,
make sure he didn't have any weapons in his hands at that
time.

About the time that I can -- that I start to get
closer to where North Parker meets Poinsett, the suspect
makes a change in direction and turns left and goes into
some very, very thick woods.

Q And can you jusi show the woods?
A It's not really pictured on here. I would say

probably right around here (indicating) is where he took a
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left and went straight into the woods.

Q And those are the same woods.

A Yes, sir. There's one big patch. You can kind of
see where this newer apartment complex ---

Q Yes, sir.

A -—-— there's a -- this {indicating) is probably all
wooded right here. But right here (indicating) is where
it's kind of cut out and it's actually grass. And that's
where I ended up getting out and going about ten to 15
feet into the woods and kind of just waited for -- I could
hear Deputy Chadwick yelling commands at the suspect, and
I could hear the suspect getting closer and closer to me
because I could hear the footsteps of him stepping on
branches and -- and leaves and stuff like that.

Q And at this point in time, are you still in your
patrol vehicle?

A No. So at this point in time, I had already -- I
came to where North Parker intersects with Poinsett
Highway and parked my vehicle and got out on foot and went

about ten to 15 foot off of the roadway.

Q Okay. And you can have a seat.
A So —-—-
Q And your -- I'm sorry, Deputy. But your purpcse was

to cut off the defendant?

A Yes, sir.
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0 Okay. - And at that point in time when you got out of
your car and you were at the edge of the woods, what
happens?

: So with it being an armed robbery, I had unholstered
my county-issued firearm and had it at the low ready. As
—- as I could hear the suspect getting closer and closer
to me, once he got, I would say, maybe about ten yards
away from me was when I turned my flashlight on and began
to give commands as well announcing my presence and saying
that I was police and to get on the ground. The suspect
immediately complied, got on the ground. And myself,
Deputy Chadwick were able to detain the suspect in
handcuffs. And at that point we took him back to my
vehicle and ---

Q Before you go there, at that time he comes out of the

‘woods, is your weapon out of your holster and pointed

towards him?

A S0 I got him before he came out of the woods
completely.

Q Okay.

A He was still about ten yards in the woods. That's

when I turned my £lashlight on and began to give commands.
Q And was your weapon out?
A Yes. It was out at the time.

Q Okay.




102

10
11
12
13
14
i5
ie6
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Jarred Greer Direct by Mr. Richardson 85

A I held cover on him until we safely had him detained
in handcuffs.
Q Okay. Now, did you question him about his name?
A Yes. So I origirally asked for his name and date of
birth, and he said his name was Moraz, M-O-R-A-Z, Griffin.
and I can't remember what date of birth he gave me. But
when he gave me that, I ran it on what we call NCIC, which
is a national database. When I ran it on there, it came
back as an alias for a Jeffery Griffin. So I ran the name
Jeffery Griffin in our local V-connect system and was able
to confirm through his prior mug shot that he was Jeffery
Griffin that we had in custody.

MS. JOHNSON: Objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Okay, sir. Now, moving on from that, did you
recognize the clothing that he had on?
A Yes. So it was like a blue jacket with, I think, one
white arm, one white sleeve,
Q Okay. And did he have anything in his hands?
A No, sir. At the time of the arrest, he had a —- I
believe it was some kind of satchel oxr some kind of —— I
think it was a pillowcase that was tied to his waist, And
when we patted him down for weapons, a firearm was found

in that bag along with cash.
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Q Okay. And did you, in fact, see the firearm?
A I did,

Q Okay. And did you see the cash?

A I did.

Q Okay. Do you remember what the firearm looked like?
Let me ask you this. Did you take control of the firearm?
:\ Noe. I'm not sure. I believe it was Deputy Chadwick
that ended up taking the firearm and placing it into
Property and Evidence.

Q Okay.

A I took the currency that was found and ended up
returning it to the store at 7-Eleven.

Q Ckay, sir. And after you returned the currency to
the 7-Eleven, is that all your involvement in the case?

A Yes, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: That's all the guestions I have.
Please answer any questions defense counsel may have.

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, I have a matter of law that I
would like to take up with the Court outside the presence
of the jury.

THE COURT: All right. ILadies and gentlemen, I have
a matter to take up with the lawyers. I'm going to excuse
you for a bit.

(WHEREUPON, the jury exits the courtroom at 12:09 p.m.)

THE COURT: A1l right. Yes, ma'am?
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MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court. Your Honor,
this deputy just testified to my client's prior mug shot
and a prier arrest. And at this time I think it is
appropriate that I move for a mistrial. I think that
information prejudices my client's right to a fair trial
today. The jury is going to know or heard that my client
has been arrested before for something else, and they
could assume that, you know, my client has a criminal
history or has been invelved in this kind of activity
before, and therefore, I would ask the Court to grant a
mistrial based on the prejudice from this officer's
testimony.

THE COURT: Mr. Richardson?

MR. RICHARDSCN: Thank you, Your Honor. Actually, I
did not hear. I had my mind on something else. I
apologize for that. But he was referencing a false name
given to him. He refers back to -- I didn't hear his
prior arrest or --=-

THE COURT: He said that he ran it in the database
and he pulled up his mug shot and it matched.

MR. RICHARDSON: Okay. And that's it. Your Honor,
that just simply references a picture. I mean, that
doesn't say that he's committed this crime or any other
crime, for that matter. It references a picture.

But with that said, it's a very minor statement that




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Jarred Greer Direct by Mr. Richardson 98

105

can be cured through a curative instruction.

THE COURT: Ms. Johnson?

MS. JOHNSON: And, Judge, you know, once the bell is
rung, I've never understood how a curative instruction
unrings the bell. I mean, that information is out now,
and, you know, mug shot, arrest, you know, is in the
jury's head. Aand I think that information is prejudicial
to my client's ability to obtain a fair trial related to
this incident.

THE COURT: Mr. Richardson, what about the witness
testified that he ran his name and he came up with a mug
shot that matched this defendant? How is that ~~ how is
that not prejudicial?

MR. RICHARDSON: Well, first, any prejudicial effect
can be cured.

THE COURT: Sometimes it can be cured, but sometimes
it can't be cured.

MR. RICHARDSON: Well, that's -~ and my point from
the State's point is that this was a very quick statement
by the officer that refers to a mug shot. He didn’t say
anything about prior arrest or convictions or crimes or
anything of that nature. All that came out was just "mug
shot." That is a guick statement that in my opinion would
not influence the jury at all, and, in fact, it can be

cured with a curative instruction.
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THE COURT: Ms. Johnson, what about a curative
instruction?

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, we would object to a curative
instruction. Again, I think the bell is already rung.
Most people who are not involved in the criminal justice
system do not have mug shots. They may be aware of mug
shots or what mug shots are, but they know that, with a
mug shot, someone has been arrested before and they can
have whatever inferences from that information. And I
would submit to the Court that 1s very prejudicial for my
client.

THE COURT: My concern, Mr. Richardson, is, granted,
there may not have been testimony about him being
arrested, but this witness brought out a mug shot and
referenced the mug shot as relating or matching up to this
defendant. And how is that not prejudicial? And it's
totally —-—-

MR. RICHARDSON: I think there -- I'm not -- there's
certainly levels of prejudice. My point being is that it
was a minor statement that was made in the course of his
rendition of what was going on, and that anything -- it
doesn't reference a particular case or anything of that
magnitude. So the reference to a mug shot in and of
itself is easily cured. The jury can disregard that.

THE COURT: I'll tell you what I'm going to do. I'm
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going to take a little short recess, I'm going to look —-
I'm going to see -— I think there are arguments, both
sides. I certainly understand the defense argument that
this witness testifying to, that talking about a mug shot
is an issue. But whether it's prejudicial or whether it
can be cured, I'm going to think about this.

We're going to take a little recess. I'm going to
see 1f I can find something on —-- we're going to take a
recess.

(WHEREUPON, a recess is taken at 12:14 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Taking a look at it, and at
this time I'm going to deny the motion for a mistrial.
Your motion is noted.

Do you —-- Ms. Johnson, do you want a curative
instruction?

MS. JOHNSON: I think of case law, Your Honor, I'm
not too familiar with it, if I have to accept it when my
motion is not granted. I don't know how to word it. But
I object, obviously.

THE éOURT: I think you're protected as far as your
motion for the mistrial. If the appellate court overrules
or reverses me on that, it certainly protects you.

And I understand the curative instruction issues,
That's often a difficult thing for lawyers to do. And I

know as a lawyer for many years, whether it protects you
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appellate-wise or whether it protects you here, I
certainly understand. But it's certainly up to you -- the
defense requests that I give a curative instruction, I am
going to do that. However, if you do not want a curative
instruction, I am not going to give one.

MS. JOHNSON: Can I research the issue, Your Honor,
during lunch?

THE COURT: Yeah. I'll give you the opportunity to
do that. I'll give you time, and I will not hold you to
making that decision right now., And I'll give you that
opportunity to take a look at it and think about it. And
then if you want me to give a curative instruction, at
soﬁe point I will do so.

MS. JOHNSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All rxight. And let me remind everybody
-- and, Officer, you're on the stand as well -- that we
need to be careful in -- I know you didn't elicit it. I'm
not saying the State did anything. You did not elicit
that at all. But the witnesses need to be careful about
their testimony.

So at this time the motion for a mistrial is
denied.

All right. Anything else before we bring them back
in?

MR, RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your
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Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Let's bring them back in.
(WHEREUPON, the jury entered the courtroom at 12:27 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Johnson, proceed with
cross—examination.

MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court.

R EXA ION

BY MS. JOHNSON:

Good afternoon, Deputy.

Good afternoon.

You have a body cam, correct?

Q

A

Q

A Of this incident?
Q Well in general, I mean, do you have a body camera?
A Yes, ma'an.

Q But you do not have any footage from this incident;
is that correct?

A No, ma'am.

Q Okay. And did I hear that correctly, you seized the

gun?

A No, ma'am.

Q But Chadwick seized the gun?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q Recovered the gun.

Neither one of you took any pictures at the scene or

at your cars.
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I can't speak for Deputy Chadwick, but I did not.
Of the gun.

No, ma'am,

Of the pillowcase.

I did not.

o ¥ OO B0 0w

Okay. Do you remember celebrating a little after the
incident, high-£fiving the other deputies?
Fiy I'm sure I did, I guess. ‘
Q Okay. And just talking about plowing him? You don't
remember that?
A I don't recall that.
MS. JOHNSON: Ckay. Beg the Court's indulgence.
Thank you, Deputy. That's all the questions I have.
THE COURT: All right. Any redirect?
MR, RICHARDSON: Nothing further from the State, Your
Honor.
THE COURT: All right. You are dismissed, Officer.
Thank you.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, may this officer be
excused?
THE COURT: Any objection from the defense?
MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honeor.
THE COURT: All right. You are excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank vyou, sir.
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MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, may we approach?

THE CQURT: Yeah.
(WHEREUPON, a bench conference was held off the record.)

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, it's
time, probably going to take our lunch break. So we're
going to take our lunch break now. And let's come back
here at 2:00. So I'm going to excuse you till 2:00.
Please don't discuss the case at all among yourselves.

Also, there has been some testimony that came out
regaxrding a mug shot. You are not to consider any such
testimony in your deliberations. It is not part of this
case, it is not evidence, and so you're not to consider
any testimony along those lines in your decision in
deciding, in deliberating this case.

All right. I'm geing to excuse, lunch. See you back
at 2:00. Please don't discuss the case.

(WHEREUPON, the jury exits the courtroom at 12:31 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Ready to proceed. You've got
a Jackson v. Deppo hearing; is that correct?

MR. RICHARDSON: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. TI'll hear from you.

MR. RICHARDSON: The State would call Corey Chadwick
to the stand.

THE CLERK: Mr. Chadwick, please place your left hand

on the Bible and raise your right hand.
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WHEREUPON,
COREY CHADWICK
After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. Please
state your full name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Corey John Chadwick.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Sir, you're employed with the Greenville County
Sheriff's Office; is that correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q And you were so employed back in November 24, 20187
A Yes, sir.
Q Okay. And in that -- in your involvement in this

incident, did you, in fact, make an arrest of the

defendant?
A I did.
Q And after that arrest, did you give him any of his

Miranda warnings?

b2y I did.
Q And what warnings did you give him?
A I usually have a card on my uniform. I advised him

that he was under arrest, he had the right to remain

silent, anything that he said could be used against him in

a court of law, he had the right te talk to an attorney
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and have them present with him while he's being questioned
if he wished, if he could not afford to hire an attorney,
one would be appointed to represent him at no cost, and at
any time he could exercise these rights and not answer any
questions or make any statements. And I asked him if he
understood the rights that I advised him of, and he

confirmed he did.

Q Ckay. And, in fact, that was on your car?

A Yes. In-car camera.

Q Okay. Now, did you indicate he did understand his
rights?

A Yes.

Q And did you, in fact, guestion him?

A Yes, I asked him about the incident.

Q Did he appear intoxicated or under the influence of
anything?

A No. Just tired because there was a foot chase that

ensued from there.
S0 I sat him down in the car seat, let him have a

seat, kind of take a breather. I believe he asked for

_ water at one point, which at some point we gave him a sip

of water.

Q Okay. And did -he appear to understand what you were
asking him?

A Yes,
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Q Okay. 2And did you understand his responses to you?
A Yes.

Q Okay. &nd was he, in fact, responding to you?

A Yes. He was responding verbally and physically with
head nods with confirming his answers.

Q So he was answering your guestions.

A Yes, sir.

Q All right. And in doing so, did you make any threats

or coerce him in any way to speak to you?

A No.

Q Bt any time did he stop you and say "I want a
lawyer"?

A No.

Q At any time did he stop you and say "I don't want to
talk anymore™?

A No.

Q Did you make any promises to him ---

a No.

Q --- to speak to you?

a I did not.

0 Bnd to the best of your knowledge, were the

statements he made to you freely and voluntarily made?

A

Q

A

Yes.
Without coercion?

Yes. Without coercion, vyes.
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o] And so we're clear, this took place right after the

arrest at the scene?

A Yes. It was —- I believe it was on the side of North
Parker in between where the arrest was made and our patrol

vehicles were.

Q Okay. &And where was he located when you were

questioning him? Was he in vour car?

A Seated in the backseat of my patrol car, yes.

Q And was the door open or closed?

A It was —- it was open. He would have been seated on
-- to the best of my knowledge, he was -- been seated on
the passenger's side. That's generally where I -- the

rear passenger's side is generally where I seat people.
And -- but the door would have been open and I would have
been standing in the doorway talking to him.

o} Okay. And were there other officers in the area that
were in and around you when you were gquestioning him; do
you recall?

A There were other officers in the area. I had a
trainee at the time. I don't recall to where he was. I
and observing, listening. But I don't recall where the
other officers were at the time, the deputies were at the
time.

MR. RICHARDSON: Okay. All right. That's all the
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questions I have. Please answer questions defense coun

has.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. JOHNSON:

Q Deputy, how long was the chase like from the time
saw my client until he was stopped like in the woods?
A You're talking about timewise or distancewise?

Q Timewise.

A I can't give you a full recollection. It would be
less than == I feel like it would be less than five
minutes. From -~ from the time that -- are you talking

about from the time that I first saw him or the time th

I started running on foot?

Q I guess the time that he started running.

A Okay.

Q So he was in a run for five minutes. Is that ---
A I don't believe -- no. It wasn't a run for five
minutes.

But you say at some point he was sprinting.
Yes. He was in a sprint, yes.

Q

A

Q Okay. And that was for a while.
A It was maybe a minute cr two.

Q

But he's clearly out of breath when you all bring
back to your cars.

A Yes.

sel

you

at

1%
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Q Okay. And he is telling you over and over "I can't
catch my breath."

. .Yes.

Q And he 1s screaming about his wrist because of the
tightness of the handcuffs.

A I don't recall that.

Q Okay.- But he's begging you all at some point to
loosen the handcuffs. |

A I don't -- I don't recall that.

Q Okay. But you do agree that he was having a hard
time catching his breath.

a Yes.

Q Okay. And he's begging for y'all to get him some

water.

A Yes. I remember he was asking for some water at some
point.

Q 2nd while you do get him water later on, it's about

15, 20 minutes.

A I don't -- I don't recall the time frame as far as
when we actually got him water. I just remember that we
got him water.

Q But it's not initially.

A No.

Q Okay. And do you remember saying -- and I apologize

to the Court -- "Sit the fuck back. I'm not going to tell
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you again," in the car?

A I don't recall that.

Q Okay. I mean, have you watched your body cam or your
in-car video today?

yi8 Not today, no.

Q Okay. But over and over throughout the video, he is
having a hard time catching his breath and saying, "I
can't breathe."

A Yes. At some point he was saying that he couldn't
breathe. I remember he was saying he couldn't breathe.

We were having trouble breathing at first. I know from
the initial arrest, before any guestioning began,
everybody was kind of -- kind of catching their breath,
because not only was he running, I was running. And
before I was able to even start asking him any gquestions,
I had to catch my breath before -— I had to collect myself
before I could talk to him. So there was -- there was a
brief period there where he was not questioned on anything
before he was mirandized. There was some time for
everybody to catch their breath.

o] But he was still complaining -- throughout the video
complaining about being able -- not able to catch his
breath and wanting water.

A Yes.

Q Aand complaining about pain.
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A I don't recall the pain part.

Q Do you remember saying, "As soon as you give me this
information, the sooner we get you to jail"?

A I don't recall that.

MS. JOHNSON: Thank you, Deputy. That's all the
gquestions I have.

THE COURT: Aany redirect?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing further from the State.

THE COURT: All right. You may step down, Deputy.

All right. Any other witness?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Anything, Ms. Johnson?

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, at this time I would ask the
Court to suppress the statements that my client made after
he was arrested. I doﬁ't think that this was any kind of
environment where he felt he was free or able to give a
statement that's, you know, logical and like he's in kind
of a voluntary position. I mean, he is out of breath, he
is begging for water, he's complaining of being in pain.

And T don't think that the -- that his statements are —-

could be characterized as voluntary. You know, I would ——

I think there's another time maybe to interrogate the
defendant, but it's not, you know, 15 minutes later in the
back of a car after he's on a full-on sprint for a while.

And it's clear in the video that he is having a hard time
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catching his breath. 2And at that time he is mirandized
and, you know, asked questions. I don't believe those are
-- you know, that's not voluntary or a free exchange
concerning my client; therefore, I would ask the Court to
suppress those statements.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Richardson?

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the
Court.

The standard is freely and voluntarily without
coercion, but officer -- of course post-Miranda. He
testified that ne mirandized him. The defendant had an
opportunity to stop questioning at any time. He did not
do that. He had an opportunity to ask for a lawyer. He
did not do that. The officer_testified that he did not
appear intoxicated and that he freely and voluntarlly gave
him a statement and without any type of coercion or
promises or anything of that nature, Your Honor. It falls
under the standard, and we ask that you admit the
statement.

THE COURT: How long is the statement?

MR. RICHARDSON: It's very short. Well, probably two
minutes.

THE COURT: Can we pull it up?

MR. RICHARDSON: BSure.

THE COURT: I want to take a look at it.
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MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, first parts of this
videc are the chase, and there's some stuff gbing on
before., 1'll try to get to the point of it.

THE COURT: All right.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, is played
in open court.)

THE CQURT: Pause th?t for a minute. Pause it for a
minute,

What is that rock 'n' roll? Where is that coming
from?

MR. RICHARDSON: That's coming from the car radio.

THE COURT: Whose car radio?

MR. RICHARDSON: That's the officer's radio.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. RICHARDSON: His radio within the car.

THE COURT: All right.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continues
to play in open court.)

MR. RICHARDSON: That's it, Your Honor..

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Johnson?

. MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court.

Your Honor, to add or supplement, we can't even see
my client for the most part of that confession. You know,
it's this officer asking him questions. I can't hear him

say affirmative responses until the latter part. But, you
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know, in the video where it's just the officer talking to
my client, I can't hear his responses either. So we don't
know, you know, what was -- how my client is acting or,
you know, what's geoing on there. But clearly, after --
when he is actually shown on video or seen on video, and
this is some time after this chase, he is still asking for
water, and, you know, talking about can't breathe. I
think it's an indirect coercive-type environment. And for
those reasons I would ask the Court to exclude his
statements here, Your Honor.

THE COQURT: Mr. Richardson, let me ask about that
first part with AC/DC or White Snake or whoever that was
in the background. I'll be honest with you, I couldn't
hear the defendant's responses.

MR. RICHARDSON: Well, Your Honor, I would have the
officer testify to what his responses are. But you can
hear the officer saying what he says. He said -- at some
point, I can't remember the exact conversations,
particular conversations, but he would say, "Did you harm
anybody."

"No."

And the officer would say, "No." You can hear him
saying it back to him. But the officer can testify to
what was also said.

THE COURT: All right. Anything else, Ms. Johnson?
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MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Richardson, play just the last part
where he's there in the car where you actually can hear
him.

MR. RICHARDSON: Which part would you like?

THE COURT: Just the very last.

MR. RICHARDSON: When he's sitting -- when you see
the defendant in the car?

THE COURT: Yes,.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video continues
to play in open court.)

THE COURT: All right. FPFirst of all, I do find that
custodial interrogation had taken place and the defendant
was properly given his Miranda warnings.

As the parties know, the Court's standard in
reviewing under this evidentiary hearing is a
preponderance of the evidence, and it's the totality of
the circumstances that the Court has to look at. Although
I do recognize and see the defendant out of breath from
the chase, however, I do not find that it was to the
extent where he was coerced or threatened or pressured
into making any statements, nor do I find anything in the
statements where he was deceived or where there was any
threat of violence, any promise of leniency. I certainly

understand and recognize and see that he was out of
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breath, but it was as a result of the chase, but I don't
find that that was enough -- or is enough to not allow it
and find that there is some sort of coercion by the mere
fact that he was out of breath.

I do -~ based on the totality of the circumstances,
and I think that's important particularly in this case, is
that this short interrcgation, it was not lengthy, it took
place just right after the chase, is not to the extent to
where 1t was not causing the defendant to not give -- let
me reword that. Probably double negatives there. I don't
think that prevented the defendant from freely,
voluntarily and intelligently providing a statement.

So based on the testimony and based on my review of
the video, I do not find that there was any coercion,
threat, promise based on the preponderance of the
evidence, in my review of the totality of the
circumstances, which is important. I do find that the
statement was given freely, voluntarily and intelligently.

All right. Anything else?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything from the defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. We'll be in recess and lunch
at 2:00. If there is some issue that comes up, y'all need

me to hear it, if you all would email Mr. Barrow, and I'll
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come in early and we can take care of it s0 we won't keep
the jury.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you.

(WHEREUPON, a recess is taken at 12:55 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Anything before we bring the
jury back in?

MR. RICHARDSCON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything from defense?

MS. JCOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: &And before we broke for lunch, I gave the
jury a curative instruction related to the testimony about
a mug shot. And that curative instruction was given on
the request of the defense. Is that correct, Ms. Jchnson?

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Gentlemen, 1f you would,
bring them in.

(WHEREUPON, the jury entered the courtroom at 2:19 p.m.)

THE CQURT: All right. Good afterncon everybody. I
hope y'all had a good lunch. We're ready to continue.

Mr, Richardson?

MR, RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the
Court. The State would call Corey Chadwick to the stand.
WHEREUPON,

COREY CHADWICK

After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
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THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. Please
state your full name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Corey Johp Chadwick.

T EX TION

BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Officer, you're emploved with the Greenville County
Sheriff's Office; is that correct?
A Yes, sir.

0 And what are your duties with the Greenville County

" Sheriff's Office?

A Currently, I serve as a master deputy in the Uniform
Patrol Division. At the date and time of this incident, I
was serving as deputy II, which is a lower rank in the
Uniform Patrol Division.

Q Okay, sir. &nd were you actually on patrol in the
early moxning hours of November 24, 20187

A Yes, sir.

Q And were you dispatched to the 7-Eleven on 01d

Buncombe Road?

A Yes, sir, I was.
Q In reference to what?
A Dispatch advised there was an armed robbery at the

7-Eleven gas station off of 0ld Buncombe by Duncan Chapel
Road. Exact address is 5055 0ld Buncombe Road. They

advised that there was just an armed robbery that
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occurred.

The suspect description that they gave out, I guess,
that they got from the caller from the 9-1-1 call was a
black male wearing a -- like a blue jumpsuit armed with a
silver pistol and that he was last seen heading away from
the 7-Eleven on foot towards the Publix, which is across
the street.
Q Okay, sir. So in your approach and direction to the
7-Eleven, which direction did you take?
A S50 I don't recall exactly where we were at the time
that we got the call. I just knew that Deputy Ochoa was
one ¢f the responding units. He advised that he was
already on 0ld Buncombe Road. I figured with the suspect,
his flight path being on foot and then giving the
direction of Publix, since he was already coming up 0ld
Buncombe Road, I had a trainee in my car at the time, a
deputy in training, and he was driving the car. So I
advised him to drive northbound up Poinsett Highway. That
way we get both parallel directions that if he's heading
towards the Publix, I thought he might come down Poinsett

Highway. So we headed northbound up Poinsett Highway.

Q Okay. And, in fact, was there another patrel vehicle
in the vicinity of you on Poinsett Highway?
A Yes. Deputy Greer was also in the area. aAnd when we

got on Poinsett Highway, he was ~- he was in front of us,
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and we were both responding with lights and sirens.

Q Okay. Now, at some point on Poinsett Highway, did
you see anybody?

A Yes, sir. Once we got —-- heading northbound on
Poinsett Highway, when we got just short past Parker Rocad
or North Parker Road, I believe it is, on the right-hand
side of the road, I observed a black male subject wearing
some sort of dark-colored jumpsuit with like a white
sleeve. At this time in the morning it was also raining
outside. I just thought it was odd.

At this particular area of northern Poinsett Highway
up there, there's not a lot of people that walk up and
down the road there. The fact that it was raining, didn't
have an umbrella or anything like that, and he was in
possibly some sort of jumpsuit, I gave my trainee
instructions to turn around so we can make contact since
Deputy Ochoa was going to be closer to the incident
location.

Upon turning our patrol car around doing a U-turn in
the middle cof the road with lights and sirens on, as the
subject was looking over his shoulder, he saw us turning
around and took off in a full sprint, took off in a full
sprint and then started hanging a left down Parker Road.
0 If you would, if you could just refer to State's

Exhibit -=- I can't remember what I marked them as --
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State’'s Exhibit 1, can you just show the jury where you're
referring'to on Poinsett Highway?

A Yeah. I believe it's down here. It's a little
cut-through road. I spotted him somewhere around this
general area. We turned around on Poinsett Highway, and
then this is the road -- I guess that is. I think that's
Parker Road. This is Davidson Road. He started taking
off in a full sprint and going on Davidson Road right
there (indicating throughout).

Q Okay. BAnd you can return to your seat.

And at that point did you get out of the patrol car?

A Yes. As we got closer to him in the patrol car, I
bailed out -- as I was driving past, I bailed out on foot.
There's a little -- in between Davidson Road and North

Parker, there's just like a little marshy area.

So I took off running after him on foot with the
trainee in the patrol car with lights and sirens still,
giving him commands to stop. Kept running. We crossed
over Parker Road and into the wood line.

Q Now, do you have what's known as an in-car camera in

. your patrol car?

A Yes, I do.

Q And was that activated at the time of this, what you

Jjust testified to?

A It was. The in-car cameras activate automatically
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upon turning on lights and sirens.

Q Okay. And were you also wearing a body cam?

A So we were issued body-worn cameras. I did not have
one on at that time. Usually, at the beginning of the
shift there's a docking station, but I don}t remember
which model. We've been through several models of body

cameras. I don't remember which current model we were at

at this particular time.

But generally, the batteries don't last a full
i2-hour shift, what we work, so there's a docking station
to charge the battery. This being at 6:50 in the morning,
early in the morning, my body camera is usually docked. I
take it out -- usually, upon the first call of service,
I'1l take it out of the dock and then I clip it on the

little mount on the vest. Because of how rapidly evolving

this situvation was and getting eyes on him and having to

bail out and chase him, I didn't even think that the body
camera was on the dock. Didn't even have time to grab it
out before I started chasing him on foot.

o Now, prior to today, did you view a video of your

in-car camera and subsequent videos?

A I did.
o) Let me hand you what's been marked State's
Exhibit 11. Is that the video that you reviewed?

A Yég, it is.
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Q And does it accurately depict what happened on that

day, November 24, 20187

A Yes, it does.
Q And has it been changed or altered?
A No, sir.

MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, at this time we would
offer State's Exhibit 11 into evidence.

THE COURT: All right. Any objectioﬁ from the
defense?

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, I just preserve my previous
objection.

THE COURT: All right. Subject to defense's previous
objection, State's Exhibit Number 11 is admitted into
evidence over objection. ]

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11 was admitted into
evidence.)

THE COURT: Are both of those monitors working?

MR. RICHARDSON: Yes, sir.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, was played

in open court.)

_ BY MR, RICHARDSON:

Q Okay. Let me just stop it right here.
What are we seeing? What's the jury seeing at this
point?

4 This is Poinsett Highway.




132

10
11

12

13

i4
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Corey Chadwick Direct by Mr. Richardson 125

Q COkay.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, & video, continued
to play in open court.)

BY MR, RICHARDSON:

Q Now, is this Parker Road or -~ the road coming up on

your right?

A I can't =~~ I can't tell from —---
Q Okay.
A I'm sorry. I see it. Yes, where that car is right

there that we just passed, I believe that right there is
Davidson Road.
Q Davidson Road?

A Yes. That's a little cut through to Parker Road.
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q And what is this right here?
A So that -- that was =-- that was the subject that L
saw. Obviously, it looks very blurry, but if you look te
the right, you can see the white. It locks like a very
dark figure. But there's the white on the corner of it,
and that was the white sleeve of the jacket.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued

to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:
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Q Now, that other patrol car, is that Cfficer Greer?

A Yes. That was Deputy Greer. I told him on the radio
as well, I advised him on the radio that let's turn arocund
and get at this -~ this guy.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued

to play in open court.)
THE WITNESS: We're making the left turn onto

Davidson Road.

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q And wheo is that right there?

: That's the -- that's the person that we saw on the
side of the road.

Q And at this peoint are you still in the vehicle?
A -1 am. I think, at some point here, he slows down, I
think., This brief pause, and this is where I bail out.

Q You bail cut here?

A Yes, sir.

Now, the trainee is still driving the car, and then

that's me right there.

Q Is that you to the right here?
A Yes. That’s me right there.

Q And is that the defendant?

A Yes, sir.

(WHEREUPCON, State's Exhibit Numbex 11, a video, continued

to play in open court.)
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BY MR. RICHARDSON:
0 Okay, sir. 8§o at this point in time, you go out of

view of the camera. Where did you go?

A So going on ---

Q We can cut the --—-

A Would you like me to peint it out if I can?

Q Yes.

A So after he makes the turn on Davidson Road, there's
this little —— it's actually kind of like a marshy drea.

He cut through there and. then onto Parker Road here. He
goes down kind of Parker -- herding back towards Poinsett
and then cuts into the wood l1ine here. This is like the
Enclave of Paris Mountain apartment complex, I belileve,
and he cuts into the wood line. That's where we ran. We
ran into the wood line and then straight down that way,
back kind of towards Parker Road (indicating throughout).
Q Okay. And were you aware -— at this peoint in tinme,
how far behind him -- when he enters the woods, how far
behind him are you, approximately?

A Maybe 25, 50 meters.

Q Okay. And were you aware of where Officer Greer was
at that time?

A I was not, no.

Q Okay. ©So were you in full foot pursuit at that point

in £ime?
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A Yes, sir.

Q And what happened once you entered the woods after
the turn?

A I could still see the subject through the trees. I
was giving him commands, sheriff's office, stop, you're
under arrest. And then at some point ---

Q Did he -- when you said that to him, "You're under
arrest," did he stop or abide by your commands?

A No.

Q Okay. Please continue.

A We continued a short little distance through the
woods, and then I could see Deputy Greer's -~ through the
opposite end of the wood line, I could see Deputy Greer's
lights on his patrol car, and I could tell that a patrol
car was over there. And then I could -~ I could hear him
velling now, giving commands. At that point he laid down
on the ground facedown. I don't know 1f he fell or was
gassed out or just decided to give up, but he laid down
facedown. He heeded to commands after that, and we

detained him in handcuffs,.

_He was -- when we were approaching him, I had my . ..

firearm drawn on him the whole time because the original
crime that was alleged was an armed robbery and that he
was armed with a handgun. So we did draw down on him with

a handgun, and he kept screaming at us, "Don't shoot. The
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gun's not loaded. The gun's not loaded."

Q Okay. And at that point in time after you put him in
handcuffs, did you obtain any -- what was in his
possession at that point in time that you saw?

A So immediately after we get him in handcuffs, I start
trying to find a weapon on him. He keeps telling me the
gun's not loaded. And then he had a -~ it was like a
white pillowcase that was tied to his belt. When I
grabbed the outside of the pillowcase, you can feel a hard
object that felt like a gun in there. We removed the
pillowcase, and then there was a silver pistol in there,
which was the description of the firearm that was given
from the incident, and a bunch of small denomination bills
and change.

Q What did you do with the bills, the money?

A So we took the -- we separated the bag from him. I
believe Deputy Greer took control of the pillowcase while
we escorted him to ocur patrol car. And the firearm was
stored in a safe location in the trunk of the vehicle

after we determined it wasn't loaded, and Deputy Greer, I

believe, counted the -- counted the money.

Q And Deputy Greer took control of the money at that
time?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you eventually bring him back to your patrol car?
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A I believe we brought him to ocur patrol car. I can't
recall exactly, but I know ultimately he was -- he was —-—

ended up in the backseat of our patrol car.

Q And at some point in time, did you obtain clothing
from him?

A I did, yes.

Q And you took control of that clothing?

A Yes, I did.

Once we got to the detention center, that's when I
took the clothing from him., After we had already decided
we had probable cause for our charges, on the way to the
detention center, Deputy Ochoa was at the incident
location at the 7-Eleven, had pulled the camera footage of
the incident happening and took still shots of the suspect
from the -- from the armed robbery. And when he sent them
to me, it was grainy, but the clothing description and
everything that he was wearing matched what he had on.

Q Qkay. Now, eventually, at some peoint in time, did
you read the defendant his Miranda warnings?

A Yes, I did.

Q  Okay. And when you read Miranda warnings to a _
suspect or a defendant, how do you do it?

A Generally, a lot of us -- some people memorize it,
but most of us have a card. We pull out a card and we

read it directly off the card.
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Q Is that what you did?
a Yes, I did.
Q And do you know the Miranda warnings without looking
at that card?
A I do.
Q Ckay. And can you just tell the jury what you told
the defendant at that time?
A Yes. I advised him that he's under arrest, he had
the right to remain silent, anything that he said could be
used against him in a court of law, he had the right to
talk to a lawyer and have him or her present with him
while he's being questioned if he wishes, if he cannot
afford to hire a lawyer, one will be appointed -- one will
be appointed to represent him at no cost, at any time he
can exercise those rights and not answer any questions or
make any statements. And then I verified do you
understand these rights that I've just read to you.
Q And what did he indicate to you upon that guestion?
A He =-- he confirmed that he understcod -- he
understood his rights.
Q Okay. And did he, in fact, talk to you?

He did.

A
Q Okay. And did he ever ask for a lawyer?
A No.

Q

Did he ever stop you from asking any questions, say
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he doesn't want to talk anymore?

A No,

Q Did he give you statements, voluntary, and of his own

free will?

A Yes.

Q Did you make any promises to try to;get him to talk
to you?

A No.

Q Did you coerce him or force him in any way?

A No.

Q And in the process of doling that, I would like for
you to explain your in-car video, you also have audio; is

that correct?

A Yes, correct.
o] Okay. And where is that audio coming from?
A So with the in-car cameras there are multiple

microphones from the in-car. There's microphones in the
front of the car, there's microphones in the backseat of
the car. Sometimes when you pull the video, with our
video system, you can pick and choose, turn microphones on
and off to hear things better. = |

Q Okay. So at this point in time, the conversation you
had with the defendant, was it audiotaped on that video

recording?

A It's -- yes. He was seated in the backseat and there
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was not a backseat camera. But there is audio in. the
backseat.
Q Okay. &and did you review that —---
A I did.
Q ~-— prior to this trial?

And was that also on when you mirandized him?
A Yes, it was.
{(WHEREUPON, . State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued

to play in opeéen court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSCN:
0] Now, I'1ll ask yecu, QOfficer, to the right of here
where that truqk is, is that Poinsett Highway?
A Yes. Where that truck is traveling right there,
that's Poinsett Highway. So the road that the vehicle's
driving right now, those two will merge. That will merge

into Poinsett Highway.

Q Now, the music that you're hearing here, that's your
in-car?
a S¢ yes. It sounds very loud.

But the way the microphones, they're very, very
sensitive microphones in the car, and they pick up -- even
when the radio is very low, it picks up to hear
conversations and stuff like that. So the front
microphones will generally pick up that radio. If it's on

even low, it will sound very loud like that. I honestly
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don't believe that I realized the radio was on while this

was goling on.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q Who is that?

A So that is ~- on the left side of him that’'s me, this

is the defendant, and then that is Deputy Greer.

Q That's the defendant that's sitting in this courtroom
today?
A Yes, it is.

(WHEREUPCN, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q Okay. You asked him if he understood those rights,

and I hear you say something. What did you say?

A After ~-- after I asked him, he said "yes." Then I

repeated he said yes. 0Okay.

Q Is that -- just for clarification of the jury, is

that something vyvou normally do in interviews?

A Yeah. Generally, when I interview people, when they .

give me a response, I reply to that response back to them
to confirm that's what I heard and also for audio purposes
as well.

Q Okay.
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(WREREUPON, Stateé's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q Okay. The guestion you just asked him, "Was that gun
stolen™?
A Yes.

And whHat was his response toe that?

Q

A He sald, "No, 1t wasn't."

0 Did he ever tell you it wasn't his?

A No. He said it was his.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q Okay. The gquestion you asked there, "Was this the

first store you hit this morning"?

A Yes.

Q What was his response?

iy "Yes."

Q And that was you repeating his respdnse?
A Yes.

(WEEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICHARDSON:

0 Ckay. Just clarify, that was pretty clear, but you

asked, "Did you point the gun at them?" And his response
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was?
A He told me he didn't point the gun at them,.
Q And was that you repeating that he just showed it?
A‘ Yes,
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a wvideo, continued
to play in open court.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q You asked him, "Why did you choose the 7-Eleven?"
Did he respond to that?
A He said he didn't know.
Q That he didn't know?
A Yeah.
Q He never asked you, "What are you talking about?" or
anything of that nature?
A No.
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)
BY MR. RICHAﬁDSON:
Q You asked him, "How may people were in the 7-Eleven?"
What was his response?
A He told me two.

Q And you asked him if they were employees. What did

he -~ what was his response?

A He said, "Yes, they were.,"

e




144

10

11

12
13

i4

15

16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23

24

25

Corey Chadwick Direct by Mr. Richardson 137

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continted
to play in open court.)

BY MR. RICEARDSON:

Q Okay. So if you can explain ---

A At this point, while guestioning him, as things

started, you know, calming down, I realized that my body

cam was not on. So I stopped interviewing him while I

walked around the car. I put my body camera on, I turned

it on and that's why there's now body camera footdge, as

well as what you hear in the video,. the loud music before,

obviously, now with the body camera, us talking, you don't

hear that music. So that microphone's not picking up that

music.

o Okay. And just to be totally clear to these folks,

this is after you mirandized him, gave him his Miranda

warning?

A Yes. I think the last question will be asked again

but on the body camera that was previously -— you just
heard on the dash -~ in-car audio.
Q Okay.

(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 11, a video, continued
to play in open court.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON®
Q Okay. Now, the individual clething that you found on

him, those items, did you say you took those into custody?
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1 A Yes. Once -~ once I transported him to the detention
2 center, before we turned him over to the detention staff,
3 I seized those clothing items.
4 Q And was the gun included?
5 A Yes.
6 Q Let me hand you what's been marked as State's
7 Exhibit 12. Do you recognize that?
8 A Yes, 1 do.
5 Q And is that, in fact, the gun that you found on this
10 defendant?
11 A It is.
12 MR. RICHARDSON: At this time, Your Honor, we would
13 move State's Exhibit 12 intec evidence.
14 THE COURT: Any objection from the defense?
15 MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.
16 THE CCOURT: All right. State's Exhibit 12 is
17 admitted into evidence without objectioen.
18 (WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 12 was admitted into
19 evidence.)
20 BY MR. RICHARDSON:
2t .9  sir, is that gun safe? e
22 A It is.
23 Q Okay. No chance of it firing or anvthing?
24 A No.
25 Q And can you pick it up and show it to the jury?
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A Yes. {(Withegs complies.)

0] And where did you find that gun on the defendant?

A It was inside of the pillowgase with the mohey tied

to his waistband.

Q Okay. And that money being this, State's Exhibit 4

that's already into evidence?

A Yes.

o) That's the money that you gave to Greer to give back

to the 7-Eleven?

A Correct.
g And along with the <clothing -- or, esxcuse me —— the
gun, did yeu take inte evidence -~ take into your

possession or custody a pillowcase?
A Yes, sir.
Q Let me show you what's been marked State's
Exhibit 17. Do you recognize this, sir?
A I do.
0 And what is that?
A That's the pillowcase that he had tied to his belt
that had the gun and the money inside.
MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, at this time we would
move this exhibit into evidence.
TEE COURT: All right. Any objection from defense?
MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: State's Exhibit Number 17 is admitted
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into evidence without objection.
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 17 was admitted into
evidence. )
BY MR, RICHARDSON:
0] Did you ever get a chance to look at the surveillance
video in this case?
A Just I only saw still shots. I never actually got to
see the actual surveillance video.
Q Did ycu see the pillowcase in the still shots?
A I don't remember. I don't recall.
Q That was something that the previous officer dealt
with, the video, right?
A Yes,
Q Let me show you what's been marked State's
Exhibit 15. Do you recognize this?
A Yes. That's the -- that's the beanie that he was
wearing at the time of arrest.
MR. RICHARDSON: At this time we would move State's
Exhibit 15 into evidence.

THE COURT: Any objection?

_MS. JOHNSON: WNo, Your Honor, e

THE COURT: State's Exhibit Number 15 is admitted
into evidence without objection.
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 15 was admitted into

evidence.)
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BY MR. RICHARDSON:

Q And, sir, the =~- you just saw the video. 1Is this the
beanie he was wearing in the video and in your cax?

A It is.

Q And let me show you what's been marked State's

Exhibit 14. Do you recognize this?

A I do.

Q And what is that?
A That is a black Magna T-shirt. At the time of
arrest, that Magna T-shirt was actually tied around his
neck.
MR. RICHARDSON: Okay, sir.
At this time we would move State's Exhibit 14 into
evidence.
THE COURT: Any objection?
M5. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: State's Exhibit 14 i1s admitted into
evidence without objection.
(WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 14 was admitted into
evidence.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q And at the time that you cbtained this T-shirt, you
sald it wds arcound hig neck?
A It was around his neck.

Q Like when you pull a shirt on you, or tied, or how?
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A No. Tied as if he were to pull it up over his face
to conceal his identity.
0 Bnd State's Exhibit 16, sir, do you recognize this?
a Yes. That was the jacket he was wearing.
MR. RICHARDSON: At this time we would move State's
Exhibit 16 into evidence.
THE COURT: All right. BAny objection?
MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.
THE CQURT: State's Exhibit 16 is admitted into
evidence without objection.
{WHEREUPON, State's Exhibit Number 16 was admitted into
evidence.)
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
And you referenced a white sleeve.
Correct.
Is that what you saw?
Yes. The white sleeve on the right arm.

And was that on Poinsett Highway when you saw that?

And then you took that off him?

At the detention center. . . . ... . ... .. e

Q

A

Q

a

Q

A Yes, correct.
Q

A

Q At the detention center.

A Yes.

Q Did you ever —-- did you call K-9, the K-2 officer to

the scene?
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A after he was admitted to the détention centéer, ves, I
called the -- T called the K-2 officer.

Q Why did you do that?

A The reason being is after -~ so when Deputy Ochoa got

to the incident location, he got the video pulled up and
had sent still shots on my way to -- it was either on the
way to the detention center or after I got there is when
he sent us pictures of the still shots of the suspect in

the commission of the armed robbery. I noticed the -- the

beanie, something covering his face, the jacket with the

white sleeve, everything that matched, the silver, the
silver firearm being pointed in the direction of the -- of
the employees. But one thing I noticed was he had these
bright like neon yellow gloves. 1 saw that he had the
gloves on, but he didn't have that at the time that we
arrested him. I didn't recall seeing them on his hands
when I —-- when I chased him.

We went back to the incident location right in the

- wood line where we —~ where we arrested him, looked in the

immediate area. 1 didn't see the gloves. So that's when
I requested a K-~9 officer to conduct an article search in
an attempt to locate those gloves.

Q And did you go back to the scene?

A Yes, I did.

Q You did?
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A Yes. After -- after leaving -—- after he was turned
over to the detention staff, I went back to the scene. I
went -- I did go to the crime scene, but I went to the
initial area where we chased him.
) Okay. And were you there when the dog found the
gloves?
A I was.
Q OCkay. And are these the gloves that we have put into
evidence previously?
A Yes, thef are.
0 Did you take custody of those gloves?
A I did.

MR. RICHARDSON: Beg the Court's indulgence.
BY MR. RICHARDSON:
Q Approxima£ely, this -- when you first saw the
defendant on Poinsett Highway, approximately how far from
the 7-Eleven was that?
A It's -- it's right down the road. I don't even think
it was as far as a mile.

Q Certainly walking distance?

A It's walking distance. _You can -- you gan see_the . .

7-Eleven from the location.
Q Okay. Well, let me ask you this, Officer. The
person that you saw on Poinsett Highway that you chased,

caught and found all this evidence on, is he in this
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courtroom today?

Yes, sir, he is.

Can you point him out?

It's the defendant right over there (indicating).

What's he wearing?

B0 B 0

He's wearing a -—- it's like a blue blazer and a
button-up shirt, light-color, button-up shirt.

MR. RICHARDSON: Please let the record reflect that
the officer has identified the defendant.

That's all the gquestions I have. Thank you, Officer.
Please answer any guestions the defense -—-

THE COURT: Cross.

MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court.

(WHEREUPON, a portion of State's Exhibit Number 11, a
video, was played in open court.)
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MS. JOHNSON:
0 Good afternoon, Deputy Chadwick.

We just watched the video in this case. And let me
tell you what it's marked as. We just watched State's
Exhibit 11, correct?

A Correct.
Q And that video is actually your in-car camera and
then your body camera, correct?

A Corrett.
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1 Q But now your in-car camera was running about
2 20 minutes until you cut on your body-worn camera.
3 A I believe so. I don't —— I don't recall the time
4 frame,
5 Q Okay. But there was a good amount of time before you
6 cut your body-worn camera on.
7 A Yes.
8 Q As we saw, you were talking to Mr. Griffin in the
9 backseat of the car without your body-worn camera running.
10 A Correct.
11 Q Okay. Five, ten minutes before you went and got your
12 body-worn camera, correct?
13 A Possikly.
14 Q Okay. But now you had your in-car camera going the
15 whele time.
16 A It was going the whole time. From the moment that we
17 responded to the scene with the lights and sirens, the
18 in-car camera was running. It was never turned off.
19 Q And you don't have the body-worn camera on while
20 you're chasing Mr. Griffin?
21 |2 Noymalam. . e :
22 Q And even after you arrest him.
23 A No, ma'am.
24 Q And when you take these implements that were found
25 from Mr. Griffin, you don't go in front of your in-car
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camera, kind of like an inventory procedure?

A Yeah. I believe we had done it on the trunk of the
car, because on the -- I was driving a Taurus and T think
Deputy Greer was driving the Tauruses, and the trunks are
a flatter area. Generally, I understand the camera's on
the front, but generally, when we do it on the hood of the
car, it's sloped and things fall off, they drop on the
ground. And that's -- especially with money and change,
it's easier to do it on the flat surface of the trunk.

Q But there's no photograph or video of you with that

bag or the gun.

A . No, ma'am.

Q Okay. You didn't take pictures of anything on the
scene,

A No, ma'am.

Q And to your knowledge you didn't instruct your

trainee to take any pictures.
A No, ma'am.
Q Now, this foot chase, you were in a foot chase with

Mr. Griffin, correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And at one point he is in a full-on sprint.

A Yes, ma'am.

Q ‘And you, to use your words, he gassed out.

A I said -- I don't -- when he -- when we got him in
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handcuffs, I didn't know if he tripped and fell, if he
gassed out or if he decided to finally give up. But when
we got up to him, he -- when he finally started complying,
he was -- laid facedown on the ground.
Q But that sprint was two and a half, three minutes
through the weods?
A Possibly, yes.
Q And ultimately, when you apprehend him, he is asking
for water.

Yes, correct.

And telling you how hard it is to catch his breath.

A

Q

A Yes,
Q How tall is Mr. Griffin?

A I believe I have him documented as 6'2".

Q And does your report also note how old he was at the
time of the incident?

A 25 years old.

Q Okay. Let me back up. So you obtained the gqun,
correct?

Yes, ma'am.

And you said it was unloaded?

Did you ever run any like trace on the gun?

A

Q

A It was unloaded.
Q

A As far as?

Q

The serial number information.
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1 A I don't recall. But that's usually standard
2 procedure, so I believe we —- we did.
3 Q But you didn't do it.
4 A I don't recall if I did or not.
5 Q Okay. And you.didn't submit the gun for any kind of
6 testing.
7 A No, ma'am.
8 Q Forensic testing.
9 A No, ma'am.
10 0 No fingerprints.
11 A No, ma'am.
12 Q No DNA.
13 A No, ma'am.
14 Q And you didn't recover any mask, like actual mask on
15 scene.
16 A No. WNo, ma'am.
17 Q Okay. You didn't direct any testing to be done in
18 this case.
19 A I don't believe I did.
20 0 Okay. &nd you put Mr. Griffin in your police car. I
21 believe you said it was driven by your trainee.
22 A Yes, ma'am.
23 Q But you all didn't drive up the road and have
24 Mr. Henderson confirm that that was him or not?
25 A No, ma'am, we didn't. I believe it was because they




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Corey Chadwick Cross by Ms. Johnson 150

said ~- the initial statement that was given or the --
what was relayed to us by dispatch when they called in is

that he had his face covered.

Q But you didn't drive him up there?
A No, ma'am.
Q Okay. And you all -~ after the run, there were a lot

of high-fives and congratulations going around?
A I don't recall, but that's -- usually, if we get in a
foot chase, that's —-- people give high-fives, you know.

MS. JOHNSON: Beg the Court's indulgence.

Thank you, Deputy.

THE COURT: All right. Any redirect?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing further from the State, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Officer, you may step down.

Next witness.

MR, RICHARDSON: Your Honor, that is the State's
case. We rest.

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, the

State has completed their evidence. 1I'm going to excuse

. you for a little bit, take some matters up with the

lawyers and I will call for you. Please don't discuss the
case.
(WHEREUPON, the jury exits the courtroom at 3:02 p.m.)

THE COURT: Anything from the State? Any motions?
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MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any motion from the defense?

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, at this time I would move for a
directed verdict on behalf of my client, Mr. Griffin, and
also renew my previous motions in this case, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. As far as the directed
verdict, I find there is existence of evidence that would
show that the defendant is guilty of the crime.
Obviously, the standard is whether there is the existence
or nonexistence of evidence, and I certainly find there
is.

As to the mistrial, I have -~ your renewal cf the

motion for the mistrial, I, during lunch break, did

analyze and research case law, State vs. Tate --_State Vs.
Tate, State vs. Counsel, State vs. Lawson among others,

and based on my review of the case law and the evidence
that came forward, as far as the statement about the mug
shot, my ruling still stands. I don't think, based on the
testimony that came out, first of all, it was not elicited
from the State. Mr. Richardson did not ask guestions
about that. He was not trying to show to the jury that
Mr. Griffin had any prior criminal record. It was not
introduced in any manner which brought attention to it,
especially no evidence that it was intentionally brought

in front of the jury to draw attention to it. It was
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simply a statement that was made by the witness that
mentioned mug shots.

I'm not -- you know, I actually find that the jufy
probably missed the implication. They certainly could
have. I don't say that they absolutely didn't, but it was
just stated in his testimony. And, again, not being
elicited, I think there's certainly a chance that it may
have missed the implication, in any event. But I don't
find that it reaches the level to where there would be any
prejudice. I don't -- again, it was not intentionally
done. It was just brought out in the officer's testimony.

Additionally, the State's case is -- there is
significant evidence in the State's case of guiltness in
this matter. This case is not built solely on
circumstantial evidence.

Some of the case law that has dealt with the issue as
to whether or not there are grounds for a mistrial when
testimony is brought out, that would indicate that the
defendant may have had some prior record. One of the

cases that may -- I think it was State vs. Lawson where

there was testimony brought out about fingexprints which_ . . ..l

indicated to the jury that the defendant had a prior
criminal record. The case —- I mean the Court in that
particular case did grant the mistrial. And an important

part of that case, that holding, was that the State's case
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in State vs. Lawson was built solely ofi c¢irg¢umstantial
evidence, it involving fingerprints. Soc I think the faets
in this case are differernt.

I do —-- again, as I have stated, it was not
specifically elicited by the State and that there was no
intention to put forth in front of the jury that the
defendant did have a prior criminal record. So on those
grounds, my ruling remains the same and the motion for the
mistrial is denied. Your motien is noted for the record.

All right. Mr. Griffin, I need for you to give me
your attention. We are at the stage in the trial, the
State has rested with their ewvidence, and at this time I'm
going to explain to you certain of your rights. And T
want to tell you, if you do not understand anything that I
say, 1f you have any questions whatsoever or you need me
to explailn anything, you please let me know.

We have now reached the stage, as I told you, that
the State has provided their -- produced their case, and
it's time where you can present your defense to the jury.
You have the right to claim the protections given to you
py the Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution
which reads in part: No person shall be compelled, in any
criminal cdase, to be a witness against himself. &and this
means that you carinot be required to testify in this case.

You have the right to testify on yeur own behalf; however,
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MR, RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.
THE COURT: AIl right. We'll be in recess. This
will be our afternoon break.
(WHEREUPON, a recess is taken at 3:12 p.m.)
THE COURT: All right. Anything before we bring the
jury in? Anything from the State?
MR, RIGHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.
THE COQURT: Anything from the defense?
MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Let's bring them in.
(WHEREUPON, the jury entered the courtroom at 3:34 p.m.)
THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, as T
told you, you've heard the State's case. They have
rested. Now it's the defense's case.
Ms. Johnson?
MS. JOHNSON: May it please the Court. The defense
calls Jeffery Griffin to the stand.
THE CLERK: Mr. Griffin, please place your left hand
oni the Bible and raise your right hand.
WHEREUPON,
JEFFREY KEYON TIMOTHY GRIFFIN
After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated. Please
state vour full name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Jeffery Keyon Timothy Griffin.
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TRE AT

BY M3, JOHNSON:
Q Mr. Griffin, how old are you?
A 29 years old.
0 Tell the jury a little bit about your background and
where you grew up.
A I grew up in West Greenville. I'm originally from
Miami, Flerida. I was born in Miami, Florida, and I moved
from Florida to Georgia and -- and lived in South Carolina
the majority of my days.

And your education, how far did you go in school?

Tc the 12th grade.

Q

A

Q Did you graduate?

A No. I did not graduate.
Q Okay.

A But I did actually finish -- finished the 12th grade,
but I didn't receive my certificate.

Q Okay. What kind of work have you done?

A I've done construction, I1've done welding,

landscaping. And that's about it.

Q What was the longest job you've had?. e

.\ Working for the city, Greenville County. I worked on
the back of a garbage truck.
Q How long did you have that job?

A Two years.
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Tell the jury a little bit about your family.
I have 11 brothers and sisters.

What number are you in the 11 brothers and sisters?

Q

A

Q

A 13.
Q Okay.

A I had ~--
Q 137

A Yeah.

So -

13 siblings.

Okay.

OO w0

Yeal. Ikt's five girls and 11 boys. Recently I just
had two of my -- well, no, one of -- one of my youngest
brothers just passed away last year. And yeah:. I have an
older sibling that passed away like 2006.

Q Okay. And let's go to 2018. Did you commit this
robbery?

A No.

Q Okay. Tell the jury what was going on in your family
situation about that time.

A I was —- I was coming out of Virginia with my -- with
my -- one of my oldest brothers, and we were working. And
-- and we decided to visit South Carolina to visit some of
my siblings. 2And, you know, my mom ended up passing away,

and ---
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Q And that was in like October?

A + Yeah. It was in, I want to say, early October.

Q Okay. 8o -- but you were in Virginia.

A Yeah, yeah. We was in Virginia. And we came to

visit Greenville, but she ended up like passing away a

little after,

Q Ckay. 2And so November of 2QLl8 =—--

A Yeah.
Q --- what were you doing about that time?
A I remember waking up one morning. I was at my

brother's place. And ---

Q  Let me stop you. This is the morning ---

A Yeah. Of the incident, yeah.

Q This is November 24th. So were you visiting your
brother or were you ---

A Yeah. I was living with him, but we were -- I wasn't
== I wasn't residing in Greenville, South Carolina.

Q Okay.

A I —— I still had like mail coming from another state

and stuff. So —---

Q. .80 you were staying with your brother. . . .. ... ... . ..L

A Yeah. We was -- we was like visiting, but we was
living with him at the time, you know, staying with him.
Q How long had you been there with him, living with

him?
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A Maybe a few weeks.
Q Okay. But you were planning on going back to
Virginia.

A Yeah. We was -- I was planning eon going back.

Q Okay. So tell the jury about this morning,

November 24, 2018.
) S50 I woke up oene morning, and as usual I was going to

jog, you know,

Q I'm going to stop you. So do you like to jog?

A Yeah.

Q What do you typically jog or where do you typically
jog?

A I'm not toe familiar with the -- with the area, but I
know I'm going to jog at a park. But since it wasn't a
park nearby, I decided to jog off -- along the side of the
highway, side of the road.

Q Where did your brother live -- or where did your
brother live at this time?

-\ I don't remember the name of the exact apartments,
but it was somewhere near the area.

Q You left his house —- or his apartment.

A Yeah, yeah. T left his apartment early that morning,
and I w8 on a jog. And —---

Q Did you get anything to, I guess, use in your jog?

A Na.
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Q Whose clothes were you wearing?

A Oh, well, yeah. I had a jacket that my brother had
~~ had let me borrow.

Q Okay. So you are jogging?

A Uh-huh.

Q And what happens on your Jjog?

A Well, alongside of the road, I stumbled across what
looked like a pillowcase. 2And I picked it up and I seen
money and a silver revolver in it. And as I -- as I start
back walking, I was gettiing ready to start back into my
jog, but I see -- I heard sirens and I seen police cars
like driving directly towards me off the side of the
road.

Q All right. Let me stop you. What was going on in
your mind as you heard the police cars?

A I panicked.

Q Why?

A Just seeing a lot go on in the world, I just -- I
just figured out I was going to be another target. So I

was -—- I felt like my life was in jeopardy. 8o =---

Q. And where about on the road or the path did you find .. . |

this sack?
A It was like -— it was on -- on the side ¢f the road,
not in the grass but like still like on the side to where

if you were to drive, you could actually sze a pillowcase
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on the side of the road.

o} How long had you had it until you saw the police?

A Not even five minutes.

Q Qkay. Let's fast-forward. So you saw the police
coming down the road. Yol were scared. And what did you
do after that?

A I panicked and I start ~- I start running. Well, at
first I looked behind me and I seen the cars speeding
directly to me. And I thought he was going to hit me, so
I ran off the side of the road and like into the woods:
And that's where they began to chase me.

Q And why did yeu tell the peolicde -- or why did you
admit to the police later on that you were invelved in
that robbery?

A Because I -- I was == at the time I was very
depressed and I was —— I was -—- I w&s intoxicated, but T

wasn't to the point I couldn't go on a jog still. So ---

Q Intoxicated on what?
A Xanax.
Q And, I guess, what was going en through your mind

when this happened?

A I was just -- I was just -- honestly, at that moment
I -- it was just a lot going on in my head. I dida't know
what to think, what to do.

MS. JOHNSON: Beg the Court's indulgence.
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1 Thank you, Mr. Griffin. Answer any guestions from
2 the solicitor.

3 THE COURT: All right. Cross-examination.

4 MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the
5 Court.

6 0S NAT

7 BY MR. RICHARDSON:

8 Q Now, you're cut for a jog. Is that what you're

9 doing?
10 a Uh-huh.
11 Q And while you were jogging, at some point in time,
12 you're telling this jury that you find this pillowcase; is
13 thaﬁ right?

14 A Yes.

15 Q Did you continue to jog after that?

16 A No. I kind of stopped. And when -- like I said,
17 when I seen the police flying towards me, I panicked and
18 started running.

1@ Q And that was right after you found the pillowcase
20 according to your testimony; is that right?
21 A___Yeah. e
22 Q So during this jog, at what point in time did you
23 decide to pick this up and tie it to your belt? You admit
24 it was tied to your belt, don't you?

25

A Nah. It wasn't tied to my belt.
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Q You heard the officer testify it was tied to you.
A Yeah, I did. It wasn't.

Q Was it tied to you?

A No. I had it in my hand.

Q And when you see these police officers, your first
thing -- thought when they turn around is just simply to
run. That's what you decide to do,.

A Yeah. Because he's speeding towards me like he was

golng to hit me with his car.

Q Ckay. You ran into the woods,

A Yeah,

o You admit to running into the woods?

a Yeah. That was the only way I was going to get out

of the way and not =---

o) When you were in the woods, did you continue to run?
a Yeah.
Q Did you continue to flee the officer while you were

in the woods?

A Yeah. Until I -- until I got up at the hill, and
then I stopped once I seen another officer.

o} Well, you just testified to this jury that the reason
you ran is because you were afraid that the officer was
going to hit you. But you were in the woods and you were
still running. There was no car in the weods, was there?

7oy I mean, but he was chasing me with the gun.
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0 That's not what you testified to. You testified that
you ran because he was going to hit you with the car. I
asked you were you in the woods and still running. So you
ran while you were in the woods; is that correct?

A Right.

Q And this is 6:00 in the morning or 7:00; do you
remember that?

A Yeah. Close to 6:00 in the morning.

Q Okay. And when the officer arrested you, and you saw
the video, you talked to him freely, didn't you?

A Yeah. Because I watched the video, yeah.

0 Okay. And you told him that there were two employees
in the 7-Eleven; isn't that right?

A I - I --1I -- really couldn't even hear what he was
asking me at the time.

Q That's not my question. You told him -- he asked you
about two employees and you said there were two employees.
He asked you how many employees were in the 7-Eleven, and

you sald two employees; is that not correct?

A No.
Q  That's not on that video that was played before this
jury?

A No. I don't recall me saying that.
Q You don't recall saying that there were two

employees?
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A No.

Q Did vyou watch the videe while ii was played for the
jury?

& Yeah,

Q Okay. And that you also told the officer that this
was your gun; do you remember that?

I never told him that either,

You're saying that's not on that video.

I never told him that that was my gun.

You didn't tell him that this was your gun.

No.

And is that as truthful as those two statements is
truthful as everything else you're telling this jury?

A Yeah.

Q And when the officer asked you is this the first
store that you hit this morning, you said "yes." Do you
remember hearing that on the video? Do you remember
saying that?

A Honestly, I couldn't even hear. The music was loud.

Q Do you remember telling the officer that this was the

first store that you hit that morning?

A No. I don't remember telling him, no.

Q And is that ds truthful as gverything else you're
telling this jury?

A Yéeah.
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1 Q And this jacket, this is your jacket? your brother's
2 jacket?
3 a Yeah.
4 Q And you were wearing this jacket?
5 A Yes.
6 Q You need to say yes or no,
7 A I was.
8 Q This jacket with the white sleeve?
8 A {Nods head affirmatively.)
10 Q Yes or no?
11 A I was wearing that jacket.
12 Q Were you wearing this hat?
13 A Yeah.
14 Q You were.
15 And were you carrying money in that sack, in that
16 pillowcase?
17 A When -- when -- when -- at the time when they caught
18 me, no.
19 Q And at what point in time did you ever tell the
20 officer who was questioning you right after this that it
21 | wasn'tme? . e e
22 A I was -- I was tired, and honestly, I -- I didn't
23 even know what te think, really.
24 Q So this officer has put you under arrest at gunpoint,
25 and you don't tell him, "It's not me." You don't say that
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one time, dig you?
A No.
Q ‘This story-that‘you're.telling.the jury today, did
you ever tell a police officer that this is what happened?
A No.

MR. RICHARDSON: Tnatis all the guestions I have.

THE COURT: All right. Any rediréct?

MS. JOHNSOM: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. You may step down,

All right. Next witness. Any witness?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor. We -- the defense
rests at this time, Your Henor.

THE COURT: All right. Any reply from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: No reply, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, that is
the testimony in this case. And so it's getting just a
little bit late in the day, so what we'ré going to do is
we're going to end for the day. All the evidence is in
for you, and we will start tomorrow morning. You will
hear the closing arguments of the lawyers, and then I will
charge you the law and you'll deliberate.

So let's be back here tomorrow morning is the jury
room, we'll try to get started at 9:30, so if you would,
try to be here around 9:15.

and as I've mentioned te you, please don't discuss
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the case, don't -- because y'all are going to be home at
night, please don't google anything or do any
investigative work on your own. And just wait until
tomorrow when you deliberate among yourselves.

Hope all of you have a good night, and we'll see you
in the morning.

(WHEREUPON, the jury exits the courtroom at 3:53 p.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Anything from the parties?
Any motions? Anything else?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything from the defense?

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, just to reserve all my -- renew
all my previous motions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Those motions are noted and
denled at this time.

URY GE RE

THE COURT: As far as charges, I don't have a copy
yet, but I don't anticipate anything being -- other than
my regular charges and the charges on the indictments to
be armed robbery, possession of a weapon during the

commission ¢f a violent crime, pointing and presenting a

22
23
24

25

firearm, and resisting arrest. Are there any other
charges that either one of you think I need to include
other than the charges on those indictments and then just

the regular charges?
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MR. RICHARDSON: That suffices for the State.

THE COURT: From the defense?

MS. JOHNSON: Judge, I would just ask for a mere
presence charge.

THE COURT: All right, Any cbjectien from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: Well --——

THE COURT: We'll -- T'll give you the charges in the
morning, so that will give y'all both an opportunity to
come up with something else. I just want to generally let
y'all know what I was going to charge. The defense is
requesting a mere presence charge, SO if you want to, I'll
wait and hear you in the morning. And if there's any
other charges that y'all think of over the night and you
want me to charge, you would email Mr., Barrow. &All right.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Anything else?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State.

MS. JOHNSON: WNo, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ALl right. I'11l see y'all in the
morning.

(WHEREUPON, proceedings recessed at 3:55 p.m.)
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1 Thursday, September 8, 2022

2 (WHEREUPON, proceedings reconvened at 9:43 a.m.)

3 THE COURT: All right. As I understand, y'all have

4 had a chance to look at the chargesé

5 MR, RICHARDSON: Yes, Your Honor.

6 THE COURT: All right. And, Ms. Johnson, I'm not

7 going to charge mere presence.

g8 MS. JOHNSCON: Judge, I was going to withdraw that

9 anyway.
10 THE COURT: CQOkay.
11 MS. JOHNSON: Thank yocu, Your Honor.
12 THE COURT: All right. Any objection to the charges?
13 MR. RICHARDSON: Not from the State.
14 MS. JOHNSON: Not on behalf of Mr. Griffin.
15 THE COURT: All right. Let's bring them in.
16 (WHEREUPON, the jury entered the courtroom at 9:44 a.m.)
17 THE COURT: All right. Good morning, ladies and
18 gentlemen. I hope y'all had a good night.
138 As I told you yesterday, the evidence is in and we
20 are now proceeding to the closing arguments of the
21 attorneys, and then I will charge you the law on the case.
22 Recognize the State.
23 IiN M
24

25

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Please the

Court,.
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Good morning, ladies and gentlemen of the jury. 1
told you at the beginning of this case it was an honor to
be before y'all in this position. I've been doing this a
long time. B2nd I really meant that. It's really an honor
when I look over to the jury and I $ee how much attention
you're paying to the evidence in this case. And there's a
plethora of evidence I'm geing to go into in a minute.
But. I want to thank you once again for that attention to
the details of this case.

Now, it has been mentiohed that I have the burden of
proof, and that is true. I accept that burden as the
solicitor in this sﬁatel Solicitors all over this statfe
accept that burden every day. And. I have the burden to
prove this case te y'all beyond a reasconakle doubt. And I
want to say to you, that doesn't mean all doubt. Every
day in 1ife we have doubts about things. It’'s a
reasonable doubt. 2&rnd basically, what that is and I'm
asking you to do today is just use your common sense as it
applies to this case.

Qur jury system, as I stated in my opening statement,
is great. We bring in people from all walks of life. You
have different experiences, and we're asking you to use
those experiences in your everyday life, come in here,
lock at the evidence and just use your common sense. And

that's what reasonable doubt is, using your common sense
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to ascertain the facts of the case.

Now, I want to start out with the defendant's
testimony. Ladies and gentlemen, you heard the
defendant's testimony and his basis, his theory in this
case of what happened. And I'll tell you that throughout
the testimony -- and I'll say we have a video. We have
video of his confession, and we have video of the crime,
we have pictures of the crime. And there's a saying: a
picture speaks a thousand words. Today in my closing
argument, I'm not going to go in and show you these again.
You will have -- these are in evidence. You will have
these. You're more than welcome to look at it in your
jury room. We can provide that. I'm not going to go play
this again. Y'all remember and saw what happened on those
tapes.

His testimony was totally contradictory of what he
said during his confession. For instance, he goes into —-—
a question was asked, who was in the store? The police
officer said, "Who was in the store at the time of the
incident?"

And the defendant says, this guy right here says on

camera, you heard it, There were two people. There were
two employees. Not just two people. There were two
employees in the store. That's very important. Because

under his theory that he was not in that store, how would
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he know that there are two employees? Not one employee,

but two employees, and that there were no other customers
in the store. That goes directly to his lie to y'all on

the stand.

He was asked about the gun. And was it stolen? He
says, "No., It wasn’t stolen. It's my gun."

Now, ladies and gentlemen, on the stand he denied
making that statement, but yet it's on video., You saw it.
It's on video. He said it right then. But today when he
wants to come up here and tell y'all a story, all of a
sudden, I didn't say that. Well, it's on video.

The story is very convenient that he's brought out to
y'all. He says that he is jogging. Now, he's jogging
intoxicated, under the influence of Xanax. He said that
on the stand. That's not anything the State brought out.
He said that on the stand, that he happens to be jogging
at 6:30 in the morning, and he finds this bag on the side
of the road minutes after the armed robbery has taken
place, within .4 miles, wvery close walking distance,
within minutes of the 7-Eleven that had just been robbed.
His convenient story is -- because you'we got to explain
it. We got him. We got him caught. We got him on
camera.

Heé's got to figure out a way to fool y'all. ©h, I

just found this bag laying on the side of the road on
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Poingett Highway. Now, under that theory, somebody else
committed the crime. That person who committed the crime
got $150 some odd dollars, leaves that, the pillcwcase,
the money and this gun in a pillowcase right on the side
of Poinsett Highway instead of -- and we sée on the film
he's the only -- he's the only one walking up and down
Poinsett Highway. Nobody else was. Once again, a picture
speaks a thousand words.

But this person supposedly says, well, I'm just going
to drop this thing. I'm just going to drop it with all
the money, and we're just going to leave it there and I'm
just going to go about my merry way. I'm not going to go
put it in the woods and hide it so I can come back later.
We're going to put it right there on a major throughway
for everybody to see. BAbsolutely ridiculous.

And I kept asking him is everything that you said on
this stand as truthful as what you're telling the jury
toeday? And he said "yes." Because everything he said is
a lie.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, when we get to the point

of the actual facts, and sometimes lies lead into things

that he didn't think about, but when we get into the point
of the actual facts, we see on the camera that the
individual who is committing this crime, the defendant,

this is the defendant, we know it's the defendant, okay,
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he never explained —- at no point -- one thing he admitted
-~ and once again, when he admits something, he has to
admit something. And one of the things he has to admit
because it's found on him is this jacket with the white
sleeve. He's caught with that. We have it in evidence.
Clearly, ladies and gentlemen, in this photograph, that's
a jacket with one white sleeve. At what point in time did
he get on the stand with this ridiculous -story he's
telling y'all and say —- give an explanation to this?
Never. Because he was wearing this during that armed
robbery, and it's set right there. This is not all just a
coincidence.

The police were called immediately. The defendant
was found within walking distance of the 7-Eleven.

And let me say I commend the Greenville County
Sheriff's Office, their quick response on this. They had
one guy at the store almost immediately, they had two
other officers up there who catch the guy coming down the
road. And thank God for those guys. I commend what they
did in this case. And thank goodness that we have police
officers like that in this county.

Arid as I said, in his confession, the entire time he
is saying -~ in the confession he says that I pulled out a
gun. On the stand, I didn"t say that. His gun, on the

stand, he didn't say that. But you're hearing it right
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after the crime happened and he's caught. How many
employees in there? Right after the crime, there were two
employees that were in the store. He's admitted it.
He's caught with all the evidence in his possession.

And what does he do when he's caught? He runs. He
sees those police officers U-turn. You saw it on the
video. You saw the defendant walking down the street, and
those two police officers U-turn. A&nd what did he do? He
took off.

He's talking about they were trying to hit him.

Well, you saw the video. Did it look like they were
trying to hit him? He had a police officer right on his
tail yelling, "You are under arrest. Stop." And he was
net complying. Véry convenient. He's not complying, but
he makes a convenient story up why I was running from the
police. Well, where were the police officers when he
entered the woods? They were running, and that's all they
were doing. And he did not comply until he came out of
those woods and he had a police officer with his gun drawn
saying, "Get on the ground.” BAnd he knew he was caught at
that point in time. —

22
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24

25

He confesses at the scene but never, ever, ever tells
anybody that story that it wasn't him. He didn't say,
"You got the wrong guy. It's not me. I found the

pillowcase on the side of the road." Where did we hear
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that in his confession? No. He talks about, he ¢gives
details of the crime. He doesn't tell that. Teday -- or,
excuse me -- yesterday is the first time that story is

brought up becausé he warits y'all to let him go. He is

still trying to get out of this. He committed that armed

robbery with his face covered, with this shirt found on
him, those gloves that he dropped on the side of Poinsett
Highway right near where le was caught on the way down
from the 7-Eleven and running from the police. 3o he
tried to get out of it when he covered his face. He
thought he was smart, get out of it, cover my face.

I'm going to wear gloves. Why is he wearing gloves?
He doesn't want fingerprints detected. That's why no
fingerprints were found. He's wearing gloves.

And then he gets his last~ditch effort. What is it?
To -~ well, that's not his last~ditch effort. His third
effort is to run and get away. He doesn't get away. So

what's his last-ditch effort? To get up here and try to

fool you people with common sense with this ridiculous

story.

Key point, all the money that was found in the
pillowcase, an accounting was dene. It was the exact
amount of money that was taken. This is a veal gun. I
told you in the beginning, you can stick your finger in a

pocket and say, "Give me all your money. I've got a gun.”
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That right there is armed robbery in South Carclina. We
got it even further. We have an actual real weapon.

And Charles and the other employee in that store did
not deserve to have this gun pointed at them saying, "Give
me all the money. Hurry." That's what they went through,
these hard-working people who had been there on third
shift working as we -- as everybody does doing the right
thing and have this gun stuck in his face saying, "Give me
all the money.”

Pointing and presenting is an element of this. You
don't have to —- if you pull out the gun, that's enough?
No. He takes -- he doesn't pull it out and just keep it
like this (démonstrating) and say, "Give me all the
money." You see it in the video. He has it pointed at
him.

He did not deserve to go through this, nor does
anybody in this society deserve to go through this.

I said to you, ladies and gentlemen, at the start of
this, and I'll reiterate, I just want you to use your

common sense. The judge is going to tell you about direct

. and circumstantial evidence. Okay. This is dizect _ . ... ...

evidence. There's no circumstantial. A lot of times I
have to come to juries and I have to put pieces of the
puzzle together and all that. You folks are fortunate

enough to see the entire event. I showed you the entire
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event on caméra. You saw the crime, the chase, and the
aftermath with the confession:

The defendant has everything to lose. That's why
he's up here trying to fool you.

I appreciate your time and attention in this matter,
and I am going to ask that you come back with the only
possible verdicts in this case, guilty on all charges
against this individual who was so bold to go in there and
put that gun in those individuals' faces.

Thank you very much.

THE COURT: Ms. Johnson?

M5. JOHNSON: May it please the Court.

I told y'all yesterday the first answer, the easiest

answer and the guickest answer is not always the right

answer. We have a cone-minute video and theé State closes

its case. That's all the investigation that was done
here.

My client is charged with very serious allegations,
and we have no serilous investigaticon? Jeffery is an
American citizen. As an Bmerican citizen, he deserves to
have an investigation more than a minute.

I talked to you about reasonable doubt, what
redsonable doubt is. And you're going to hear about
reasonable doubt from His Honor. But reasonable doubt is

that which would cause someone to hesitate to act. And as
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we all know, nothing in life is certain. But reasonable
doubt is akin =-- or like to say it's akin to building a
bridge across the Grand Canyon, a rope bridge and feeling
good about walking over it, feeling like you're going to
make it to the other side. In this case, I wouldn't feel
very good about walking over it. Maybe I get -- you know,
fall in a hole here or there.

Reasonable doubt in everything or in all cases comes
from three things: lack of evidence, conflict of evidence
or the evidence itself. Here we have a lack of evidence.

First of all, in this case the State had the ability
to confirm their work, to make a solid case, to really
enjoy all those congratulationé and high-fives. They had
the ability to give you a slam dunk of a case. I think
one officer said, yeah, it was a slam dunk, after a minute
video and a chase. To seal the deal, though, they could
have left you with no doubts. Instead, they give you a
rickety bridge and ask you to walk over it.

3o the lack of evidence is what we have in this case.
First of all, we don't have a real ID. Bring -- or drive

Mr, Griffin two minutes up the road, have Mr. Henderson
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walk out and ID him. Why didn't we -- why didn't the
State do that here? They had doubt, and they didn't want
to risk a "maybe" or a "not sure."

Another thing that wasn't done in this case, no
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testing any of the implements: these gloves, this gun.

What would that testing have shown? You heard
yesterday the dog hit on these gloves for some human
scent. Well, let’'s confirm that human's DNA. Maybe the
State wouldn't like what it shows. Who knows?

You all heard yesterday about a mask over and over.
At one point you hear white mask, masked man. Regardless,
the State has breought you footage of a masked man.
Jeffery's not masked. And I don't sée how you can cover
your face with a black T-shirt and be able to see.

Another thing, missing footage. The State just told
you they had the -- they showed you the entire event. No,
they did not. They absolutely did not show you the entire
event. They have body-worn cameras that are not on all
the time. We have no footage of the pillowcase, of the
money, of the gun being retrieved. There are two, three

officers out there with their in-car cameras rolling.

0fficers should have body cams going also. You heard

Deputy Ochoa showed up to the scene, body cam rolling.
Why don't we have that here when they arrest Mr. Griffin?
Where's the video of the store from the other angles?
What would it show? A face without a mask, possibly to
confirm or deny any theory?
And I'm goirng to let you take the confession, the

video at the scene, Jeffery's confession for what it's
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worth. Jeffery's clearly out of breath, he's begging for
water, pleading for water.

And why do we only hear the officer for the most part
of the video? BAnd why is it that the part you can hear
Jeffery in 20 minutes later?

I'm asking you to not rush to judgment like the State
of South Carolina and the police did in this case. The
investigation lasted as long as that video, that store
video.

Look at the awesome power of the State of South
Carolina, of our government. It clearly had the ability
to find the correct answer, to confirm their case. The
State could have sealed the deal. But no. Why ﬁot? Too
risky. There was always that chance of maybe, not sure,
but it's not one they're willing to take.

And I'm about to end, but I'm asking that you do not
stand for the investigation done in this case. Do not
Jjump to automatic conclusions like the State has or the
police did in this case. Do not accept the first answer,

the easiest answer and the gquickest answer as the right

answer. And I'm asking that you find my client, Jeffery ... . J|.

Griffin, not guilty of all the charges.
Thank you.
MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. Briefly.

At this point I get to address certain things she
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brought up. I'll be véry brierf,

The réason why they don't take him up to see the
clerk for a positive ID is a spit-ball approach of trying
to convince y'all of something. The reason why they don't
do that is because his face was covered in the crime. We
see it in there. He testified to that. Why ate we going
te bring up an individual that he didn't see his face? He
gave a description. That was the end of it.

It says lack of evidence. The defendant had all the
evidence, Here it is. All the evidénce is here. The
defendant had it.

There were certain things that the clerk said that

were -~ I think there was some testimony about maybe there

was a white mask. Folks, this is being stuck in his face.

He's looking down getting ~- getting all the money for
him, and he's sticking it in here hoping that he doesn't

get shot in the chest. Yes, somebody may make a little

bit of a mistake on what they saw. The great thing about

that is you don't have to depend upon that because it's
all on video.

There was no white facemask. A shirt easily can be

wrapped around somebody’s face. And, in fact, the officer

told y'all that the shirt was tied around. It wasn't on

him. And I asked him. It wasn't on him. It was tied

drgund his neck like it could be used as z face mask.
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Guilty. Thank you.
ARGE HE

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, if you
would, please give me your attention as I instruct you on
the law in this case, and then I will then ask you to
return -- or turn to the jury room and begin your
deliberations.

The defendant in this case has been charged under
indictments. The indictments the defendant has been
charged with are armed robbery, possession of a weapon
during the commission of a violent crime, resisting arrest
and pointing and presenting a firearm. I remind you that
the fact the defendant was arrested,.charged and indicted
in this case is not evidence and cannot be considered by
you as evidence of guilt in this case, nor does it create
any presumption or inference of guilt. This document --
or these documents are simply the formal writiten
instruments which contain the charges made against the
defendant. They are the formal documents by which the
case 1s brought into court.

I alsc remind you that during the trial, you and I._.

have had certain duties to perform. &s the trial judge,
it has been my responsibility to preside over the trial of
the case, and I have also had the duty to rule on the

admissibility of any evidence which has been offered
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during the trial. You are to consider only the competent
evidence that has been admitted into evidence before you.
If there was any testimony ordered stricken from the
record in this case during this trial, you must disregard
that testimony. You are to consider only the testimony
which has been presented from the witness stand here and
any exhibits which have been put intoc evidence as part of
the case.

I have the additional duty to charge you the law that
is applicable in this case. As the presiding judge, I am
the sole judge of the law in the case, and it is your duty
as jurors teo accept and apply the law as I row state it to
you. If you already have any idea as to what the law is
or what the law ought to be and it dees not agree with
what I am going te tell you now, then you must abandon
that idea because you're sworn to accept the law and apply
the law exactly as I state it to you.

In every case tried in this court before a jury, the
jury becemes the sole and exclusive judge of the facts. A
trial judge like myself cannot state, comment on or make
any statement to the trial jury about the facts in a case
since you the jury are the sole judges of the facts in
this case. You are not to infer anything that T may have
said or what I have said during the progress of the trial

in ruling upon the admissibility of any evidenge or




192

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

Charge on the Law 188

ctherwise, or anything that I say now during the course of
this instruction of the law to you that I have any opinion
about the facts in this case. The law does not allow me
to have an opinion about the facts. It's a matter solely
for you, and I do not have any opinion abeout the facts.

It is for you the jury to determine the effect, value and
weight of the evidence that's been presented to you during
this trial.

As I've stated, the indictments allege multiple
charges in this case, and each indictment charges a
separate and distinct offense. You must decide each
indictment separately on the evidence and the law
applicable to it and it’'s uninfluenced by yéur decision as
to any other indictment. The defendant may be convicted
or acquitted on any or all of the offenses charged. You
will be asked to write a separate verdict of guilty orx not
guilty for each indictment.

The defendant has pled not guilty te these
indictments, and that puts the burden of proof on the

State to prove the defendant guilty. A person charged
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with committing a criminal offense in South Carolina is
never required to prove himself innocent. I charge you
that it is an important rule of law that the defendant in
a criminal trial, no matter what the seriousness of the

charge may be, will always be presumed to be innocent of
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the crime for which the indictments were issued uhléss
guilt has been proven by the evidence satisfying you of
that guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.

This presumption of innocence doés not end when you
begin your deliberations, but it accompanies the defendant
throughout the trial and your deliberations until you
reach a verdict of guilt based upon evidence that has
satisfied you of guilt beyond a reascnabile doubt. The
presumption of innocence is like a robe of righteousness

placed about the shoulders of the defendant which remains

with the defendant until it has been stripped from the

defendant by evidence satisfying you of the defendant’s
guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.’

The presumption of innocence is not a mere legal
theory. It is not just a legal phrase. It is a
substantial right to which every defendant is entitled

unless you the jury are satisfied from the evidence of the

defendant's guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.

The State has the burden, as 1've said, of proving
the defendant's guilt, and it must be guilt beyond a
reasonable doubt. Some of you may have served as jurors
in a eivil case where you were told that it is only
necessdry to prove that a fdact is more likely true than
Aot true such as the greater weight of the evidence or the

preponderance of the evidence. Proof beyond a reasonable
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doubt is proof that leaves you firmly convinced of the
defendant's guilt. There are very few things in this
world that we know with absolute certainty, and in
criminal cases, the law does not require proef that
overcomes every possible doubt.

If, based on your consideration of the evidence, you
are firmly convinced that the defendant is guilty of the
crime charged, you must find the defendant guilty. If, on
the other hand, you think there is a real possibility that
the defendant is not guilty, you must give the defendant
the benefit of the doubt and find him not guilty.

The following things are not evidence and you must
not consider them evidence in deciding the facts of this
case. One is the statement and arguments of the attorneys
in the trial, any questions and objections of the
attorneys, and the testimony that I may have told you to
disregard or not consider.

There are two types of evidence which are generally
presented in a trial. That's direct evidence and

circumstantial evidence. Direct evidence directly proves

_the existence of a fact and does not require deduction.._.

Circumstantial evidence is proof of a chain of facts and
circumstances indicating the existence of a fact.
Crimes may be proven by circumstantial evidence. The

law makes no distinction between the weight or value to be
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given to either direct or circumstantial evidence.
However, to the extent the State relies on any
circumstantial evidence, all of the circumstances must be
consistent with each other, and when taken together, point
conclusively to the guilt of the defendant beyond a
reasconable doubt. If these circumstances merely portray
the defendant's behavior as suspicious, the procof has
failed.

The State has the burden of proving the defendant
guilty beyond a reasonable doubt, and it rests with the
State regardless of whether the State relies on direct
evidence, circumstantial evidence or a combination of the
two.

Necessarily, you must determine the credibility of
the witnesses who have testified in this case.
Credibility simply believability.

It becomes your duty as jurors to analyze and to
evaluate the evidence. 1In determining the believability
of the evidence of the witnesses who have testified in
this case, you may believe one witness over several
witnesses, or several witnesses over one witness; you may
believe a part of the testimony of a witness, and reject
the remaining part of the testimony of that same witness:
you may believe the testimony of a witness in its

entirety, or reject the testimony of a witness in its
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entirety; you may consider whether any witness has
exhibited to you any interest, bias, prejudice or other
motive in this case; you may also consider the appearance
and manner of a witness while on the witness stand and
testifying,

The rules of evidence ordinarily do not permit
witnesses to testify to opinions or conclusions. As you
recall yesterday, there was an expert witness, and I gave
you the instructions about that. An exception to that
rule exists for witnesses that we call expert witnesses.

A witness who, by education and experience has become
expert in some art, science, profession or calling, they
may state an opinion as to relevant and material matter in
which the witness claims to be an expert and may also
state the reasons for that opinion.

You should consider any expert opinicn received as
evidence in this case, and like any other evidence, give
it the weight you think it deserves. If you decide that
the opinion of an expert is not based on sufficient
education and experience, or if you conclude that the

reasons given in support of the opinion are not sound, or
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that the opinion is outweighed by other evidence, you may
disregard the opinion entirely.
An expert witness's testimony is to be given no

greater weight than that of other witnesses simply because
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the witness is an expert. Further, you're 1ot reguired to
accept an expert's opinion even though it is not
contradicted.

Now, a statement alleged to have been made by the
defendant in this case has been admitted inteo eévidence.
While the Court has determined that the statement is
admissible, I instruet you that you make the ultimate
decision of whether or not the defendant made the
statement. If the defendant did make the statement, you
must determine whether the statement was made by the
defendant voluntarily and of his own free will. Tﬁis
means that the statement was not caused by pressure,
force, fear, threats, coercion or intimidation, or by hope
or a promise of leniency, or a reward of any kind.

In determining whether the statement was voluntary,
you should consider both the characteristics of the
defendant and the details of the guestioning. Some of the

factors that you may consider are the age of the

defendant, the defendant's education or lack of education,

the defendant's mental ability or capacity, the
defendant's IQ or intelligence, the defendant's background
and environment, the place and length of detentieon, the
nature of ‘the guestioning, and the advice or lack of
advice thereof to the defendant of his constitutional

rights including but not limited to the right to remain
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silent, that any statement could be used against him in 2
court of law, the right to have a lawyer present, that if
he could not afford a lawyer, a lawyer would be appointed
to represent him without any cost, and that he could stop
making a statement at any time. You must carefully
consider all of the surrounding circumstances before you
give any weight to an alleged statement.

The State has the burden of proving beyond a
reasonable doubt that the alleged statement was voluntary.
If you determine it was, you may give the statement any
further consideration that you deem proper. You must
decide what weight, if any, should be given to the alleged
statement.

If you determine the alleged statement was not free
and voluntary -- it was not the free and veluntary
statement of the defendant, you should not consider the
statement at all.

In order to establish criminal liability, intent is
required. For example, the mental state regquired to be
proven by the State for a particular crime might be

purpose, intent, knowledge, recklessness or criminal
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negligence,
Criminal intent must be proven by the State beyond a
reasonable doubt. Criminal intent is always a matter that

must be determined by the jury from the circumstances
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surrounding the situation. There is noc way to prove
intent to a mathematical certainty. There is no way
medical science can dissect a person's brain and determine
what the person had in mind, so the law says that criminal
intent may be inferred from the circumstances shown to
have existed. This is how you make a determination of
whether or not the element requiring intent was present.

It is not necessary to establish intent by direct and
positive evidence, but intent may be established by
inference in the same way as any other fact by taking into
consideration the acts of the parties and all of the facts
and circumstances of the case.

Criminal intent is a mental state, a conscious
wrongdoing. It is up teo you to determine what the
defendant intended to do based on the circumstances shown
to have existed.

Criminal intent can arise from action or failure to
act. It may arise from negligence, recklessness or an
indifference to duty or to consequences that 1s considered
by the law to be the equivalent of criminal intent.

The defendant is charged with armed robbery. In
order to prove this offense, the State must f£irst prove
beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant took personal
property from the person or presence of another person.

Property is in the presence of a person if it is
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within the person's reach, inspection, observation or
control so that the person could, if not overcome with
violence or prevented by fear, keep possession of the
property.

The State must also prove beyond a reasonable doubt
that the defendant carried the property away intending to
permanently deprive the owner of the property and to keep
the property for the defendant's own use,

The slightest removal of the property or the complete
possession of the property, even for an instant by the
defendant, is sufficient to show a taking and carrying
away of the property. The taking and carrying away of the
property must have been done with violence or by putting
the owner of the property in fear of violence.

Finally, the State must prove beyond a reasonable
doubt that the defendant was armed with a deadly weapon
during the robbery.

A deadly weapon is any article, instrument or
substance which is likely to cause death or great bodily
harm.

. Whether an instrument has been used as a deadly
weapon depends on the facts and circumstances of each
case, The following examples of instruments which may be
deadly weapons: a pistol, a shotgun, a rifle, a dirk, a

dagger, a knife, a slingshot, metal knuckles, a razor,
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gasoline, a firebomb, a Molotov cocktail or lighter fluid.

A gun may be a deadly weapon éven if it is not
operating.

The defendant is charged also with possession of a
weapoen during the coémmission of or attempt to commit a
viglent crime. The State must prove beyond a reasonable
doubt that the defendant was inh possession of a firearm or
visibly displayed what appeared to be a firearm during the
commission of a viclent crime.

A firearm means ahy machine gun, automatic rifle,
revolver, pistol or any weapon which will or is: designed
to or may be readily converted to expel a projectile.

In order to find the defendant guilty of possession
of a weapon during the contmigsion ©f a violent erime, you
must first find the defendant guilty of either committing
a violent crime or attempting to commit a violent crime.
Under South Carelina law, armed robbery is a violent
crime.

The State must prove beyond a reasohable doubt that
the weapon furthered, advanced or helped in the commission
of the crime.

The defendant: is alsec charged with resisting arrest.
The State must prove, again, beyond a reasonable doubt
that the defendant knowingly and willfully resisted a

lawful arrest being made by a person the defendant knew or
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reasonably should have known was a law enforcement
officer.

"Enowingly" means with knowledge, consciously done.

"Willfully" means done intentionally and not done by
accident.

"Resist" means to oppose, strive against, or
obstruct.

"Obstruct" means to impede, hinder or interfere with.

Even peaceful, nonviolent, indirect obstruection of an
arrest or the service or execution of process is
considered resisting arrest. If the means used are
sufficient to prevent the officer from making an arrest,
the defendant is guilty of resisting arrest.

The defendant is charged with pointing or presenting
a firearm. The State must prove, again, beyond a
reasonable doubt that the defendant presented or pointed
at another person a loaded or unloaded firearm.

Ladies and gentlemer:, a wverdict in this case cannot
be based upon sympathy, passion, prejudice or emotion or
any other consideration that has not been put forth before

you into evidence from this witness stand or any of the

22
23
24

25

exhibits that have been admitted into evidence.
Now, let me say something about deliberations.
Deliberations -- or "deliberation" has often been defined

as the act of thinking about or discussing something and
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deciding carefully. The genius of our jury system is that
it allows 12 good men and women Ffrom 12 different
backgrounds, life experiences and perspectives to consider
the evidence, talk about it, and ultimately reach a
verdict. We call them deliberations for a reason. You
are to consider the evidence in this case carefully and
deliberately, and discuss it in a calm, thorough and
courteous manner.

Remember, you are not partisans or advocates for
either side. You do not favor one side over the other.
You are judges, judges of the facts. Listen to the views
of all of your fellow jurors, consider other people’s
opinions and their points of view and talk through and
discuss the evidence. Remember, if you are doing
something deliberately, you are not in a big hurry, and
you should not be in a blg hurry here. This case is very
important to both sides, and this is their only day in
court.

When you retire to the jury room, you should discuss
the case with your fellow jurors to reach agreement if you
can do so0.

Your verdict must be unanimous. Each of you must
decide the case for yourself, but you should do so only
after you have impartially considered all the evidence,

discussed it fully with your fellow jurors, and listened
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to the views of your fellow jurors. Do not be afraid to
change your opinion if the discussion persuades you that
you should, but do not come to a decision simply because
other jurors think it is right.

It is important that you attempt to reach a unanimous
verdict, but, of course, only if each of you can do so
after having made your own decision. Do not change an
honest belief about the weight and effect of the evidence
simply to reach a verdict. 1In other words, do not change
your opinion scolely for the sake of reaching a unanimous
verdict.

Now, ladies and gentlemen and Madam Forelady, there
are two pdssible verdicts to find on each of the
indictments: guilty or not guilty. You will have this
verdict form, Madam Forelady, back in the jury room with
you. You will have the four indictments and charges that
the defendant is charged with, and then it will have
blanks for "guilty" or "not guilty."

Do not take into consideration the order in which I
put them on. It's "guilty," then "not guilty." I have to

put _one or the othex, and so that's what I have done. It

does not mean anything, the order I have put them on.
So once, 1f you're able to reach a verdict, a
unanimous verdict on each of the indictments, check the

appropriate space by each one of them, then sign the
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verdict form, which is on the second page, and knock on
the door and let the bailiff know that you have reached a
verdict on all of the iﬁdictments.

Now, if you have any questions, there will be some
notepad -— a notepad in there. Write a guestion if you
have any, knock on the deoor, and give it te the balliff,
and then he will provide it to me and I will handle it
from there. There may be times I may need to bring you
out if you asre requesting any testimony tec be played back
or anything like that. But I will just look at your
question and see the best way to handle it. I may not
need to bring you out. I may can just respond back on the
note,

So I'm going to ask that you retire to the jury room
at this point. Do not start deliberations yet. I've got
to go over the lawyers to make sure my charges were
correct to you. And once I have determined that you are
ready to deliberate, we'll have the bailiff bring in the
evidence for you and tell you that you can start
deliberating.

Two alternates, go on back right now. But once I
give the go-ahead to start deliberations, I'm going to
bring you two back out, okay?

All right. Thank you.

(WHEREUPON, the jury exits the courtroom at 10:36 a.m.) -
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THE COURT: All right. Any exceptions from the
State?

MR, RICHARDSON: Without objection or exception.

THE COURT: Objections or exceptions, any?

MR. RICHARDSON: Without.

THE COURT: Without,

MR, RICHARDSON: I'm sorry, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Johnson?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. If you all would, take a look
at the evidence, make sure everything is there. BAnd then
we'll give it to Mr. Cleary or whoever to take back there.
(WHEREUPON, a recess is taken at 10:40 a.m., and the jury

starts deliberating.)

THE COURT: All right. I want to commend both ¢f you
for an outstanding job. Always good to preside over a
case with good lawyers. 8¢ both of your clients can be
satisfied they got outstanding representations.

MR. RICHARDSON: Judge, we apprecliate it too from
you.

(WHEREUPON, the two alternates entered the courtroom,).

THE COURT: All right. Thank you both for your
sexrvice on this case. Unfortunately, everybody is still
intact in here, and so your services are not needed. But

your services are very important because oftentimes, one
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or more jurors, somehow something happens and have to get
excused. So your being there is very important just in

case something like that happens. And fortunately, it did

not happen in this case, and so the 12 -- first 12 will be

deliberating and you will not, unfortunately, get to
participate in that.

I have been told just to ask you to go back
downstairs for any further instruction down there. I will
not see you again. I've tried two cases this week, and my
cases are over. So I will not see you.

And I want to thank you again for your service. T
really do appreciate it. And you're good for three years,
too. So if you get called to jury duty again within three
years, you just let them know, unless you want to come
back. We'd love to have you.

So thank you very much. And if y'all would, just
report back downstairs.

All right. We'll be in recess.

(WHEREUPON, a recess is taken at 10:43 a.m.)
JURY OQUESTION

THE COURT: All right. 1I've got a question -- or
gquestions., First question is what exactly —- they left
out "is" -- is resisting arrest? I think they're asking
what exactly is resisting arrest.

Second question, is it noncompliance to an order?
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And the third question, was the defendant immediately
told he was under arrest?

Now, I'll give you my thoughts and then I'll hear
from you. BAs to the first two questions, what exactly is
resisting arrest and is it noncompliance to an order, two
options there. I can bring them back out and charge tﬁem
on resisting arrest, or I can just make a copy of the
resisting arrest charge and send it back there to them.

As to the third, was the defendant immediately told
he was under arrest, that's just a matter that they have
to determine the evidence is before them, and they have to
determine that question from the evidence that's been
presented to them. But I'll hear from 5oth of you. First
of all,‘Mr. Richardson.

MR. RICHARDSON: I do not have a preference on
whether you charge that again or send it back. I really
don't, Judge. I don't think it has an effect either way.

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Johnson.

MS. JOHNSON: I tazke no position Your Honor. I have

no ===
w.R. RICHARDSON: Leave it in the Court's discretion. .. |
THE CQURT: Okay.
MR. RICHARDSON: Are you going to bring them back out
for the ---

THE COURT: Well, that's what I -- that's the only
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thing. If I bring them back out for the third gueéstion

about whether the defendant was immediately told he was

under arrest, if I bring them back cut for that, I might

as well just charge resisting arrest: Or;, again, the

option is send them the copy of the charge for resisting

arrest for the first two questions, and I could write on

the question that as to the third guestion, they are to
determine that from the evidence that's been presented to
them.

MR. RICHARDSON: I personally prefer just everything
to go back there and not bring them out.

THE COURT: Ms. Johnson, deo you have any preference?

M3, JOHNSON: I have no objection te that, Your
Honox.,

THE COURT: I think probably the best thing -- and

also want a laptop; is that right?

THE BAILIFF: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: So we're going to send the laptop.

All right. I'think what I'll do is for the first two
gquestions, I will send a copy of the charge. I've already

made a copy just in case that was going to ke the

decision. So I will send a copy of the charge on

resisting arrest back there to them, and then I will write
on their note along the lines of what I just said about

the to determine that question from the evidence that's
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been presented. Is that all right?
MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor..
THE COURT: First of all, let's mark this.
(WHEREUPON, Court's Exhibit Number 2 was marked for
identification.)

MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, if it became a real
issue, I will tell you when it was said. It was said
during Corey Chadwick's testimony. As far as I'm
concerned, that suffices. But it came in during his
testimony, so if they need to hear that particular piece
of testimony .

THE COURT: TI told them in the charges if they need
to hear some testimony, they can.

MR. RICHARDSON: Okay. That's fair.

THE COURT: And I'm not going to point them to a
particular witness or anything like that.

MR. RICHARDSON: 1It's a good point, and I appreciate
that, Judge.

(Pause in proceedings.)

THE COURT: Okay. Here are my responses: As to the

first two questions, I am providing you with the charge on.. .{.

the law of resisting arrest. As to the third question,
you must determine that fact based on the evidence that
has been presented.

Anything from the State?




10

11
12
13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20
21
22
23

24

25

Jury Questions 207

211

MR. RICHARDSON: WNo objections.
THE COURT: Any objection?

MS. JOHNSCN: Ng, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Okay. Sc here's the guestion

to return, here's the charge to send back, and as I
understand, they want the laptop.

THE BAILIFF: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me see you all up here.
(WHEREUPON, a bench conference was held off the record; a
regess is taken at 11:16 a.m.)

JURY QUES

THE COURT: All right. The next gquestion: Is it
something we need to know, mental status? Again, it's not
in the form of a qguestion, but it says: Is it something
we. need to know, mental status?

MR. RICHARDSON: I'm not sure I even understand it.

THE COURT: I'm not sure what that -- do y'all have
any idea of what that may mean? Is it something we need
o know, mental status?

MR. RICHARDSON: Maybe just ask them,

THE COURT: How about if I just write on there:
Please clarify this ¢question as to what exactly you're
asking. How's that? Is that all right?

MS. JOHNSON: No objection, Your Honer.

THE COURT: @All right. I've written on there:
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Please clarify as to what you are asking. We'll just hang
here until they .
(Pause in proceedings.)

THE COURT: All right. I understand we have a
verdict; is that right?

All right. Anything from the State before we bring
them in?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE CCURT: Anything from defense?

MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Bring them in.
(WHEREUPON, the jury entered the courtroom at 11:49 a.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Madam Ferelady, I understand
you have reached a verdict; is that correct?

JURY FOREPERSON: We have,

TEE COURT: &ll right. And has it been unanimous?

JURY FOREPERSON: It has.

THE COURT: All right. If you would, hand it to the
bailiff right there, Mr. Hutchins.

All right. Madam Clerk, i1f you would, publish the

VERDICT

verdict. = R e

THE CLERK: Your Honor, these are Indictment Numbers

2019-GS-23-000604, 2019-GS-23-000605, 2019-G5-23-0006&06,

the State of South Carolinag vs., Jefferv Kevon Timothy
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Griffin,

As to the charge of armed robbery, we the jury
unanimously find the defendant, Jeffery Keyon Timothy
Griffin, guilty.

As to the charge of possession of a weapon during the
commission of a violent crime, we the jury unanimously
find the defendant, Jeffery Keyon Timothy Griffin, guilty.

As to the charge of pointing and presenting a
firearm, we the jury unanimously find the defendant,
Jeffery Keyon Timothy Griffin, guilty.

As to the charge of resisting arrest, we the jury
unanimously find the defendant, Jeffery Keyon Timothy
Griffin, guilty.

I certify that this is the unanimous decision of the
jury, signed Angela Alford, Juror Number 5, foreperson,
Septenmber 8, 2022, Greenville, South Carolina.

'If this is your verdict, so say you all, please
signify by raising your right hand.

{(WHEREUPON, &ll -jurors raised their right hand.)

THE CLERK: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Madam Clerk.

Any polling from the State? Anything from the State?
Any request to poll from the State or the defense?

MS. JOHNSGN: Judge, I would reéguest a poll.

THE COQURT: You do request a poll.
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MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Madam Clerk?

THE CLERK: The verdict that was just published was

the verdict you reached in the jury room. I ask you, was

it your verdict then and is it your verdict now?
call your name, please answer yes or no.
Christopher Savio.
JURCR NUMBER 188: Yes.
THE CLERK: Chase Dalton.
JURCR NUMBER 51l: Yes.
THE CLERK: Letitia Gordon.
JUROR NUMBER 76: Yes.
THE CLERK: Steve Varmner.
JURQOR NUMBER 219: Yes.
THE CLERK: Bruce Rowland.
JUROR NUMBER 183: Yes.
THE CLERK: Maliheh Nematollahi.
JUROR NUMBER 144: Yes.
THE CLERK: Keitha Washington.
JURCR NUMBER 224: Yes.

THE CLERK: May Alber. . . ... . ..

JURCR NUMBER 3: Yes.
THE CLERK: Karen Mazkepeace.
JUROR NUMBER 119: Yes.

THE CLERK: Mary Putnam.

When I
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JURCOR NUMBER 166: Yes.

THE CLERK: Kennedi Hunter.

JUROR NUMBER 94: Yes,.

THE CLERK: Angela Alford.

JUROR NUMBER 5: Yes,

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

All right. Anything else from the State?

MR. RICHARDSON: Nothing from the State.

THE COURT: Anything else from defense?

MS. JOHNSON: Neo, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Ladies and gentlemen, that
concludes the trial. I want to thank you for your service
here. I'm going to ask you to step back in the jury room.
I'm going to speak to you just for a minute and give you
further instructions at that point.

All right. Thank you.

(WHEREUPON, the jury exits the courtroom at 11:53 a.m.)

THE COURT: ALl right. I'm going to step back and
speak with them for a brief bit, and I'll come back in and
we'll do sentencing.

(Pause in proceedings.)

THE COURT: All right. Are y'all ready to proceed?

MR. RICHARDSON: The State's ready.

MS. JOBNSON: Do you want us to come arcund, Your

Honor?
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THE COURT: You don't have to. Don't worry about it.

All right., Yes, sir, Mr. Richardscn.

MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you, Your Honor. FPlease the
Court,

Your Honor, in regards to sentence, first I want to
put on the record that he has three pending armed
ropbberies. And the reason I'm telling you that is because
I have offered him, now that he's been convicted of this
one armed robbery, to plead to those to aveid a -- I'm
going to serve him on the life without parole sentence
after this hearing today. And I want it on the record
that I offered that, and to do it today, even though I
told him I was going to do it anyway, I would not go after
that if he pled to those armed robberies today. He has
refused that.

YTour Honor, as far as sentencing regarding this case,
throughout this trial he has stood fast over there. He
has shown abscolutely no remorse for this crime, in fact,
to the extent that he got on the stand, and we all know

it, he lied. It was obvious. He was on tape. There's no

question he committed perjury on the stand., . .. . . .} .

The concern for the State is with all this evidence
that we have, and you saw the evidence, the jury was
definitely convinced, all this evidence we have, he still

is sitting over there with no remorse. The concern for
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the State is that he will do this again. If he does not
care about this and accepting responsibility -- he has
every right to a trial, absolutely respect that, but he
has not accepted one bit of responsibility for this. That
tells me, in my years of experience, that he will commit a
crime again of this magnitude. That's a concern for the
State.

The range for this for -- armed robbery is the main
thing -—- is ten minimum, mandatory to 30 years. Based
upon his attitude and the way he has presented himself and
the lies on the stand and the fact that this is a violent
offense, the State is respectfully asking for a 30-year
sentence.

THE COURT: All right. Ms. Johnson?

MS., JOHNSCON: May it please the Court. Youxr Honor,
at this time I'm asking for ten years in this case, Your
Honor. And I want to let the Court know that -- and this
is a very trite expression, but Jeffery is obviously
dealing with a very small piece of the American pie.
Probably the smallest piece. I'm not saying he's not
competent, Your Honor. O©Obviously, I accept the fact that
he was competent. Judge Maddox found him competent. But,
you know, if there is the competency bar, he is ---

THE COﬁRT: You mean Dr. Maddox.

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor. I apologize.
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He is right below it. I want to let the Court know
that he is receiving psychiatric meds in jail. The jail
doctor, I believe, has diagnosed him with schizophrenia.
He's at least getting antipsychotics in the jail. He is
obviously lower functioning. Again, I'm not making any
claims that he was not competent here. We had that
assessed, as Your Honor heard. And also, he had a head
injury when he was employed with the City of Greenville
deing sanitation services.

And my assessment of this situation is Jeffery, I
believe, comes in here with no prior record or a minimal
record, and the solicitor can confirm that or clear that
ﬁp. He may have an arrest for a shoplifting or conviction
for a thirty-day shoplifting, but I believe that is it
until 2018,

And what happened in 2018, Your Honor, is his mother
died. &and I think his mother was, you know, his rock and,
you know, really looked out for him. He has a younger
sister who has taken on that role and -- with all of her

other brothers and sisters. 2nd she -- the love and

22
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25

is, you know, mothering all these other siblings that

Jeffery has.
But regardless, I think he lost his mother in 2018

unexpectedly. I think it was from cancer. And I think he
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got on drugs, tock gome Xanax. And with everything that
he had going on in his life --- we've got head injury,
weé've got the mental illness, and we've got the low
functioning, but he is competent, Your Honor —- I think
this happened. And I think in his mind, becsuse he can't
remember this, I think he believes that he is telling the
truth because he can't remember this incident.

And T hate for my client to be punished for asserting
his right to & jury trial, his right to defend himsel?,
and -- but I think there's g lot going on Here, and I
would simply ask for mercy from the Court. I want to let
the Court know that we've had all of our scocial workers,
you know, help us with Mr. Griffin. Ms. Pia, Ann Marie,
Marie Livingston and Pia Valere Adams have been in and

out. They see Jeffery as a special preject. &and there’s

been a lot of interest in His situation.

But he's ~- he's had a very unfortunate life. And
that's not an excuse, Ycur Honor. Certainly not an
excuse. But he has a lot of obstacles that I don't know
how anyone would overcome, and especially, you know, a
public defender client, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

Anything else, Mr. Richardson?

MR. RICHARDSON: Just briefly, Your Honor. Something

1 failed to mention is that he's in jail right now. He
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actually cut off his ankle monitor and was on the run
four or five months before we caught him., Another concern
for the State.

THE CQURT: What is his record? Does he have a
prior —=—=-

MR. RICHARDSON: I have a shoplifting that shows on
NCIC, but no conviction. I do not know if he's convicted
of that. But other than that, nothing.

THE COURT: ©Okay. All right. Anything else,

Ms. Johnson?
MS. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor.
SENTENCE

THE COURT: All right. The sentence of the Court
will be as follows: under Indictment 2018-GS5-23-00604,
the sentence of the Court is defendant be confined to the
Department of Corrections for a period of 20 years.

Under 2019~GS-23-00604, the sentence of the Court is
that the defendant be confined to the Department of
Correcticons for a period of five years,

Under 2019-GS-23-00606, the sentence of the Court

- will be the defendant is confined to the Department of

Corrections for a period of five years.
And under 2019-GS5-23-00605, the sentence of the Court
is that the defendant bhe sentenced to one year with the

Department of Corrections.
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These are to run concurrent.

Is there any time as to what -~ how many days credit
he has for sentencing sheet purposes?

MR. RICHARDSON: Your Honor, can I provide that to
you at & later date?

THE COURT: You can just provide it. Yeah. You can
provide that.

MR. RICHARDSON: I have it from -- I did not update
it.

THE COURT: All right. That's fine.

All right. That is the sentence of the Court. Good
luck.

(WHEREUPON, proceedings concluded at 12:06 p.m.; Court's

Exhibit Numbers 3 and 4 were marked for identification.)




222

State of South Carolina
Department of Mental Health

MENTAL HEAUTH COMMISSION: . ok Divislundof inpationt Service
crensic Evaluation and Outpatient Servige
gﬁ:ﬂn\;ﬂ%ggb Pﬁ_}r‘% g}l::ll:' 7801 Farro»g Road, Bullding ¢
Columbla, SG 293¢
gzlglsbﬁol-ll:yagg Informaiion: tBDS) 935-58¢
L. Gregory Pearce; Jr,
INTERIN STATE DIREGTOR Aav. D 2071
Mark Blnkday May 2,2019
W. Douglas Richardson
Assistant Solicitor
305 East North St., Ste. 325
Greenville; SC29601

Re:  The State of South Carolina vs. Griffin, Jeffery Keyon Timothy
DMH #: 1047-7567
Greenville County, Court of General Sessions

Dear Assistant Solicitor Richardson:

Inaccordance with the court:order issued by the Honorable Letitia Verdin, & comipetency to: stand
irial evaluation was conducted by the South Carolina Department of Mental Health, pursuant to

$.C. Code Ann, § 44-23-410 (1976).
Please see the aftached feport for the résults of this evaluation,

This 7 page document is: certified to be the original court-ordered evaluation report issued
plrsuantto 8.C, Code Ann. § 44-23-410 (1976).

Date’ Ke lr Gothard Ph. D
Chmcal Director
Forensic Outpatisitt Services
Department of Mental Health

Vﬂ'lm 4. 944
7

¢c: Dorothy Manigault, Attorney at Law, 305 East North St. Ste. 123, Greenvflle,;SCa 25601

KGhb

W& DENTFICATIONEVIDENCE.
4 ; Rt lo)

MISSION STATEMENT ~ ~
To supportthe T recovary of people. With mental lNnesses.
So lhmm‘hn
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SoUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH
FORENSIC EVALUATION SERVICE

COMPETENCY TO STAND TRIAL EVALUATION

Name: Griffin, jeffery Keyon Timothy
Date of Birth: /1993
County: Greenville
Dzte of Evaluation: 472972019
Date of Reporf: 57272019
Presiding Examiner:  Kelsey Laxton, Ph.D,
Second Examiner; Kelly Gothard, Ph.D. (Supervising Psychologist)
Opinion: Competent to Proceed
D RErERRAL INFORMATL

Jeffery Griffin is a 26-year-old male charged with Armed Robbery (four counts), Possession of a Weapon
During a Violent Crime (four counts), Criminal Conspiracy (three counts), Pointing or Presenting a Firearm
at a Person, Giving False Information to Law Enforcement, and Resisting Arrest for acts alleged to have
oceurred on 11/11/2018 and 11/24/2018 in Greenville, South Carolina. Related to these charges, the
Court of General Sessions erdered an evaluation of Mr. Griffin’s fitness to stand trial pursuant to South
Carolina Code § 44-23-410 and State v, Blair. According to the 4/4/2019 court order, the evalnation was
requested because his attorney reported the “defendant may have competency issues.” According to Mr.
Griffin's attorney, he was referred for an evaiuation due to reports of "hearing voices and seeing things” as
well as a history of special education in school. Pursuant to the court's order, Mr. Griffin was evaluated at
the Forensic Evaluation Service on 4/29/2019,

NOTIFICATION

At the outset of the evaluation, the nafure and purpose of the evaluation, as well as the limits of
confidentiality, were explained orally and in writing to Mr. Griffin. He was informed of the examiners’
neutral role in the evaluation. He was advised the evaluators would review available records and gather
information from relevant collateral informants as needed. He was advised a report would be written and
submitted to the court, the solicitor, and his attorney. He was informed thatinformation gleaned from these
sources could be used in the report submitted to the court. Mr. Griffin was explicitly advised any statements

- he made in the context of this evaluation were not confidential and could be made part of the report and/or
become part of courtroom testimony. However, he was notified that examivers may not be compelled to
testify regarding statements made during the evaluation for any purpose other than to establish
competency. He was informed Dr. Laxton was being supervised on the curcent svaluation by a licensed
psychologist. A notification form detailing this Information was provided to Mr. Griffin, and he read
portions aloud without difficulty, He was given ample opportunity to ask questions and had none, He
jndicated his understanding, as he accurately answered questions about the provided information or was
receptive to education when nesded.

PROCEBURES & SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In addition to a clinical interview with the defendant, the following sources of inforrﬁ'zatiou were reviewed
during the current evaluation:

»  QOrder for Competency to Stand Trial Evaluation Pursuant to State v, Blair, Court of General
Sessiouns (Greenville County), dated 4/4/2019
= Law enforcement records yegarding the alleged offenses:
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6 ArrestWarrants (3) for Robbery./ Armed Robbery; issued on11/11/2018 and returned
on11/24/2018 |

o ArrestWarrants (3) for Possession of a Weapon During a Violent.Crime, issued.on
11/11/2018 and returned on 11/24/2018

11/24/2018
o Arrest Warrantfor Robbery / Acmed Robbery, issued and returried ow11/24/2018
o Arrest Wafrant for Possession of a Weapon Duringa Violent Crime, issiied and returned
on 11/24/2018
¢ Arrest Warrant for Criminal Conspiracy, issued and returned on-11 /24/2018
o ArrestWarrant for Pointing or presenting a firearm at a'person, issued and returned on
11/24/2018
o Arrest Warrant for Giving False Information to Law Enforcement, issued and returned on
11/24/2018
o Arrest Warrant for Resisting Arrest, issned and returned on 11/24/2018
o Greenville County Sheriffs Office Incident Reports, Supplemental Reports, and
Investigative records, various dates from 11/11/2018 to 11/24/2018
» ‘Medical/mental health records:
& Greenville County Deténtion Center Medical Records, dated 11/24/2018 to'4/8/2019
»  Natlonal Crime Information Center Criminal History Record, last updated 11/29/2018

Of niote, a Social Work Assessinent was attempted but unable to be completed for this evaluation-due to a
lack of a collateral source of information.

CLINICAL, PRESENTATION & MENTAL STATUS
Evaluators met with Mr. Griffin on 4/29/2019 for approximately two hours and 50.minutes. He presented
as apprapriately dressed and adequately groomed, though his haif was slightly dishéveled. He identified
himself, the month and year, and the location, and he expressed understandmg ofthe situation athand. Eye
contact was appropriate,and he was cooperative throughout the interview: His speech wasinitially low in
volume, but Iargely appropriate in rate; volume, and rhythm once rapport was established. The contentof
his speech was organized and coherent, devoid of apparent delusional content. He tended torespond ing
vague manner when discussing personal or traumatic events in his past; but he otherwise seemed
forthcoming: He had ‘no noticeable difficulty with attention or concentration, and recent and remote
‘memory appeared largely intact. He correctly completed tasks to repeat sequences of up to five numbers,
spell a-simple word backwards, count backward from 20 by threes, repeat a series of simple words, and
‘recall the words aftera delay. He displayed an adequate fund of knowledge ability g think abstractly, and
' judgmentin basic, hypothetical s¢enarios,

Mr. Griffin described he had been feeling “all right” lately, adding he had spent time in jail reflecting on his.
past and his"decision making, He reported being in jail "saved [his] life,” because he had'been associating
with "a whole Jot of negative people” inthe community. He reported some changes.in energy and appetite,
to whilch heattributeda chanige from ahealthy distin the comimunity t less nutritiotis food in the detention
center, Hereported no changes in sleep, Hisaffect{i.e, outward display of emotion] was:consistent with:
his self-reportand appropriate to the topicathand,.and he did not detriofistrate:signs of distress. He did
ot réport historical or recentexperiences of auchtory or visiial hallitéinations. {i.e, hearing oF seeingthings
thatare notactually present}, nor did he evidence signs of hallucinations during: thémterview Mr. Griffin
described two. prior: instances of self-harm; however, he denied current or recent suicidal or homicidal
ideation. Mr. Griffindppeared to bea reliable historian of his personal history,

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF MENTALHEALYH . - GRIPFIN, JEFFERY . T
FORENSIC EVALUATION SERVICE. SCOMH# 1047-7567
Page 2 of 6
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BACGKGROUND INFORMATION

The following historical information was gathered from record review and M. Griffin during the interview.

Faniily & Social History

M. Griffin reported he wasraised in Greenville, South Carolina, predominantly by his mother, He reported
he had 15 brothers and sisters, and he was the 13% child.in the family: He endorsed a history of thehtal,
physical, and sexual abuse throughout his childhood. He reported he did not have good relationships with
his mother or many of his siblings, He said his mother recently passed away earlier in 2019. He reported
e has niever been niarried or had children.

Educational & Employment History )

Mr. Griffin'said he “didn’t like schoo), as far as [he] can remember,” He said he would be crying, shouting,
not wanting'to go." He described difficulty focusing on his education due to “so-many things happening at
home.” He sald he earned “decent; average” grades; though he falled “a couple” grades, He said his mother
“signed [him] into™specialeducationin elementary school after:she heard they could “geta check for getting
her kids in those classes to get help." He reported he was in special education for both behavioral and
learning problems from fifth grade through high school. He reported he was “slow to learn” and "didn't get
proper studying at home.” ' '

Mr. Griffin reported a history of behavioral problems at Home and at school, He said he did not get along
with his siblings and often fought with them and acted out athome. He described suspensions froni school
for fighting. He said he began to steal from people or stores in'the fourth or fifth grade because his family
was. “less fortunate” He stated he also got into trouble; for “back talking” and "fiot having everything
together to be able to focus.” He reported he never intentionally damaged property, stayed-out Jater than
curfew in childhood, or ran away from home avernight.

Mr. Griffin yeported he withdrew from school during his senior year of high school in‘order to work-and
earn money for his family. Hesaid he attempted to earn his GED-inadultliood, but he' was unable to sustain
attending classes and working full time. Mr. Griffin described prior employment in avariety-of labor jobs,
including construction, manufacturitig, landscaping, moving. appliances and furnfture, and waste
management. He stated his longest position held was for the city-of Greenville in waste management for
almosttwa years. Mr. Griffin reported he has never garnied supplemental or.disability income, torhas he
served in the military. Heendorsed periods of homelessness due to-wanting to*do things on [his} own"
but being unable to support himself and live independently,

Legal History (
"Mr. Griffin reported his first involvement with law enforcement was atage 14 for trespassing. Hé has prior
arrests for shoplifing and assault, though the dispositions of sitch cases are unknowrn. He hasnever been:
o1 prohation,.

Medical History y g

Mr. Griffin described an injury while working in waste managementin 2014. He reported he was hitir the.
head with a pipe and lost consciousness for “ust & second.” He said he went'to a county hospital for
treatment of the laceration. Hé sald he'has nothad any ongaing problems or concerns.related to this injury.
He reported no other medical concerns or problems. Jail records reference a history of seizures: no
additional details are available, : ¥ |

Mental Health History . N ‘

Mr, Griffin reported he has never been diagnosed ‘with ‘a mental illness or received any mental health
treatmént.or psychiatric medications, He described a history of suicidal {deation since childhood. He said
he atternpted to hang himself from his bunk bed with his younger brother due to abuse. He said he “realized
SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH, . : GRIFFIN, JEFFERYK. T,

FORENSIC EVALUATION SERVICE SCDMH # 104775567
Page 3of 6
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what we were doing” and they did not proceed. He said in thé 10% grade, he “took a whole bunch-of pills”
belonging to his mother: Hésaid he was feeling distressed over the'dissolution of a romantic relationship,
He said he went to sleep and required no medical attention, He reported the most receiit incldent of self-
harim was in 2017, He said, *I would grab my neck to see if I could stop breathing” He didnotendorse a
specific stressor; adding he was asscclating with “taxic” people and “ just little crazy shit” He said he has
never required hospitalization due to suicidal idestion or-self-harm.

According to Fecords from the Greenville County Detention Center, Mr. ‘Griffin had no mental heaith
concerns-or problems.from intake and November 2018 until March 2019; According to an encounternote
dated 3/13 /2019, Mr. Griffin was referred for a mental health evaluatién dfter putting his shirt around his
neck, Mr, Griffin reported auditory hallucinations (i.e., hearing things that others cannot hear), paranois,
and "odd beliefs” which began since Being “ridiculed” and neglected" as-a child by his mother. He was
noted to be calm and able to identify his symptoms with insight, He was moved into segregated housing
due‘to his concerns, A note dated 4/ 172019 reports Mr. Griffin reported “that he siispects the voices hes
hearing are being caused by the changes in his diet” and “the food in the facility is causing him to hear
peaple calling his name and an incessant beeping sound.” He reported hewanted to be aloneand remained
in secute housing. Shortly thereafter; anote dated 4/8/2019 states Mr. Griffin reported he was 1o longer
heanng voices and “that he Just has loud thoughts sometimes ! He descrlbed "low volume beepmg or
relocated to general populatlon as stable There fs 1o indxcatlon M Gmfﬁn has been prescrlbed psychiatuc
medications whilé detained. During the current evaluation, Mr., Griffin explainied that he was having
problems with other inmates while housed in general population and did not eddorse any symptoms of
psychosis..

Substance Use History _
Mr, Griffin described a history of regular usé of alcohol, marijuana, non-prescribed Xanax (a
benzomazepme), non-prescribed pain pills {e.g, Oxycodone, Hydmcodone, Percocet, Lortah), and cocaitie.
He reported he began drinking alcohol in middle school, imarijuana in. ninth grads, and prescription
medications.in tenth grade, Hereported he didnottse alcohol frequently, and he used cocaine for “maybe
amonth” Healsoreported he had tried “molly” and methamphetamine but had notused either regularly.
Mr, Griffin described daily use of marijuana, Xanax, and opiates. Hesald he tookpills “by the hour,” to the
point he “needed the relif to just get up and do something” Hesaid taking pills “made [his] problems
worse,” since he .used pills as a “crutch” for issues he was experiencing, He reported he. developed a
tolerance for pills, as he had to increase the dose and frequency he used, and he reported he spent alot of
tn'ne thmlnng about getting-or trying to get pills. He described withdrawal symptoms: follnw:ng cessation
of pﬂls, Including fever, shakes, and anxiety attacks. He endorsed urges and cravings for pills and marfjuana
‘when he was not using. Mr, Griffin reported using pills caused him the most problems, and he denied
-SLgmﬁcant problems dus to usé of offier substances. He reported he last used any substances priorts his
‘récentairest.

,DIAGNos'r‘i‘c Fonmgg,azx Qrg“ r
"dmgnoses from the Dza,gnostzc and Statzsncal Manua] of Mental Disorders, Fi fth Edition [DSM—E)

Severe Berizodiazepine Use Disorder, in a-controlled envirofirent
Severe Opiate Use Disorder,in a controlled environment. H

Substance use disorders consist of a "cluster of :cognitive, behavioral, and physiologital symptoms
indicating that the individual continues using the substance -despite significant substance-related
problems” (DSM-5, . 483). Mr. Griffin described a history of significant and regular substance.use and
abuse. He identified Xanax and prescription pain piHs as: causmg the most; problems forhim. He said he
SOUTH CAROLINA DEFARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH i GRIFFIN, JERFERY K. T
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began abusing prescription pills in. 10t grade, and he began using Xanax recreationally in 2018, His
recreationa} use of prescription medications has resulted in clinically significant Impairnient in functioning
in multiple life domaiiis, including problems.in employment; using substances in hazardous environments
(e.g, working), dnd interpérsonal relationships. He stated he has attempted to discontinue use without
abstinence, and he described an licreased tolerance for use.and a history.of withdrawal, Mr. Griffin meets
criteriafor atleast two substance use disorders; though additional substance use disordersmayapply given
additional information about his use and problems related to each specific substance. Specifically, he
described near daily use of marijuana and regularuse of alcohol; though he denied impalrmentin his life.
attributed to such substances. The specifier; in a controlled environment is used-when the indjvidual fs an
environment in which access to the substance is presumably restricted (e.g; jail or prison),

COMPETENCY ASSESSMENT . : i
§.C. Code § 44-23-410 states an individual “is not fit-to stand trial because the person lacks the capacity to.
understand the proceedings againsihimior to assist in his own deferise as a result of alack of mental capactiy.”

Factugl and Rational Understanding of Legal Proceedings

Overall, Mr. Griffin demonstrated an adequate factual and rational understanding of the legal Process.
‘Given his limited prior involvement in the legal system, he vequired notable education abaut court
proceedings-and legal terms. Nevertheless, he-displayed the capacity to learn and retain such informatiss.

Mr. Griffin accurately identified the roles .of key personnel involved: in legal proceedings, including the:
defense attorney, the solicitor; the judge, and the jury. He expressed a somewhat cynical view of the
adversarial nature of legal proceedings, though this appeared culturally normative rather than stemming
from any mental health symptoms or condition. For example, while he initially stated a judge and a jury
are "against” him, he was receptive to informatlon thatthe judge and jury are “supposed to be" nieutral; He
required education about the composition of a jury and who may ormay not be permittéd to serve ona
jury in his case: He retained such information when the topic was revisited, He understood the solicitor
has the burden of proof.

Mr. Griffin accurately explained pleas of guilty and not guilty, he was receptive to education about the plea.
of no contest. He was knowledgeable about related outcomes of pleadinig guilty; and he expressed
understanding of potential punishments for a guilty verdict, including incarceration and probation. He
expressed understanding ofthe conditions of probation and potential cons equences for violating the same,
Mr. Griffin required increased explanation {n-identifying proceedings that follow from a plea of not guilty
(e atrial), though he better understood this information when presented with apicture. Herecalled such
information later in the interview. Mr: Griffin-described a plea bargain as“an offer” involving a defendant

 pleading guilty and “taking whatever sentence they try to offer you,” He wnderstood a defendant watves
thelr right to a trial and an appedl in & pled agreemerit:or plea of gujlty.. Hé tnderstood a plea agreement.
could result in “less time” than the potential sentence one could receive after a trial, though he was
optimisticabout the gutcome of a potential agreement in his case, He demonstrated.an ability to ‘apply his
understanding of a pleaagreement to a hypothetical scenario. Mr: Griffin acknowledgedthe need to discuss
arly potential plea agreements with one’s defense attorney. .

Mr;’ Griffin accurately identified the label and meaning of the majority of his charges and the alleged
behaviors £6 which such charges may refer. He asked about the meaning of a charge of Conspiracy; and he
‘'was receptive to such information. He accurately identified his charges as felonies®br misdemeanors, and
he was receptive to education regarding the potential penalties of a finding of guiltin his case, He expressed
an iinderstanding: of witriesses:and evidence and was able to rationally apply these concepts to his owat
case: He discussed the case and his legal options based on ratlonal interpretations of potential evidence
and anaccount of alleged events. Mr. Griffin was knowledgeable aboit a defendant’s rightta testify and his

SOUTH GAROLINADEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH S T GRIFFIN, [ERFERY K. T,
FORENSICEVALUATION SERVICE SCDMH #1047-7567
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rightto decline to do-so, and hie was.aware of the importance of honesty during testimony. He utidetstood
the importance of discussing the decislon of whether to testify or ot with his’ attorney.

Ability to Consult with Counsel

‘Mr. Griffin identified. his attorney by name and expressed frustration that he has not: spoken to her.

Although he expressed frustration about his situation and with his attorney due to distress about remaining
in jail; he-understood his attorney’s role in his defense. He expressed that he wanted to speak with her
ahout his case, thie legal process, and what to e¥pect moving forward with his case. He said he had no
concernis about trusting his attorney, his attorney representing him; listening to his attorney's legal advice
‘or-consulting with his attorney about his case. He acknowledged the importance of honesty with his
attorney: He'was not:aware of the concept of privilege between hiriself and his- attorney, but he was.
receptive to education and recalled the information after a delay. He understood privilege did not extend
to'the solicitor; and he acknowledged the risks of speaking to a solicitor withaut his attorney present. He
identified consulting his attorney as the best course of action if uncertainty arises relsvant to legal
circumstanges or decisions (e.g., a disagreement, plea options, testifying in his owh case).

Based on his presentation during the current evahiation and his ability to discuss the allegations agaixist
him;, Mr. Griffin has the capacity to communicate with his attorney and to demonstrate appropriate
behavior during interactions with his attorney and in‘the courtroom. Mr. Griffin accurately described
appropriate courtroom conduck for 4 defendaiit, He exhibited: appropriate behavior during-the interview,
and mental health and jail records do Tiot suggest difficulty maintaining appropriate behavior when he
chooses to do so. Moreover, he demonstrated the capacity to track information presented to him
throughout the evaluation, and he respondedinaclearand coherent manner. He was receptive to clarifying
information provided by evaluators, and he retained explained mformatlon after a delay.

OPINIGN

Based on the information available, our proféssional opmwn is that the defendant, Mr. Jeffrey Griffi, is
cuirently competent to proceed with the legal process in his case, He did not present with a mental illness
that would impair his.capacity to understand the case against him or to assist in his defense, Given his
limited experience in the Jlegal system, he did require education about legal terms-and concepts, However,
he demonstrated an’ ability to learn and retaln such information. -As such, Mr, Griffin has Hotha factual and
rational understanding of the proceedings against him, as'well as the ablhty to reasonably consult with his
attorney..
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State v. Timothy Griffin
RESISTING ARREST

THE DEFENDANT IS CHARGED WITH RESISTING ARREST. THE STATE
MUST PROVE BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT THAT THE DEFENDANT:

KNOWINGLY AND WILLFULLY '.RES'I-STED A LAWFUL ARREST BEING
MADE BY A PERSON THE DEFENDANT KNEW, OR REASONABLY
SHOULD HAVE KNOWN, WAS A LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER.

KNOWINGLY MEANS WITH KNOWLEDGE; CONSCIOUSLY DONE.

WILLFULLY MEANS DONE INTENTIONALLY AND NOT DONE BY
ACCIDENT,

RESIST MEANS TO OPPOSE, STRIVE AGAINST, OR OBSTRUCT.
OBSTRUCT MEANS TO IMPEDE, HINDER, OR INTERFERE WITH.

EVEN PEACEFUL, NONVIOLENT, INDIRECT OBSTRUCTION OF AN
ARREST OR THE SERVICE OR EXECUTION OF PROCESS 18 CONSIDERED
RESISTING ARREST. IF THE MEANS USED ARE SUFFICIENT TO
PREVENT THE OFFICER FROM MAKING AN ARREST, THE DEFENDANT

IS GUILTY OF RESISTING ARREST.

230f28
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 3 INDICTMENT FOR
i ARMED ROBBERY AND POSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE J THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME
Al a Coutt of General Sessions, convened on P«PR 0 B 2[121 the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their oath:

COUNT 1~ xikM'ED ROBBERY
That JEFFERY KEYON TIMOTIIY GRIFFIN did in Greenville Counlly, on or about the 24th day of Novernber,
2018, while armed with a deadly weapon, or while alleging cither by action or words he was anned while using a
representation of a deadly weapon or any ohject which a person present durng the commission of the robbery
would reasonably believe to be a deadly weapon, take by means of force or imtimidation, goods or monies
deseribed as: US currency from the person or presence of Charles Adam Henderson-Blake, an employee of 7

ELEVEN. This is in violation of §16-11-330 of the South Caroling Code of Taws (1976) as amended.

COUNT II - POSSESSION OF A WEAPON DURING THE COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME
That JEFFERY KEYON TIMOTHY GRIFFIN did in Greenville County on or about the 24th day of November,
2018, possess or visibly display a handgun during the commission or atempted commission of a vielent crime, to

wit: Armed Robbery. This is in violalion of §16-23-490 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended,

Against the peace and dignity ol the State, and contrary o the statute in such ¢ase made and provided,

L

SOLICITOR BAR # 66112
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STATE OF SOUTH CARQLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
) RESISTING ARREST
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) ¥

At 2 Court of General Sessions, convened on the Grand Jurors of Greenville

APR 06 2821
County present upon their cath:

That JEFFERY KEYON TIMOTHY GRIFFIN did in Greenville County, on or about the 24th day of November,
2018, knowingly, willfully and unlawfully oppose or resist an arrest being made by Corey J Chadwick with the

Greenville County Sherifl's Office whom he kanew or reasonably should have known was 2 law enforcement

officcr. This is in viglation of §16-9-320(A) of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignily of (he State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

SOLICITOR - BAR# 66112
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA } INDICTMENT FOR
FOINTING AND PRESENTING A FIREARM
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE } '
At aCourt of General Sessions, convened on, APR 0 B ?_ﬁ?,’l the Grand Turers of Greenville

County present upan their eath:

That JEFFERY KEYON TIMOTHY GRIFFIN did in Greenville County, on or about the 24th day of November,
2018, point or present a firearm, to wil: a handgun, at or in the presence of Charles Adam Henderson-Blake at
employee at 7 ELEVEN. This is in violation of §16-23-410 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as

umended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

SOLICTTOR BAR # 66112




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 3 IN THE COURT OF GENERAL 3!5&8!%5
COUNTY OF Greenvilia % ’
: )
STATE vs ) INDICTMENT/CASE# __ 2019652300604
. ) .
) . ) A 2018A2330210637
i Joffery Keyon Timothy Griffin ) Dste of Offerics: 1112470078
. : -y " " g S.C.Code§ : 1B6-11-0330(A)
ace " ge: 23 COR Code #: 0138
DOB: nwsa ssHNEN ))
Addressf] Greensboro Ct
City,State Zi;.__ Greenville, 8C 20611 } SENTENCE SHEET
o NN SOE }
)

O Feys

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was MONV!CTED CF or [JPLEADS
10 Robbery f Armed Robbety, robbery while armed or allegediy armed with a deadly weapon

*COL Yes [J No [JCMV Yes ] No [7] Hazmat Yes ] No[]

inviclationof  § 16-11-0330(A) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing COR Code # 0130
[INON-VIOLENT RVIOLENT [ISERIQUS [KMOST SERIQUS [ Mandatory GPS 7 §17-25-4%
{ CSC wiminor 1st or CSC wiminor 3rd )
. : Lesser Included Defendant Waives .
The charge Is: g’% Indicted, ] Offense, X Presentment to Grand Jury. — LA )

?r%gr EL;? is: {] Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negoliated Sentence, [Xj Recommendation by the State.
A :

% pd 65112 Qajﬂ/lﬁ“ 1875}
RichamiSon, Doug SC Bar# Defendant ./ SC Bar#

TRl Johnun
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the  {X State Department of Corrections  [] Gounty Datsntion Center,

for a determinate term of 2,0 daysimentis/(Earslime-Served [ Youthful Offender Act notto exceed years

andfortopay afine of § provided that upon the service of daysimonthsfyears/Time Served and or payment
of § . : pius costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with probation for

monthsfyears and subject to South Carofina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probalicn, which are incorporated by reference,

The sentence shalf run _
[KCONCURRENT or  [JCONSECUTIVE to sentence on: bpndenceS _on Q222

The B?fiendam ig to be given creditfor time served pursuantto $.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCDOC.
11 g@fm _

7] Toinclude time speant on mohitored house arrest priot (o trial and sentencing.
7] The Defendant Shall be Released from County Detention Cenfer,

Pursuant to 18 4U.8.C, § 922 and § 18-25-30 it is unfawiul for a persan convicted of 4 violation of § 16-25-20 or § 16-25-65
{Domestic Violence ) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition.

ol
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STATE VS Jelffer}f Keyon Timothy Griffin INDICTMENT/CASES: 2019682300604
| SPECIAL GONDITIONS:  AM#:  2018A2330210637
[.] PTUP after ' months/years _
And Other Terms Listed Below:;

[0 Substance Abuse Counseling [0 Completion of GED (7] Random Drug/Aicohal iesting
[ Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp - 7 No Contact with (O] Domestic Vielence Intervention Pragram
O Mental Health Counseling ' [ May serve WIE

beginning .
[J Sex Offender Registry pursuant to $.C. Code § 23-3-430 " [] Public Service Employment days/hours

[[] Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to 5.C. Code §17-25-135.

O Other
[3 RESTITUTION: {7 Deferred [ Oef Waives Hearing = [ | Ordered
Totat & plus 20% fee: 3
Payment Term 7 [ Setby SCDPPPS
Recipient:
*Fine: $
Fine may be pd, in equal, consecutive weeklyfmaonthly pmts. of $ Beginning
§14-1-208 {Assessments 107.5 %} 3
§14-1-211(A) 1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 5 (00, OO
§14-1-211{A)2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 5
§56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 312 3
§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 5256 ]
§14-1-212 {Law Enforce. Funding) 325 5 TR0
§14-1-213 {Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3
§34-11-T0(b)and{c), and 34-11-80{cland{d} (Admin Fraud Check cnurt Costs) $41 3
§50-21-114{BUI Breath Test Fee) $30 3
§56-5-2842(J) (Vehicle Assssament) 402
3% to County {if paid in instaliments) TBD $ EN =2
[ Appainted PD or appointed other counsel, Praviso requires $500 be paid to Clark

during probation and shall be collected before any other fees. $500 S
O § 17-3-30(B) Unpaid Application Fee to be paid to the Public Defender Fund TBD 5]

TOTAL 5 :‘5 2 ‘E
Clerk of Court! Deputy:;::lénc: ' P@lb\ | B chens grer Presiding Judge: M j
- o s Judge Gode: 2723 ¥

Court Reporter: ) OI\ P.n-"u[ oy +' i~ Sentence Date: "?f 5’,{ Z22

SCCALR1T {07/2021) Page 2 of 2



IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIgNg

DB (06 SO

Address eensharg Ct
City,State, 2ip:  Greenville, SC 29611
DL#: SID#,

“COL Yes ] No[JCMV Yes|Zl No[] Hazmat Yes [J No[]}

SENTENCE SHEET

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
COUNTY OF Greenville g
}
STATE ve ) INDICTMENT/CASE# __ 2019G52300604
: ]
. . } ASE
AKAT Jeffery Keyon Timothy Griffin ) Date t)f 0%388223?1%;?53’? ]
) 80.Code§ : 7TB-23-0480
Race: BLACK Sex: M Age: 29 ; CDR Code #:  DE4S
)
)
)
}

o= S

In disposition of the ahove Endicﬁnent comes now the Defendant whowas [X] CONVICTEDOF  or [[|PLEADS
TO: Weapons / Poss. weapon during violent crime, if not also sentenced to (ife without parole of death

in violation of § 16-23-0480 i of the S.C. Cede of Laws, bearing CDR Code #0549

NON-VIOLENT CVIOLENT {:}SERIOUS CIMOST SERICUS [T} Mandatory GPS [} §17-26-45

{ CSC wiminor 1st or CSC wiminor 3rd )

: . ; Lesser Included Defendant Waives
: )
The chirgeis: & As nd:cted, 0 Offense, O presentment to Grand Jury. emererereramns (GEF'S Initials)

The pleais: [ Without Negotiations ar Recommendation, [ Negotialed Sentence, [:l Recommendation by the State.

ATTEST:
L o = 66112 29us |
RichaggSon, Doug SC Bart Defendant T/ SCBar¥

pu——
[ 821 Telragon
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the ¢ State Department of Corrections ] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of 5 daysimonthsAeal/ Fme-Secved [T Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years

andior to pay a fine of $ provided that upon the service of daysimonthsfyears/Time Served and or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

monthsfyears and subject to South Caroling Department of Prabation, Parole and Pardon Sarvices standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

The sentence shall run
XCONCURRENT or  [JCONSECUTIVEtosentenceon: __Dundencrs o~ (i1

ﬁim! ?Tfendan i3 to be given credit for time served pursuant to $.C. Cede §24-13-40 1o be calculated and applied by SCDOC.
Frverdive

[0 Teinclude time spent on monitored house arest prior to trial and sentencing.
[0 The Defendant Shall be Released from County Datention Center.

Pursuant to 19 U.5.C. § 922 and § 18-25.30 it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of § 18-25-20 or § 16-25-85
{Domestic Violence } to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition.




STATE VS _ Jeffery Keyon Timothy Griffin INDICTMENT/CASE#: _ 2019GS2300604
SPECIAL CONDITIONS: &W# 2018A2330210638

O PTUP after monthsfysars
And Other Terms Listed Below:

[J Substance Abuse Counsefing [] Cempletion of GED (0 Randermn Drug/Alcohol testing
(] Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp [0 Neo Contact with J Domestie Vielence Intervention Frogram
[0 Mental Health Counseling M May serve WIE
heginning :
(3 Sex Offender Registry pursuant 1o S.C. Code § 23-3-430 [ Public Service Emplayment days/hours

() Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to 5.C. Code §17-25-135.

CF Cther

] RESTITUTION: [] Deferred [ Def.Walves Hearing [ Ordered
Total; % " plus 20% fee: $

Payment Term 7 Ll Setby SCOPPPS
Recipient:

*Fine:
Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly pmts. of $ Beginning
§14-1.208 (Assessments 107.5 %)

3

3
§14-1-211{A)(1} {Conv. Surcharge) $100 3 IEE ZE!

$

§14-1-211(A)(2) {DUI Surcharge) $100
§56-5-2095 (DU| Assessmeant) §i2 $
§56-1-285 (DUI Breath Test) b5 $
§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding} $25 _$ 15 00
§14-1-213 {Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3
§34-11-70(byand(c), and 34-11-80(c)and(d) {Admin Fraud Check Court Costs) 541 $
§50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee} $50 $-
§56-5-2042(J) {Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea §
3% to County ¢f paid in ingtallments) TED $ 3_7_?5'
0 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel, Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk

during probation and shall be collected befare any other fees. 3500 $
[0 §17-3-30(B) Unpaid Application Fee to be paid to the Public Defender Fund TBD $

Pﬁ i ) 3 . .{’ﬁllﬁ'!’fi‘.ﬁﬁfm & Presiding Judge: M/ :

Clerk of Courty Deputy Clerk: Z k. Judge Cede: 2773 L g
Court Reporter: Cﬁ\ﬁ’. Ll A [ S "1‘:»[\ Sentence Date: Vi frz

SCCAZ1T (0772021} Page 2 of 2



IN THE COURT GF GENERAL SEssi%g‘l

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA }
COUNTY OF Greenville {
)
STATE Vs }  INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2019682300605
) }
- ) AWE 2018A2330210840
KA Jeffery Keyon Timothy Griffin } Dale of Offense;  11/24/2018
' : } B0 Code$ - T6-085-0320(A)
Race: BLACK __ Sex: e __ 29 ) CDRCode# 0336
DOB: 1593 8§ )}
Address: l greensbom Gt
City,State, Zlp: _ Greenvile, SC 20611 } SENTENCE SHEET
oL# N SI0F: }
) o~ /;V

*CDL Yes [ No [ 1CMV Yes [} No [T} Hazmat Yes ] No{J

in disposition of the abuvé indictment comes now the Defendantwho was [} CONVICTED OF  or  [X|PLEADS
To: Resisting / Resisting Arrest; Oppose or resist law enforcernent officer serving process or making arrast

in viclation of  § 16-09-0320¢A) ofthe §.C. Code of Laws, bearing COR Code # 0326
KNON-VIOLENT ~ [JVIOLENT []SERIOUS [JMOSTSERIOUS [ Mandatory GPS O §17-25-45
{ CSC w/minor 1st or CSC w/minor 3¢d }
te . Lesser included Defendant Walves ey
The charge is: g/‘% Indicted, 1 ranse, ' presentment to Grand Jury. e (dets initials)

The pleais: [] Without Négoﬁaﬁcns or Recommendation, 7] Negotiated Sentence, ] Recommendation by the State.

ATTEST:
y 66112 % 195(

Richardsogr’ Doug 5C Bamt Defandant 7 SC Bark
&l Tohasor
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committad tothe [{ State Department of Corrections [} County Detention Center,

for a deferminate term of f days#monﬂwse‘f‘fime—ﬁmed [ Youthful Offender Act not to exceed yoars

andforfo pay a fine of $ provided that upon the service of days/monthsiyearsiTime Served and or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with probation for

monthsfvears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorparated by reference.

The sentence shall run
M-CONCURRENT or . CJCONSECUTIVE {0 sentence on: Sﬁﬁj;tﬂg’c‘& o TAY Z 18’ / A2

Kg The Defendant isto be given credit for time served pursuant to 8.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and appiled by SCDOC.
- @ monire-
3 Toinclude time spent on monitored house arrest prior to irial and sentencing.

1 The Defendant Shall be Relgased from County Detention Center,

Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. § 922 and § 15-25-30 it Is unlawful fora person convicted of a violation of § 16-26-20 or § 16-25-85
{Domestic Violence } to ship, transpart, possess, or raceive a firearm or ammunition,

houd
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STATE VS Jeffary Keyon Timothy Griffin INDICTMENT/CASER: 2018GS2300808
SPEGIAL CONDITIONS: ANV 2018A23302106840
1 PTUP after monthsd/years
: And Other Terms Listed Below:
[0 Substance Abuse Counseling [0 Completion of GED [J Random DrugfAleahol testing
[] Attend Woc, Rehab. or Job Corp [ NoContact with [1 Demestic Violence Intervention Program
[.J Mental Health Counseling 0 May serve W/E
beginning :
] Sex Offender Registry pursuant ta 5.C. Code § 23-3-430 7 Public Service Employment daysfhours

[] Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

C] Other:
[ RESTITUTION: (] Deferred [] Def. Waives Hearing - [ Crdersd
Total: 3 ' ' plus 20% fee: %
Payment Term (] Set by SCDPPPS
Recipient;
*Fine. 3
Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly pmts. of $ - Beginning
§14-1-208 (Assessments 107.5 %) 5
§14-1-211 (AN 1} (Conv. Surcharge) $100 3 iﬁ ZZ?
§14-1-211{A)}2) (DUI Surcharge) S1I00 8§
§66-5-2855 (DUI Assessmant) $12 3
§56-1-286 (DU Breath Test) $25 $
§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 3 15 08
§14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 ¥
§34-11-70(b)and(c), and 34-11-90{c)and(d} (Admin Fraud Check Court Costs) $41 3
§50-21-114{BU) Breath Test Fee) $50 3
§56-5-2842(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40vea " §
3% 1o Countly {if paid in instalfments) TED ¥ % T
0 Appointed PO or appuinted other counse), Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk

diring probation and shall be collected before any other fees. $500 $
1§ 17-3-30(B} Unpaid Application Fee to be pald to the Public Defender Fund T8D $

TOTAL 3
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk: e, { (3. Wity n simey  Presiing Judge:
- , Judge Code: 225

Caurt Reporter; C héna { Sixs ity Sentence Date: d;; .Qr;r 27
SCCA217 (07/2021) Page 2 of 2



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURY OF GENERAL SESS!(%&S

DOR: 1983 S
Address: @ Greenshoro Gt
City,State, Zip:  Greenville, SC 20611
SRR ——

*COL Yes [] No [JCMV Yes ] Ne [} Hazmat Yes [ No[']

SENTENCE SHEETY

)
COUNTY OF Greenville !

)
STATE vs ) INDICTMENT/CASE# __2019GS2300606

: }
! ) .

AKA: } SC.Code§ : T6-23-0470
Race; BLACK Sex: ge: ____2_9__§ CDR Code #0122

)

)

)

)

. {;“f

In disposition of the above indictment comas now the Defandant who was MJGNV}CTED OF or RIPLEADS
TO: Weapons / Pointing and presenting firearms at a person

inviclaticn of  § 16-23-0410 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # (0122

FNON-VIOLENT CJVICLENT  [ISERIOUS  [JMOST SERIOUS  [) Mandatory GPS ] §i7.25-45
{ CSC wiminor 18t ar CSC wiminor 3rd )

e Lesser included Defendant Waives \ ,
The charge is: #As Indicted, [ Offense, ® Presentrent to Grand Jury. oo {4EL'S Initials)

The pleais: (] Without Negotiations or Recommendation, (7] Nsgotiated Semence, Reccmmendation by the State.

ATTEST:
A £l 12 % 13t
Richardge Doug SC Bark Defendant ' ] ScBa#
WHEREFQRE, the Defendant is committed to the (R State Department of Carrections [} Coun?ﬂetintion Senter,
for & determinate term of 5" dayeimenihsixZrsiTine-Somvad [} Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/orto pay afine of § provided that upon the service of days/monthsiyears/Time Served and or payment
of § 7 Plus costs and assessments as applicable™; the balance is suspended with probation for

montisiyears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Seivices standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference,

The sentence shall run
(KCONCURRENT or ] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on; é entencrs sa 9 !' yf 22

The Defendantis to be givén credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCDOC.
Ll davhimontes
[J Toinclude time spent on monitored house arrest prior te trial and sentencing.

7] The Defendant Shall be Released from County Defention Center.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 922 and § 16-25.30 it is unlawful for a person convicted of & viclation of § 16-25-20 or § 16-2565
{Domestic Viotence )} 1o ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition,

ol
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STATE VS Jetfary Keyon Timothy Griffin INDICTMENT/CASER: 2018GS2300606
SPECIAL CONDITIONS: AMGE 2018A2330210636
0 pTLP after monthsfyears
And (ther Tarms Listed Below:
[] Substance Abuse Counseling (1 Completion of GED ] Random DrugiAleohol testing
[0 Attend Voo. Rehab. or Job Comp [0 No Contagt with 1 Domestic Violence Intervention Prograrm
O Mental Health Counseling D May serve W/E
baginning ;
[J Sex Qtfender Ragistry pursuant to 8.C. Code § 23-3-430 [J Public Service Employmant days/hours

[d Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to 8.C. Code §17-25-135.

[] Gther

[ RESTITUTION: +] Daferrad  [] Def. Waives Hearing [] Ordered

Total $ plus 20% fee: $

Payment Term . 1 Setby SCOPPPS

Recipient:

*Fine: 3

Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly prmts, of $ Beginning

§14-1-208 (Assessments 107.5 %) $
§14-1-211{AX¥1) (Conv, Surcharge) $100 § {00.00
§14-1-219{A)(2) (D1 Surcharge) §100 3

§56-5-2805 (DUI Assessment) $12 3

§56-1-286 (O Breath Test) $25 3

§14-1-212 {Law Enforce. Funging} $25 3 26,00
§14-1-213 {Drug Court Surcharge) $150

§34-11-70(bjand(c), and 34-11-90(c)and(d) (Admin Fraud Check Ceurt Costs) 41

§50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50

§58-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $4ll/ea

3% to County {if paid in installiments) TBD Xy

0 Appeinted PD or appointed other counsel, Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk

%%!ﬂiﬂ Eﬂ'éﬂlﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬁ
¢

during probation and shall be collected before any other fees. $500
O §17-3-30(B) Unpaid Application Fee to be paid to the Public Defender Fund TBD
TOT,
: 12 el o e PPESIAING Judge: o,
Clerk of Court! Deputy Clerk PSM { ’). 1 , (e nsi mypr™ Judge Code: STy 7 7
Court Reporter: 'H”[; L St . Sentence Date: Q-g-2020, {

SCCA1T (U7/2021} Fage 2 of 2
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

Counsel for appellant cerlifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed
to be included by -any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability with the April 15, 2014 order from the South. Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Revised Ordér Concerning Personal Identifying Information and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.”

Respectfully Submitted,

2|

Breen R, Stevens
Appellate Defender

QN ( [ South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
SC Court of Appeals Division of Appellate Defense

PO Box 11589

Columbia, S.C. 29211-1589

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

This 24th day of October, 2023.



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS SC Court of Appeals

Appeal from Greenville County:

Honorable G.D. Morgan, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

THE STATE,
RESPONDENT,
V.
JEFFERY KEYON TIMOTHY GRIFFIN,

APPELLANT

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Rule 262(a)(3) and Rule 262(e)}(3); SCACR, the undersigned hereby certifies a
true copy of the Record on Appeal in the above-referenced case has been served upon Mark R,
Farthing, Esquire, at the primary e-mail address listed in the Attorney Information System (AIS)

this 24th day of October, 2023.
(4

Breen R. Stevens *
Appéllate Defender






